
 
Molalla City Council –Meeting Agenda   

Meeting located at: Molalla Adult Center   
315 Kennel Ave, Molalla, OR 97038 

December 23, 2015 
 

Business  meeting will begin at 7:00PM.  The Council has adopted Public Participation Rules. Public comment cards are 
available at the entry desk. Request to speak must be turned into to the Mayor prior to the start of the regular Council meeting. 
Executive Session : 6:30PM before regular session  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – 1,069th  Regular Meeting  

A. Call the meeting to order  
B. Flag Salute and Roll Call 

 
2. COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENT 

A. Council Minutes  
B. Library Minutes  

 
3. AWARDS, RECOGNITIONS & PRESENTATIONS  
4. PROCLAMATIONS  
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. Molalla Land Use And Development Code To Impose Reasonable Regulations On Marijuana 
Facilities In The City 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS  

A. Merina & Co. presenting the FY 2014/2015 audit report - Discussion 
 
7. CONTINUING BUSINESS 

/ 
8. RESOLUTION 

A. 2015-14: Declaring Council Vacancy 
 

9. ORDINANCES 
A. 2015- 07 : An Ordinance Amending The Molalla Land Use And Development Code To Impose 

Reasonable Regulations On Marijuana Facilities In The City And Declaring An Emergency – 
Huff  

 
10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. City Manager/Staff Reports –  Dan Huff  

 Happy Holidays!  

 Chamber Annual Banquet – January 30th  

11. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
ORS 192.660 (2) (D) to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body 
to carry on labor negotiations. Meeting at 6:30PM.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 10 
 

ATTENDANCE:  Mayor Rogge, Present; Councilor Pottle, Present; Councilor Thompson, Present; 
Councilor Griswold, Present; Councilor Satter, Present; Councilor Riggs, Present. Councilor Clark, 
Present. 

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:  City Manager Dan Huff, Present; City Recorder Sadie Cramer, Present; 
Public Works Director Jen Cline, Present; Library Director Diana Hadley, Present. 

MINUTES  
A. Councilor Thompson motioned to approve the minutes of September 10, 2015. Griswold 

seconded. Motion carried 7-0. 
B. Library Minutes – Information only 
C. TAC Minutes – Information only 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Susan Hansen, representing Bear Creek Recovery Group, PO Box 50, Molalla, OR – (passed out a 
handout to each member of City Council, recorded as Exhibit A) says since the city of Molalla’s legal 
fees were 4-5 times more than those of Bear Creak Recovery it is understandable that the city leaders are 
trying to whitewash the lawsuit outcome. Statements made my city officials must be challenged. Federal 
statutes for the Clean Water Act encourage private enforcement by citizens in the public interest as state 
and federal agencies may not have the resources they need to do the job. Examination of years of DEQ’s 
records and field observations showed several violations by Molalla that DEQ had not enforced. In fall of 
2014, a highly placed DEQ official wrote “I agree with you that we need to do a better job of holding 
Molalla accountable for meeting all of their permit conditions.” Compliance with the increasingly 
complex Clean Water Act is mandatory. On October 5, DEQ met with PWD Cline and City Manager 
Huff and their lawyer, Jeff Ring, to discuss the need for a funded 5-year capital improvement plan, a 
facility plan, and recycled water delivery expansion. Hopefully city officials can begin to work with DEQ 
without the ongoing need for expensive legal support. Clearly given the chain of DEQ emails regarding 
this meeting, Molalla city officials are not confident in their legal standings with DEQ and are still 
spending significant money for legal support. Molalla’s lawyers waiting until the end of the 60 day period 
in March 2014 to contact them, BCR’s lawyer wrote that to preserve the process the complaint would be 
filed and, “we are open to discussing the potential for settlement negotiations with the City.” The City’s 
attorney Ring wrote back stating, “our inquiry was about negotiations prior to filing any suit.” The City’s 
attorneys did not attempt to further negotiate for months once the complaint was filed. The City spent a 
great deal of unnecessary money including flying in Ring/Bender lawyers from other parts of the nation. 
The consent decree requires extra compliance and procedures by Molalla above and beyond its permit. 
Molalla was required to develop an irrigation checklist for every irrigation cite and only City employees 
may operate the irrigation system using additional monitoring and reporting. Because the city has violated 
reporting requirements of its permit, the consent decree requires the City to post all reports on its website 
to improve transparency. Several DEQ warning letters were issued in 2013 detailing wastewater irrigation 
violations. The raw sewage spill in May and its tardy report to DEQ resulted in a civil penaly of 
$4,350.00. That incident delayed the settlement. Under the consent decree, every violation will now result 
in a $500.00 penalty which Molalla must add to the funds stipulated in the consent decree for biosolid 
removal and I&I. The first such violation occurred on September 7 when a required coloform test was not 
performed. The most disturbing thread running through the documents in DEQ, is Molalla’s ongoing 
claims it cannot afford to upgrade its equipment and tests. I&I reports were not filed, biosolids were 
builty up. The mandated lagoon leak test filed with DEQ on September 28th is being questioned by DEQ 
because of technical difficulties including a broken isolation valve and a broken valve inside an effluent 
line that is “cost prohibitive to repair at this time due to its age and location.” If Molalla city officials had 
been sincere about an early settlement to avoid huge legal bills, they would have immediately have asked 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 10 
 

for settlement negotiations to begin when the 60 day notice of intent letter was received in January 2014. 
Molalla officials have no one to blame but themselves for the loss of over half a million dollars due to 
their delayed realization that this was a valid and necessary Clean Water Act lawsuit. 
 
Ryan Weishan, owner of Smokey Bones BBQ, 202 N Ross Street, Molalla – opened in May 2015, 
approached city about being able to open a drive-thru to his restaurant and was told the city wanted 
$1,700.00 to sit down and talk about whether or not they would allow him to do that. Everything is there 
already, all he’d have to do is fix a fence, turning that fence into a gate. There is already an entrance, an 
exit. Was told that there would have to be a traffic flow review. Says that his business will unlikely affect 
traffic, that it is not an In-N-Out or Sonic, that he’s just trying to keep his business open. He does not 
currently have a place that is warm and cozy for people to sit. Current patrons stand in the pouring rain 
sometimes to get their food as they were really busy. Says his business is very weather-driven. He is a 
small business, cannot afford to spend fee to just discuss the drive-thru option. Molalla has a stigma of 
being un-friendly to businesses, even though signage coming into town from both sides says otherwise. 
Spoke with City Planner Lennartz who told him he has many things on his desk and will get to it when he 
can. Lennartz told him he’d be there tonight to support a fee schedule change. He was there tonight to 
answer any questions that there might be. His business is good, clean, has an impecable reputation, and 
provides jobs to several people in town. Was surprised Lennartz was not present. Weishan said he asked 
Lennartz what would happen if he just went ahead and added the drive thru and Lennartz said that he 
would be fined $1,000 daily. Said he was frustrated that Lennartz would rather fine him than fight for his 
business and that he thought that was Lennartz’s job as a City Planner.  
 
Mayor Rogge replied by saying he will still have to go through the planning process and because his 
business does face a main artery through town, there are laws we have to go by, setbacks, standards, etc. 
Encourages Weishan to continue to work with City Hall to the best of his ability and that when presented 
with something official, City Council will consider the variance.  
 
PROCLAMATION  

A. Domestic Violence Awareness Month –  
Mayor Rogge read the Domestic Violence Awareness Proclamation from the Office of the Governor, 
Kate Brown, as presented in the agenda packet.  

 
NEW BUSINESS  

A. Library Advisory Board –  
Mayor Rogge has invited Sandy Nelsen, who represents our Library Board and sits on the Library District 
Board to come forward to update Council on current issues and to suggest she visits on a semi-annual 
basis in the future around budget season.  
 
Sandy Nelsen, 12012 S. Wildcat Rd, Molalla – currently holds office of President of the Library Advisory 
Board. Has been a member of the board since 2005, a member of the Friends of the Molalla Library since 
2002, and a reader before most of you were born. Has been asked to provide an overview of the 
relationship between the Molalla Public Library and the Clackamas County Library District. In 2009, 
voters voted to establish the Clackamas County Library District to provide permanent operational funding 
for libraries in the county. While these libraries, except for two county libraries, are city libraries, the 
majority of the operational funds come from the Library District. Some cities provide funding for their 
libraries themselves, while some smaller cities depend entirely on district funds, Molalla being one of 
those few. Before the voters brought in the District, 10 individual cities bought in with an initial 
investment of $10,000. After the measure passed, the city administrators and the county commissioners 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 3 of 10 
 

jointly created the intergovernment agreement, which is the IGA, which would set down the guidelines on 
how the district would operate. As part of that IGA, the Library District Advisory Committee was 
established, which is referred to as the LDAC. Each city has a representative to the LDAC, she represents 
Molalla and has from its inception. LDAC is responsible for oversight of the libraries and reports to the 
Board of Commissioners. The funds come to the City for their disbursement to the library. While the 
library employees are considered City employees under guidelines of city personnel policies, the 
programs and collections of the library are connected to the District, working with the District Network to 
share the funds amongst the other libraries of the county. It allows our small library to be much more than 
it has means for and opens up the entire district to patrons. Possibilites are unlimited and everyone 
benefits from the collaboration. The network also supports the computer systems for all libraries along 
with its own IT support staff. District funding is vital to small libraries allowing them to prosper and 
grow. The service area is very large, serving a population of over 23,000. Only 8,820 is within Molalla 
proper. Patronage grows continually. Their goal, as established by the IGA, is to strive to meet the 
Oregon Library Association standards, and continue to work towards those.  
 
Mayor Rogge informs the Council that we currently have two IGAs that dictate what we’re doing with the 
library, one is for moneys that flow through the county, and the other is with the district. The reasoning of 
bring Sandy close to Council is that we will need to look at having a new library built in the near future, 
depending what the school board does with their property. Council will have to make some decisions in 
the future in regards to library funding, etc. Wants Sandy to continue to report to Council for those 
reasons. Councilor Thompson suggests consulting the LDAC via Finance Director Penni prior to the 
budget formation process, so that any plans can be worked into the budget in lieu of waiting for Council, 
as it might be too late in the budgetary process. Nelsen states that Library Director Hadley currently does 
work closely with FD Penni keeping her updated on necessary numbers involved. Mayor Rogge expresses 
appreciation for everything the board does and has done for several years.  
 

B. C800 Bond Measure - Huff   
  

City Manager Huff says he has given the Mayor and Council a letter of support for the C800 Bond 
Measure, as provided in the agenda packet. This bond measure replaces radio towers and radios for our 
public safety communication system, something that a group of people have been working on for quite 
awhile. The information has been slow to come forward, and the group he meets with quarterly, no formal 
name for the group, but consists of area-wide, Clackamas County city managers, continues to ask the 
group working on the radio system was what was to be done about the actual radios that are in the service 
vehicles or being carried on the persons of the public servants. The verbiage including the radios have 
been added to the bond and would cover replacement of radios in addition to the radio towers. The letter 
he wrote is in support of this. The Molalla Fire District was included in the letter as they are involved in 
public safety for the community. Councilor Pottle asks how much the bond was for and City Manager 
Huff says he has the figure, but not on him, but the amount is substantial, approximately $10 million. The 
cost to the city for outright purchasing radios was going to be approximately $75,000, which would have 
been necessary as the they wouldn’t work as soon as the new radio towers were in place. CM Huff asks 
for Council blessing before sending the letter. Mayor Rogge says she is in support of the letter, and a poll 
to the Councilors reflects unanimous support and encourages CM Huff to sign the letter and send it. 
 

C. CCTV Bids - Cline  
 
PWD Cline says that CCTV which is video inspection for our sanitary collection system. The agenda bill 
was not to exceed $90,000.00. Went out for an RFP a few weeks back and have received 3 proposals. The 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 4 of 10 
 

3 contractors that submitted proposals were Pacific Int-R-Tek, ProPipe, and American Industrial & 
Municipal Services (AIMS). All information is as stated in Exhibit B. The selection PWD Cline 
recommends to perform services is Pacific Int-R-Tek, reasoning is stated in the Exhibit. Pacific Int-R-Tek 
came in as the middle bid as far as cost, but upon review, the lowest bid did not include any mobilization 
or traffic control costs, which was asked for in the RFP. Proposes not to exceed the $90,000.00, will not 
be able to CCTV the entire system this year, it will only be a portion, but if more can be done with the 
$90,000.00, then more CCTV will be done. Councilor Clark asks what percentage of the pipelines this 
would cover, PWD Cline says about 50%, possibly more. CM Huff says we will first look at the major 
problem areas, and PWD Cline says they will look at the major trunk lines first and areas in town that are 
the oldest. The recommendations came from our contracted engineer, Brown & Caldwell, for the I/I repair 
work. Mayor Rogge states we will be paying out to see how much work we have to do. PWD Cline says 
yes, this is still part of the investigation phase, that they will move forward next year with smoke testing 
in the areas they see will be most effective for smoke testing including older areas in town, with older 
laterals that fail frequently due to falling in on themselves. This is a portion of the investigation phase that 
needs to be done to work towards the final report to identify areas that need repairing first. Mayor Rogge 
asks that as diagnostics come in, when do they visualize starting actual work towards repair other than 
new development. PWD Cline says investigation will continue into the next fiscal year until the report is 
finalized. Doesn’t anticipate major repairs happening until 2017-18. Mayor Rogge asks if we are 
preparing the budget for these costs, and PWD Cline says we are already preparing. Councilor Riggs asks 
if the testing needs to be done during the winter or rainy season to get an accurate evaluation and PWD 
Cline confirms that yes, we are headed into that season and are scheduling to get started on the work. Due 
to Molalla’s high ground water level, we will see inflow coming in earlier than most cities will. Councilor 
Clark wants to make sure we will be able to visualize the testing during the rainy season to see the inflow. 
Councilor Clark asks how many pump stations we have pumping into main lines, PWD Cline replies that 
we have 5 lift stations, and confirms monitoring of hours of run-time of the pumps. Inflow run-time is 
easily detectable and spikes are seen during the rainy seasons, especially in the South Molalla areas. Also 
see spikes in influent at the WWTP will go from 1 million gallons a day to up to 3-6 million gallons 
during those rain events. Councilor Pottle asks whether the company we recently had out here videoing 
the lines was the same company we decided to hire. Confirms that there were no problems and videos 
were provided to all necessary parties. Councilor Clark motions to accept Pacific Int-R-Tek as our 
contractor to do our camera work, Councilor Pottle seconds. Councilor Thompson clarifies to set the 
amount not to exceed $90,000.00, Councilor Clark seconds. All in favor, 7-0. 
 

D. Aquatic Discussion – Riggs, Pottle, Thompson 
 
Councilor Thompson says he, Councilor Riggs, Councilor Pottle, and a few members of Friends of the 
Molalla Pool had a meeting last Wednesday with sub committee of the school board. They had requested 
a starting point for negotiation from the school district, working with finance director for guidance, at 
meeting came back with that information and have now started negotiations. Meeting was good, both 
sides respectful of each other, looking forward to a resolution that will satisfy everyone’s needs. Meeting 
again next Wednesday, will update Council on any new information received. Mayor Rogge asks if the 
meetings were open to the public, Councilor Thompson says they are now open to the public.  
 
CONTINUING BUSINESS 

A. Utility Fee Increases and Possible Town Hall Meeting – Huff/ Cline  
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 5 of 10 
 

CM Huff says a couple things will be discussed; schedule for town hall meeting and the 2006 and 2009 
rate increases that were provided to Council for water and sewer. Included in those rate increases there 
were a few incremental rate increases that should have happened in later years, but were not implemented.  
Reasons cities do that with their utility rates is so that there are not big jumps. Has brought Gerald Fisher, 
who prepared the report, there tonight, to discuss the report, information supplied and conclusions he 
drew. On back of report is a comparison provided. CM Huff states initially when he came to Molalla he 
was told Molalla has some of the highest rates around, and has since discovered this is not true based on 
the comparisons provided by Fisher. In addition, some of the cities listed are looking at increasing rates 
again. Introduces Fisher.  
 
Gerald Fisher, Senior Project Manager, Project Delivery Group, an engineering and land surveying firm 
located in Salem, Oregon. Fisher says Huff and Cline asked him to come in and give Council a review of 
the report. Report is included as Exhibit C. First part will be the sewer side, second part the water side. 
Encourages Council to ask any questions as they have them. Says we need to look at what the City’s 
budget is currently vs. what it was in the past, observing what the trends were in expenditures and 
revenues. That information helped them build a projected budget for the next fiscal year. Tells how much 
revenue we’re expected to get, how much expenditures will be with personnel and maintence 
requirements, also CIP (Capital Improvement Plan). Out of that information, based on what current rates 
are, there is a shortfall, or gap, and that is how they determine what the rate increase needs to be. He 
began by looking at the consumer price index from 2006 and came up with a 30% increase in cost of 
goods. Average inflation rate on per year basis in past 10 years has been about 2.9%, also went back 15 
years and 20 years, noticing rates at 2.3% and 2.4%. In the near term, increase has been almost 3%, and 
that is the rate they used as average inflation rate for future line items in the budget. Fisher states that 
League of Oregon Cities recently published through their weekly report the legislative portion; PERS has 
a shortfall coming, ranging between 16.5 to 19.5%. Used the 16.5% in PERS to carry forward for next 
year. A couple other line items that were about a 5% increase so those were adjusted too. Out of the sewer 
fund in 2006 you had Donovan Enterprises, Inc. do a rate study for the City. The City had no rate 
increases in 2004. Raised rates 5.5% in 2005, and 9.3% in 2006. Rate increase recommendation was for 
29.9% in 2007 for waste water. Council did pass that increase in 2006; rate was recommended as $24.69 
per EDU (Equivalent Dwelling Unit) and usage rate per 100 CF (Cubit Foot) of $2.44. References second 
page of report (Exhibit C), current fiscal year budget 2015-16 broken down by department. When those 
numbers are carried forward to the next fiscal year, a shortfall in the budget is reflected of 27-35%. Has 
not calculated using SDC’s due to using those funds to pay sewer debt. Explains that SDC funds usually 
are not included in the master plan, as the rate of recovery for SDC’s is inconsistent. Goes over different 
scenarios on how to pay sewer debt, either using 100% SDC’s solely for the principal balance due and 
revenue from user rates for interest and admin costs; or only using user rates for the entire sewer debt 
(principal/interest/admin), eliminating the use of SDC’s for that purpose. States that SDC’s are not able to 
keep up with what is due, says that SDC’s are not guaranteed money, cannot depend on it from year to 
year. Using SDC’s to pay the principal, will constantly deplete that fund. Recommends, in the interim or 
short-term, to use user rates to pay for the sewer debt, so the SDC fund is able to be built up again. Only 
when the SDC fund is built up, then does the City move forward with any capacity increasing projects. At 
the time, use the SDC funds to pay for such projects, eliminating the need to take out debt and/or increase 
user rates to cover costs. Fisher recommends the second option, eliminating the use of SDC’s to pay off 
sewer debt, then do an updated Capital Improvement Plan for the next 5 years and do a rate study for the 
sewer for that 5 year period. Revenues and rates will be able to be forcasted, also allowing PWD Cline to 
balance out her future projects, cost-wise. Councilor Clark asks why Fisher is estimating the sewer 
revenue to go down $2,000 over the next couple years. Fisher responds saying that the income forcasted 
in the budget is a combination of user fees, late fees, misc income, and carry over from the previous year. 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 6 of 10 
 

The carry over amount will be used up this year, therefore not reflected in the next year(s). Fisher says he 
researched what our revenue is coming in at, which is about a 1% increase per year, when additional 
people move into the community, adding to that revenue stream. He took that 1% and carried it forward to 
the next year, but the figure is assuming we are not getting the revenue that this year had originally 
anticipated. The figure is being very conservative with how much revenue will come in to avoid over-
spending in the case revenue is not received. Councilor Clark says he does not understand how the sewer 
fund can go down. Councilor Thompson explains that what the report is looking at is the sewer fund 
specifically, including the left-over balance from the previous year. So in the future figure, since there 
will be no left-over balance, the future figure will be lower as there was no balance to carry over from the 
previous year. Fisher explains that the City’s expenditures are not keeping up with the revenue, putting 
the City in the position of a short-fall. Fisher states that this is a snapshot look of the two prior years’ 
actual, last year, and the current year’s budget, and taking those actual numbers to project forward what 
the next years’ figures would be. Important thing to note about 5 year plan is that there are constant 
variables that will cause changes each year and its important to go back and re-review annually to ensure 
projected rates will be sufficient. It is important to address any changes annually vs. after the 5 years to 
avoid drastic changes in rates. Monitoring these changes more often, and increasing rates more often, will 
make the changes more managable for users than one big jump in rates. Fisher summarizes the water rates 
as listed in Exhibit C. In 2009, Donavan Enterprises set up a forecast in their report for the next 5 years. 
6% initial increase for 2009-10, about 2% in two following years, 0% in the third year, and about 2% in 
the two subsequent years after that, through 2014-15. What actually happened is the City Council 
implementing the 6% increase, but did not make any of the other changes going forward. Good news is in 
the next few years, the City will be paying off some of its debts. A general obligation bond in water and a 
water revenue bond. The GEO bond is set to expire in fiscal year 2018-19 and the revenue bond in 2017-
18. The money currently paying out now to cover those bonds, will be able to be placed back into the 
budget for future capital projects. Since there are no SDC’s being used currently on debt, there will be no 
Option 2, leaving only one option. The funding gap they anticipate will be about 20%. They recommend 
the option listed and doing the 5 year plan and monitoring in annually, making any necessary 
adjustments, to ensure the City stays on track with the budget. Another thing Huff and Cline wanted was 
a comparison of different cities as shown in Exhibit C. The result is that most agencies have made rate 
increases as of July 1 last year, this year, and will do so again in the upcoming year. They had 5 year 
financial plans in place, but what the did differently was make those incremental increases automatic, 
avoiding having to go back each time for approval. Recommends that Council let staff monitor the 
fluctuations within that timeframe. Molalla’s current rates are among the lowest out there. The proposed 
rates will bring Molalla to the mid-range, but as of July 1 when other city’s rates increase, Molalla’s rates 
will be lower again. Mayor Rogge asks if the rates in the study included the park and rec fee that was 
previously on the water bills. CM Huff says that the park and rec fee would not show up on this particular 
report. Councilor Thompson thanked Fisher for his work, says it was exactly what they needed to make a 
determination on this issue. Recommends doing an in-depth review every 3 years instead of 10, avoiding 
drastic rate increases in the future. CM Huff asks Council to pick a date for the town hall meeting 
discussing the rate increases prior to implementation. He recommends that January 1, 2016 should be the 
time the sewer rate increase goes into effect and that the water rate increase could wait until July 1, 2016 
in the next fiscal year. Stresses the importance of establishing regular reviews of the capital improvement 
plan and implementing small changes more often rather than large ones less often to stay on top of 
funding for much needed future projects. Mayor Rogge recommends that a suggested date for a town hall 
meeting would be between council sessions in November, allowing time to notify people. Councilor 
Thompson expresses concern that the date of November 18 would not allow enough notice to people for a 
January 1st increase. CM Huff says there is an urgency for the rate increase due to nothing being done in 
the last 10 years and dire need for improvements on the sewer system now. Mayor Rogge recommends 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 7 of 10 
 

making this an agenda item at the next council meeting to discuss a more in-depth discussion regarding 
the dates to implement the rate increases. Councilor Satter agrees that the rate increase would be hard for 
people to take on with local businesses already struggling to pay their bills. PWD Cline responds by 
saying, yes, the percentage of the increase seems high, but in reality in works out to be $12 per month. 
Councilor Riggs states that the total increase including both water and sewer rates would equal about $17 
per month. Also that the increase can be user-controlled by conserving more water. Councilor Clark asks 
how business usage is calculated vs. residential. PWD Cline responds saying it is a formula calculation, to 
which wasn’t readily available, but different than residential. Mayor Rogge confirms that the rate increase 
would be effective for businesses in addition to residences. CM Huff offers to bring back more details on 
how business usage is calculated; Councilor Clark would like this. It is determined that the town hall date 
will be November 4, 2015 @ 7:00 pm at the Adult Center. Discussion is made stressing the importance of 
informing the public, and how this increase will benefit them and their city. Fisher says that Molalla is not 
alone in this process, that other cities have experienced the same issues. Councilor Thompson asks if staff 
can have the ordinances needed to put this process in place available at the next meeting so discussion can 
be done at that point since time is sensitive. CM Huff says yes this is possible.  
 

B. STIP Funding – Cline/ Huff 
 
CM Huff says this is more of an update. Included in agenda packets is information from ODOT, and 
amongst that information is item #54. Item #54 is OR-213 @ Toliver Road. This means ODOT is 
continuing to keep these hot spot areas in line for potential of future funding. Part of this has to do with 
our diligence in keeping ODOT informed of these areas to keep them on this project list. Hwy 211 from 
Safeway to Ona Way is another area on this list that is pending, and may be for awhile, as other projects 
take precidence. Was contacted a couple weeks ago by ODOT staff proposing taking some of the money 
they’re trying to leveragd for Molalla, increase it by one million and just give it to the city as ODOT fix-it 
funds, having the city do the work to correct these hot spot areas. We would re-pave all of the highway 
from beginning to end of the town and make all sidewalks ADA compliant that currently exist. They 
would also give the city another million dollars and the rights to the road. Huff states that there are many 
people out there who don’t realize Hwy 211 is not a city right-of-way, and that is ODOT who owns and 
maintains it. Huff says this could be both a good and bad thing with all the new developments coming 
down the pike. He says it is a good thing ODOT is thinking about Molalla and that the decisions the 
Council is making to make Molalla a better place is making an impact and that people outside of the town 
are starting to notice. Mayor Rogge says that when CM Huff and herself went to Senator Gerard’s office 
in Salem about a year ago, Gerard told her that it is important to have their engineers ready to use any 
extra funds from other projects that ODOT may throw their way, otherwise that money will go elsewhere. 
Mayor Rogge says that is what public works has been doing is preparing these projects in anticipation of 
ODOT funds coming their way. ODOT realizes now that Molalla is preparing and has done the work 
needed to be ready to receive said funds. Mayor Rogge commends the work that city administration and 
public works have done to prepare Molalla for these opportunities.  
 
RESOLUTION 

A. Fee increase for Fix-It Ticket Program – Penni/ Cramer 
 
CR Cramer says that while reviewing rates and fees in the municipal court as they were with water/sewer 
rates, they found gap with the fix-it ticket fee. A fix-it ticket fee is currently $25.00 per offense for fixable 
offenses such as fail to carry proof of insurance and expired tags. The fee was implemented in 2004 and 
has not had an increase since. The current rate does not cover cost of the process of issuing the citation 
through actual processing of the citation and eventual adjudication of the ticket. CR Cramer says they are 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 8 of 10 
 

proposing increasing the fee $50.00 to cover expenses. No profit would be made, the increase would hope 
to balance out the costs. Mayor Rogge asks where the funds from the fix-it ticket goes to, and CR Cramer 
says it is an administrative fee collected by the muni court to the general fund, benefiting the police 
department. Councilor Clark asks if someone was cited for not having a bumper on their car, who 
confirms that the bumper has been reinstalled and signs off on the correction. CR Cramer says it would be 
one of our officers. Councilor Clark asks then if the ticket makes it to the court. CR Cramer says it does, 
as the ticket needs to be processed administratively, entered in the computer system, and handled by 
Maeghan, the court clerk. The defendant is advised at the time of the stop to go into the court prior to 
their court date. If the offense is fail to furnish proof of insurance, and the defendant brings in proof, CC 
Maeghan has authorization to dismiss the ticket with a fix-it fee. CM Huff says this prevents the 
defendant from having to appear in court. Councilor Clark says he was cited personally for fail to carry 
proof of insurance and the fee was a lot more than $25.00 for not have a piece of paper in his car. He 
personally does not want to have to pay $75.00 if he has a tail light out to be told I have to replace a $1.00 
tail light. CM Huff says what happens most of the time is if you get pulled over for a brake light being 
out, most officers will make a judgement call, giving a warning, saying you’re in the system, if they see 
you again, they’ll impose the fee. Mayor Rogge asks what is the volume is per year of fix-it tickets, CR 
Cramer responds saying numbers vary per year, but approximately 125. Councilor Thompson points out 
that there is an Oregon Revised Statute for each offense fixable through the fix-it ticket program that costs 
more than the proposed fee, goes on your driving record, and can cause your vehicle to be towed. The fix-
it ticket program allows you to fix the offense, pay a fee, have the charge dismissed so it doesn’t go on 
your driving record. Councilor Satter suggests that people who get pulled over for such violations may be 
economically disadvantaged already and could be why the issue wasn’t fixed. Therefore tripling the fee 
won’t help the issue of fixing the offense. CM Huff says that receiving a fix-it is a better deal for the 
recipient because of the lower fine and that it doesn’t go on your driving record, possibly affecting future 
insurance rates. The problem we’re having is that costs to process the fix-it ticket are more than the fix-it 
ticket itself. Mayor Rogge asks if the fix-it program needs to be in place at all. CR Cramer answers saying 
it would be less adventageous to eliminate the program altogether, as it would be a disadvantage to those 
who might not be able to pay the full fine. The fee is still less than what the fine would be and is desirable 
to first time offenders by being a reduced amoung and not reflecting on their driving record therefore their 
insurance company. It gives those the opportunity to fix the problem before being issued a citation, that 
might lead to failure to pay, and suspension of their license, amongst other issues. Mayor Rogge clarifies 
saying the little old lady on a fixed income who only drives in Molalla, gets a fix-it ticket, pays the fee, 
gets pulled over again, is found to have previously offended, gets an actual ticket, then that whole process 
starts. CM Huff and CR Cramer confirms this is correct. Mayor Rogge says that its an early correction 
warning. CM Huff adds that the other thing this program does is provide funding for our municipal court, 
keeping it local. If not, then the little old lady will have to drive to Clackamas Town Center to take care of 
the ticket. The muni court is a great service, but it does cost money. Councilor Pottle says he understands 
that things need to be paid, but we’re talking about the people of Molalla. If a light bulb goes out, most 
know a mechanic to be able to get it fixed. And also in Molalla, the officers have the discretion to inform 
people of their offense and choose whether or not to cite them. Councilor Clark says that coming from a 
big city, in his youth he had a lot of fix-it tickets. One thing they would do was bring the car to the police 
station, prove whatever needed fixed was fixed to a police officer, then the whole problem goes away. No 
cost. It wouldn’t go through the court system. Cost would only be the officer writing the ticket and 
throwing the piece of paper away. If, at that date, the person had not fixed the violation of the vehicle, 
then he would be in support of a penalty. CM Huff says that this is a process that is already in place and 
does not know the factors the officer considers when deciding whether or not to issue the fix-it ticket. 
Councilor Thompson suggests that when Councilor Clark was younger, and experiencing his own fix-it 
tickets, that it was likely before the time of Measure 5 and Measure 50 when the general funds which 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 9 of 10 
 

actually pay for the police are healthy, whereas the people’s property taxes were actually subsidizing the 
cost of him going in to get your fix-it ticket resolved. CR Cramer says that she has been reviewing the 
various fix-it tickets coming in and very few are simple things as burnt out lightbulbs. The ones she’s 
seeing are no proof of insurance. Mayor Rogge adds that we are paying a police officer to stop the car and 
waiting for the defendant to decide when they are fixing the offense. If we have two officers on duty, 
either on a call or running someone to Clackamas, there may not be an officer available when the 
defendant comes in to get his violation signed off on. Councilor Clarks asks if there is a police officer in 
city hall at all times, Mayor Rogge responds no. Councilor Satter said when she had a fix-it ticket it was a 
lady in the office that verified the correction, not necessarily an officer. Mayor Rogge asks for a motion. 
Councilor Thompson motions to adopt Resolution 2015-10; Councilor Pottle seconded. Motion passes 5-
2 with Councilors Satter and Clark each as nays.   
 
REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
CM Huff and CR Cramer report nothing at this time. 
 
PWD Cline updates Council on Urban Renewal Projects. Yesterday, the first lift of Heintz street was 
paved. The new portion of the street will remain closed until substantial completion has been done. It may 
look ready to open, but due to unfinished items such as man hole covers sticking up, unfinished 
sidewalks, it needs to remain closed. Should be able to open in a few weeks as long as everything is on 
schedule. An open house has been scheduled for the Molalla Urban Renewal project, the next project 
they’ll start, that is scheduled for November 5, 2015 from 4-7:00 pm. This is for Molalla Avenue, 
currently in the design phase, is about 90% complete, should be going out to ad beginning of January 
2016 to hire a contractor for construction. CM Huff states that Gary Deardorff has graciously allowed 
them to use his corner building on Molalla and Main as it is in the general location of the project. 
Councilor Riggs says a lot of residents ask why that road was so extensive in the way it was built (Heintz) 
and asks if it is the city or the county that dictates that. Cline says it was the city who determines it and 
asks in what way. Councilor Riggs says they ask why it was done so expensively, fancy sidewalks, that 
roads don’t match others in Molalla. Cline and Huff clarify that the road/sidewalks they’re comparing the 
new ones to are likely ones that don’t meet current standards, and ones that we are looking to improve in 
the future. Looking at Heintz as a main pedestrian and bike way, so the sidewalks must be able to 
accommodate that activity, hence the 6 ft width. Huff says that the reasons some of the other roads in the 
city are failing, such as in Big Meadow, are because they followed those standards that were used on 
other roads in Molalla causing the roads to not last as long. Huff clarifies that the street standards within 
the city limits are the city’s standards, that county has nothing to do with streets inside city limits. 
Councilor Riggs asks how the city’s standards are determined. Cline responds by saying we use geo 
technical investigations prior to building a road and that geo technical engineer designs what the road 
structure should be. Sidewalk widths are determined by the use of the road. Mayor Rogge says that 
because Heintz will be a major artery running parallel to Hwy 211, diverting a lot of traffic, this road 
needed to be of a better grade. Councilor Pottle asks a question on behalf of some citizens as to why the 
road in front of Columbia Bank had to be made so wide as to not offer parking in front of the bank 
anymore. Cline responds that the roadway meets standards, that it is a 12 foot wide lane with a 2 foot shy 
distance to the curb for protection. The center line in the left turn lane can be adjusted over a foot, but at 
this point in time, has not done so as it is a new road. In the future, when striping needs to be redone, that 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 10 of 10 
 

adjustment will be made. Mayor Rogge confirms that parking in front of the bank that parking would still 
not be allowed. Cline confirms this, that the bank does provide its own parking for customers. Councilor 
Pottle relays concerns that there are many elderly people who frequent the bank and are concerned about 
no more handicapped parking in the front on the street. Cline clarifies that it is a public street, it is not to 
be used for handicapped parking. Councilor Pottle says he will give Cline’s contact information to those 
parties who were concerned.  
 
Councilor Satter reports that foundations were poured for the bridge, Bear Creek Bi Way. Now waiting 28 
days for the testing. Mayor Rogge asks if they have funds to complete the bridge; Councilor Satter 
confirms yes they do. Projected completion is 28 days, or whenever testing determines the final product is 
ready. Cline adds that they still need to construct the pathway, only the sub product is down at this time. 
Councilor Satter says funding is still needed for the asphalt portion of the pathway, approximately 
$8,000.00. The bridge is constructed and will arrive in pieces via truck to be assembled at the site.  
 
Councilor Riggs reports that he’s in cohort 3 with the Ford Institute and have done some narrowing, down 
to three, one is the issue of a dog park, and second is better communication needed with the City of 
Molalla so all parties are informed, and third is improvements (lighting, fencing) at the basketball court 
by the library. 
 
Mayor Rogge reports she’s been busy with disaster programs. All of October is the Great Shakeout where 
we prepare for earthquakes. It is a national push. Had shelter training at Foothills church, 32 participants 
who learned how to work with Red Cross to set up shelter and whatever church is designated. Tuesday, 
attended training on CPOD where you learn how to distribute, food, water, tarps and ice in the event of an 
emergency. Practiced exercises on where in Molalla the CPODS would be set up to prepare to feed people 
in the event of a disaster. On October 23rd at Grace Church, from 1-4 pm, we’ll be building and 
assembling a Red Cross shelter complete with cots and everything else needed. The next morning from 9-
1 pm, dignitaries from all over county coming to Molalla to Grace Church, 7 venues for these dignitaries 
to determine what is needed to prepare for a disaster. Molalla is test sight, people are impressed with 
trainings provided, cooperation with the fire department, church leaders and helpers. Stresses the 
importance of the pre-planning and preparation, as without it, it creates chaos. Commends Molalla, wants 
all possible community leaders/ Councilors to attend the event. Wants to approach re-writing the 
Emergency Preparedness Plan in the first quarter, after the holidays, so that it can be ready to go in the 
event of an emergency, hopefully by May.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Councilor Thompson made the motion to adjourn; Councilor Riggs seconded. Motion carried 7-0.  



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 28, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

ATTENDANCE:  Mayor Rogge, Present; Councilor Pottle, Present; Councilor Thompson, Present; 
Councilor Griswold, Present; Councilor Satter, Present; Councilor Riggs, Present. Councilor Clark, 
Present. 

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:  City Manager Dan Huff, Present; City Recorder Sadie Cramer, Present; 
Finance Director Heather Penni, Present; Public Works Director Jennifer Cline, Present. 

MINUTES  
 
Councilor Pottle motions to accept the minutes from September 10, 2015; Councilor Griswold seconded. 
Motion carried 7-0. Minor adjustments to be provided by Councilor Thompson. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Sandy Sumner, 1442 Meadowlawn Place, Molalla – states that a couple months ago requested No Outlet 
sign placed at a couple different culdesacs for safety purposes. Was told by City that they couldn’t afford 
it and that if she bought one, the City would install it. She paid $17.99 for it and wants it posted at 
Harvest and Meadowlawn, facing west. States there is a lot of confusion with people thinking that area is 
an outlet. She asks who to give the sign to, and Council instructs her to give to CM Huff. 
 
Joseph Harrison, 302 Lola Avenue, Molalla – wants to go on record to express his support for Councilor 
Pottle. Says he doesn’t know details on what happened, but knows him personally, and thinks of him as 
his mentor. Says Councilor Pottle jumps to the aid of people in this community and sets a great example 
for him and others about how to step up for those in your hometown. 
 
Rae Botsford, 624 Wedgewood Drive, Molalla – wants to express her support for Councilor Pottle and his 
importance to this community. Says Councilor Pottle went above and beyond to rally local children and 
citizens to take pride in the Molalla Skate Park and clean it up when it was in danger of closing. This is 
just one of many examples of how George has had an impact on this community. She considers him a 
great asset to this town. 
 
Bill Jones, 218 Hauser Ct., Molalla – George Pottle is a close friend, verifies that Councilor Pottle is a 
Vietnam veteran regardless of whether or not it was on his 214, and that he has several friends who did 
and experienced the same thing. He states that Pottle is a Vietnam veteran, he is a man of honor, he has 
done great things for the City and hopes that he re-runs and stays on Council. 
 
Leota Childress, 150 Indian Oak Ct., Molalla – speaking in support of George Pottle. Supports Councilor 
Pottle’s desire to finish out his term 100%. First met him 2 yrs ago at a town hall meeting regarding her 
desire to turn the PAL building into a warming center. Even though Pottle didn’t like the idea initally, his 
compassion showed through, and he is now a board member. She states he is an outstanding man and 
member of the community. Reads a letter from Chaplain David Fortier explaining how he found himself 
stranded on his motorcycle in Feyrer Park, and how George Pottle agreed to help him get his motorcycle 
towed and running again, no questions asked. Continues on to express Pottle’s willingness to help others, 
loyalty, honesty, and love for his community. Stresses to others to first verify things they hear before 
jumping to conclusions.  
 
 
 
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 28, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

NEW BUSINESS  
A. Library Advisory Board Citizen Appointment – Rogge – tabled until January.  

 
B. Item Exceeding $10,000 – Cline/ Huff –  
 
FD Penni explains that they have budgeted $85,000.00 for a used dump truck that is needed by the 
public works department. Because quality, used equipment sells quickly, the public works department 
asks to be allowed authorization to purchase the equipment for no more than $85,000.00 without first 
having to consult Council, as they equipment will likely be gone by the time Council has reviewed 
the request.  
 
Mayor Rogge clarifies that this will only be for a dump truck purchase and no other equipment 
purchase, and PW Cline confirms this. Mayor Rogge then says she doesn’t have a problem with it 
since the budget was already approved for this item; FD Penni says a vote is still needed since the 
item exceeds $10,000. 
 
Councilor Clark makes a motion to allow purchase of a dump truck for up to $85,000; Councilor 
Griswold seconded. Motion carried 7-0.  

  
C. City Manager Re-evaluation – Rogge 

  
Mayor Rogge clarifies that reason this was on agenda was that when the city manager’s evaluation 
was done months ago, the raise was delayed. Originally looked at $105,000. Rogge proposes the raise 
at $110,000 with a 2-yr commitment due to a desire to keep him at the City with his current 
experience specific to Molalla. 
 
Councilor Thompson says there are many more factors to the raise than just losing him to other cities. 
He expresses that CM Huff has a list of accomplishments that he would like CM Huff to share.  
 
CM Huff thanks the Council and supporting staff for assisting in being able to accomplish these tasks. 
[Refer to copy of email for accomplishments.] 
 
Councilor Thompson recommends budgeted amount $105,000 salary and retro back to July 1st . 
 
Councilor Clark thanks CM Huff for his hard work and what he has done for the City. Clark states he 
supports Councilor Thompson’s salary recommendation for CM Huff. 
 
Councilor Satter states that CM Huff is a valuable asset to the City, provides valuable leadership and 
wants to ensure he is retained to finish what he started.  
 
Councilor Clark recommends adding the requirement of a 1 yr commitment to the salary 
recommendation Thompson suggested; prompted by the reminder from Mayor Rogge that the salary 
Council is proposing does not guarantee CM Huff will stay in the future. Councilor Clark also states 
they cannot commit to a salary that was not budgeted for, that they need to follow what was budgeted.  
 
Councilor Riggs states he believes it takes about a year to get up to speed with what is happening, 
believes that CM Huff is at that point and that he believes its best to keep CM Huff in place. Says he 
agrees with the $105,000 salary, retro back to July 1, 2015, with 1 yr commitment. 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 28, 2015 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Councilor Griswold wishes to remain conservative. Appreciates CM Huff’s accomplishments. Does 
not wish to comment on a salary recommendation. Feels he should be free to leave if he so chooses. 
 
Councilor Pottle states that he appreciates CM Huff’s accomplishments, feels like he can look around 
and visibly see the impact he’s had on the City. Pottle says is in City Hall often and observes how 
well he works with staff to meet goals. He sides with the recommendation of $110,000 salary and 
feels the cause would be well worth the amendment to the budget needed to make it happen.  
 
Councilor Thompson points out that the increase in water/sewer rates this year is also a factor in his 
view of remaining conservative with CM Huff’s salary.  
 
Councilor Thompson motions to increase city manager’s salary to $105,000, retroactive to July 1, 
2015, with a 1 yr commitment to the position; Councilor Clark seconded. Motion passed 6-1 with 
Councilor Griswold as a Nay. 
 
D. Financials - Penni  

  
FD Penni summarizes Financial Report included in the Agenda Packet. States that overall we are in a 
moderately healthy position financially. Infrastructure, repairs, and public safety remain top priorities. 
States that this is the first time in 21 years that the General Fund will be in the black until property 
taxes are received in November. This is notable as it means the city is finally able to fully operate on 
funds provided.  
 

CONTINUING BUSINESS 
A. Utility Fee Increases - Discussion – Huff/ Cline  

 
CM Huff explains that included in their packets are example resolutions to consider in addition to 
recaps of what was discussed. Town Hall meeting scheduled for November 4, 2015. CM Huff 
reminds Council to consider the 5 yr plan of systematic increases to be able to use for their budget 
process in the upcoming budget year. It would prevent what has occurred in the past; no increases in 
10 yrs.  

 
RESOLUTION 

A. 2015-11:  Adopting Updates to the City of Molalla Addendum to the Clackamas County 
Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan – Huff 

  
CM Huff states this was last presented same time of year in 2012, but no follow through was done. 
What this is doing is re-presenting the issue to be addressed and helping Molalla be a part of 
Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan.  
 
Councilor Griswold makes a motion to pass Resolution 2015-11; Councilor Pottle seconded. Motion 
passed 7-0.  
 
B. 2015-12:  A Resolution Increasing Fees For the City of Molalla Utility Billing - Penni 

  
FD Penni explains the purpose of this resolution is to double the charges currently in place for late 
fees, termination fees, and reconnection fees for water utility services. Reason for this request is the 
great deal of work and labor involved in the process of handling a delinquent account. In comparison 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 28, 2015 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

to other same-sized cities this request is reasonable. States a need to make these fees more of an 
incentive for people to keep their accounts current. There is no history of any past increase. Proposed 
date for increase would be January 1, 2016, with nofication of the increase in November and 
December billings. 
 
Councilor Thompson observes there is no mention of the effective date of the fee increase in the 
Resolution, and also recommends that the fee increase be a topic of discussion in the upcoming Town 
Hall meeting alongside the topics of the water/sewer rate increases. Otherwise is in support of the 
Resolution as long as it is adjusted to reflect the effective date.  
 
Councilor Clark motions to table the topic until the next meeting; Councilor Satter seconded. Motion 
carried 7-0. 
 

ORDINANCES 
A. 2015-05:  An Ordinance Adding Chapter 9.16 To Title Nine Of The Molalla Municipal 

Code Prohibiting The Establishment Of Marijuana Facilities Within The City And 
Declaring An Emergency – Huff 

 
CM Huff says that they want to remove/ repeal the language from existing proposed resolution that 
prohibits the establishment of marijuana facilities within the City. Currently working with attorneys 
on a new proposed ordinance that outlines specific areas where such facilities would be allowed.  
 
Councilor Clark motions to table Ordinance 2015-05 indefinitely; Councilor Thompson seconded. 
Motion carried 6-1 with Councilor Griswold as Nay.  
 
Councilor Clark motions to have staff prepare a new Ordinance outlining CM Huff’s 
recommendations by January 1, 2016; Councilor Pottle seconded. Motion carried 6-1; Councilor 
Griswold as Nay. 

 
REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
CM Huff - Special Council Meeting and Town Hall Meeting – November 4, 2015, Council instructs on 
what reading materials they’d like to have provided and what type of structure they want the meeting ran. 

PW Cline - Update on Heintz Street project – says the previous night they reached substancial progress 
towards completion. Road is still not open due to lack of appropriate signage and striping. Estimated 
opening is a couple weeks as striping is weather-dependent. Noted the project is still within budget. 

Councilor Satter reminds everyone that Saturday is Halloween and for drivers to be aware and cautious of 
kids. 

Councilor Thompson makes statement regarding experience with Councilor Pottle. Expresses that 
Councilor Pottle is the longest-sitting member of the Council, Pottle has proved his integrity early on, and 
Thompson expresses his full support of Councilor Pottle. 

Councilor Pottle expresses his appreciation of the support of those who spoke that evening and reads a 
letter he prepared addressing the issues, provides proof disproving some of the accusations that were 
made, and announces that he will be stepping down as Council President effective immediately, saying 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 28, 2015 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

that there are other factors involved in the decision. Clarifies that he will remain on the Council for the 
remainder of his term. 

Mayor Rogge expresses her 100% support for Councilor Pottle, regardless of mistakes or accusations 
made. States she has made her own mistakes, and if was held accountable for each one, would not be 
sitting as Mayor today. Pottle has proved his loyalty and integrity and Rogge feels he deserves the 
public’s support. Asks the public to take with a grain of salt what is published in the newspaper, as many 
times only one skewed side is expressed. Says the positions they have in the City; Mayor, Council, City 
Staff – have to endure a great deal of ridicule and abuse, everyone of them suffers, it is a painful process, 
and cannot do anything about it aside from continue on with their duties. Rogge expresses her 
dissatisfaction of the garbage that constantly thrown at them, and that it is difficult to get good people to 
step up to these positions and endure the garbage, because of it. Says in her 6 yrs as part of the Council, 
this is the finest group of individuals representing that the City has seen in years, encourages the public to 
step forward and share this with others. Asks if anyone disputes this, to make their accusations in person, 
publicly, not from the keyboards in their homes. Rogge restates her full support of the full Council and 
Staff and asks people to recognize the garbage and rise above it. 

8:11 pm - Councilor Pottle motions to close the regular council meeting and begin the Executive Session; 
Councilor Clark seconded. Motion passed 7-0.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mayor Rogge read the following: 

PER ORS 192.660 (2)(e) – Real Property Transactions(s) and ORS 192.660 (2)(f) to consider information 
or records that are exempt by law from public inspection. 

ROLL CALL –  

8:18 pm - Mayor Rogge, Present; Councilor Pottle, Present; Councilor Thompson, Present; Councilor 
Griswold, Present; Councilor Satter, Present; Councilor Riggs, Present. Councilor Clark, Present. 

City Manager Dan Huff, Present; City Recorder Sadie Cramer, Present; Finance Director Heather Penni, 
Present; Reporter David Pearson with Canby Herald, Present. 

8:19 pm – Councilor Griswold removed himself from session. 

8:32 pm – Councilor Thompson motions to adjourn Executive Session and open regular council meeting; 
Councilor Pottle seconded. Motion carried 6-0. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Councilor Thompson made the motion to adjourn; Councilor Pottle seconded. Motion carried 
unanimously.  



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, November 11, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
Item Exceeding $10,000  
 
Penni explained that staff wants to contract with Project Delivery Group to assist the City of 
Molalla with the development of a master plan for the City Hall / Police department office spaces 
for safety improvements as well as improve office functionality and flow. We have found that 
convenience for the public, staff safety concerns and functional space are challenges on a 
daily basis. The goal is to provide plans, specifications, estimates, and construction oversite 
(as needed). The project will be broken into four (4) tasks with an estimated completion date of 
March 2016: 
 
Task #1 Project Management (Meeting, On-site analysis) 
Task #2 Existing Condition Plan (Create as-built drawings of existing building) 
Task #3 Office Space Planning and Layout 
Task #4 Renovation Master Plan 
 
Rogge would like the contractor to tell staff if the building can be retro fitted and bring the report back to 
Council once the tasks are complete for council to review. Thompson made the motion to insuruct staff to 
move forwards with Project Delivery Group that will cost in excess of $10,000. Pottle seconded. Motion 
carried 5-1. Griswold, nay.   
 
Council President Appointment  
 
Pottle motioned to appoint Thompson as Council President. Satter seconded. No other nominations. Motion 
carried 5-1. Griswold, nay. 
 
 
Authorize City Manager to sign final agreement with Molalla River School Dist. Regarding the Aquatic 
Center 
 
Thompson moved to allow Dan Huff to sign the final agreement with the Molalla River School District with 
the Aqutic Center. Pottle seconded. Motion carried 5-0. Griwold abstained due to a conflict of interest.  
 

 
RESOLUTION 
 
2015-12: Increasing Fees For The City Of Molalla Utility Billing 
 
2015-13: Establishing Sanitary Sewer Rates And Annual Inflation Adjustments Thereafter 
As Provided By Molalla Municipal Code Chapter 13.08 
 
 
There were two speakers regarding both resolutions. Rogge stated that we discuss them in a pair and address 
each one indiviually when making a decision. Entered into the agenda as Exhibit A.  
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, November 11, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Karen Bitz of 103 Stowers Rd in Molalla read verbietem an email dated 11/14/15 that was sent to the Council 
regarding her opposition of both proposed increases.  
 
Raelynn Botsford of 624 Wedgewood in Molalla spoke in regards to her opposition of the fees increase that 
will effect late fees and shut offs.  She urged the Council to consider raising only the shut off fee since that is 
where most of the city’s cost comes into play to cover related staff and equipment fees.  
 
The council briefly discussed both resolutions. Rogge stated that the sewer rate increase in necessay and there 
has not been a fee increase in years. We have to do this for the benefit and wellfare of the citizen to maintain 
and improve city infacstrute and facilities for a growing community.  
 
Additional brief discuss regarding the increase and the majoirty agreed that the rate increase needs to happen.  
 
Thompson motioned to table resolution 2015-12 until the next meeting and to approve 2015-13. Pottle 
seconded. Motion carried 5-1. Griswold, nay. 
  
Griswold thanked everyone for suppoting the Veteran’s day events.  
 
Riggs annoumced the Adult Center revieved a grant from Molalla Communications.  
 
Satter said the bring assembly will be done for the Bearcreek Byway project on December 12th.  
 
Pottle said that the warming center is open and there is a need of blankets and volunteers.  
 
Rogge announed the council has 2 trained and certified emergency responders. She encourged other to 
certify. She also shared information about Drive to Zero program the state is exploring to assist with 
bringing driving fatalites to zero as the overall goal. In closing she thanked everyone in attendance and 
the public for voicing their opinions so Council can make more informed decisions.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 Pottle motioned to adjourn. Riggs seconded. Motion carried 6-0. Meeting adjourned at 7:45pm.  

 

 
____________________________  __________________________ 
Sadie Cramer, City Recorder   Mayor Debbie Rogge  



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, December 9, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ATTENDANCE:  Mayor Rogge, Present; Councilor Pottle, Present; Councilor Thompson, Absent; 
Councilor Griswold, Present; Councilor Satter, Present; Councilor Riggs, Present. Councilor Clark, 
Present. 

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:  City Manager Dan Huff, Present; City Recorder Sadie Cramer, Present; 
Finance Director Heather Penni, Present; Public Works Director Jennifer Cline, Present, Camela Austin, 
City Auditor, Present. 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
A. Council Minutes – not yet available 
B. Library Minutes – not yet available  
C. Presentation from Clackamas Community College – not present; will reschule for later date. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Ed Campy, 724 W. Main Street, Molalla – has concerns with annexation process and that the future 
zoning will prevent him from rebuilding his home if something happened as it will be zoned commercial 
instead of residential. Expresses he’s all for the annexation, but doesn’t want to be put out if something 
were to happen to the home. CM Huff responds that its likely, in the event of a disaster, the homeowner 
will be allowed to rebuild, as long as the footprint of the new home matches what the existing footprint 
was. CM Huff will do more research and be in touch with him.  
 
NEW BUSINESS  

A. Award of RFP for Professional Engineering Services – Cline 
 
PW Cline states that on 11/05/2015 the city advertised an RFP for Professional Engineering Services 
for the City. Six proposals were submitted. Explains the screening process and as a result decided 
Project Delivery Group. PW Cline is looking for an authorization to sign, so that the City can proceed 
with drafting a contract. 
 
Councilor Clark states he cannot make a decision at this time as no documentation has been given to 
him such as the RFP or proposals.  
 
PW Cline and CM Huff agree to table the matter for future consideration. 

 
B. Merina & Co. presenting the FY 2014/ 2015 audit report. – Austin 
 
Auditor Austin explains about the new governmental standard requirement to have the City report 
their assets and liabilities associated with PERS liabilities on their financial statements. Explains this 
requirement makes comparing this report to years past uncomparable. The City’s requirements are 
explained on page 85. Detailed report available online or at City Hall upon request. 
 
Councilor Pottle and Councilor Clark stated they have not received copies of reports to study or 
reference. Staff responded saying the report was sent electronically, as requested by the Council 
president, three times in different formats. 
 
Councilor Griswold proposes tabling the matter until the next meeting as it seems the Council was not 
provided sufficient paperwork to be prepared for the meeting. 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, December 9, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
FD Penni suggests to Council to take the opportunity to ask questions of Auditor Austin while she is 
there or to review and email their questions as soon as possible, as Austin is very busy with other 
cities during the audit season. 
 
Mayor Rogge asks if there are any recommendations for the City such as policy or procedure changes 
after compiling the report. Auditor Austen replied by saying the recommendations have already been 
implemented months ago. These are implementing a fraud policy, already Council approved, a 
personal action form when adjustments are made to people’s salaries, which was implemented 2 days 
after the recommendation.  
 
FD Penni encouraged Council to contact Auditor Austen directly if not wanting to filter questions the 
CM Huff or herself. 

 
RESOLUTION 

A. 2015-12:  Increasing Fees for the City of Molalla Utility Billing – Discussion/ Approval/ 
Huff/ Penni 

 
Mayor Rogge read a statement from Councilor Thompson who is Absent, states he thinks late fee 
should remain the same at $5.00, but agrees that other fees, termination and reconnection fees, should 
be doubled due to the amount of labor required. 
 
Councilor Clark and Mayor Rogge say they both agree to what Councilor Thompson suggested. 
 
Councilor Clark makes a motion to amend Resolution 2015-12 to reflect fee change; no second. 
 
Councilor Riggs makes a motion to table and bring back new Resolution at next meeting; Councilor 
Clark seconded. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

ORDINANCES 
A. 2015 – [Pending #]: An Ordinance Amending The Molalla Land Use And Development 

Code To Impose Reasonable Regulations On Marijuana Facilities In The City And 
Declaring An Emergency – Huff 

 CM Huff requests this item be tabled until next meeting due to Council needing more information. 

B. 2015-06: Island Annexation – Huff 

CM Huff explains this ordinance corrects the island property annexation that was done about one year 
ago. The property in question is located on Hwy 213, the old photography property, county had 
identified as residential property. Property owner has expressed interest in putting a commercial 
building on the property, but couldn’t due to terms listed in annexation. The ordinance corrects the 
limitation of them waiting the 3 yr required time, so that they could come in today to start their 
commercial venture.  
 
Councilor Clark motions to accept Ordinance 2015-06 by Title Only; Councilor Pottle seconded. 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, December 9, 2015 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
CM Huff – announces Planning Commission meeting on 12/16/2015 to include land-use proposals for 
medical, recreational, and wholesale use of marijuana based on state law. Agenda shows supplemental 
budget being brought back in January. Next Council meeting 12/23/2015. 

Councilor Satter announces she is resigning her Council seat due to inability to find residency within city 
limits.  

Councilor Pottle says he finally located the financial document on his electronic tablet; apologizes to 
staff. Expresses frustration in not receiving the financial document in a timely matter. FD Penni explained 
that staff also only had it 5 minutes prior to the meeting. 

Mayor Rogge said that she was pleased with the Christmas tree lighting and that it took many to 
accomplish. Requests the WIFI booster from MCC for their tablets so they work better during meetings. 
Also clarified some of them may not be as technically inclined as others (referencing their electronic 
tablets); but to be patient, they are doing their best to adjust. Also reiterates that having the documents at 
least a week before allows the Council to be properly prepared for their meetings.  

Thanks Councilor Satter for her service. Says an announcement will be made as to when applications for 
a new Councilor will be accepted, likely after the first of the new year.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Councilor Clark made the motion to adjourn; Councilor Griswold seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  



Molalla Library Advisory Board 

Meeting Date:   10‐15‐2015 

Meeting brought to order by Sandy Nelson at 6:30 P.M. 

Members Present:  Paula Beck, Mary Gilson, Kelly Andrews, Sandy Nelson, Angela Patton (excused) 
 
City Council Liaison:  Not present                                  
 
Staff Present:  Diana Hadley    
 
The minutes from the September meeting were approved as read.   
 

 Director’s Report:  (See Diana if you didn’t receive one.) 
1. Diana explained “compassion fatique” brought on by wanting to reach out to others who 

use the library in this instance.  
 

 Old Business: 
1.  Dan Huff had a couple of suggestions concerning the new Library Advisory Board job 

description.  For #2, he preferred collaborative to autonomous; and for #9, he suggested 
assist the Library Director in development of the annual budget.  We thought these were 
good improvements so made the changes. 

2. Sandy asked for a motion to present the Strategic Plan to the City Council for review and 
approval.  Kelly made a motion to present the draft of the Strategic Plan to everyone, 
including Sadie, Dan and Debbie.  Paula seconded it.  Since all were in favor, the motion was 
carried.   

3. Sandy handed out a copy of the Lease Modification signed on the 18th of July 2011 between 
the City and the School District concerning the present library building and the adjacent 
park.  We were not aware of this modification previously.  We are trying to find out more 
about this and how urban renewal funds might be used in the purchase of a new site.  We 
would not want to have to move and have no place to move to. 
           

 New Business:   
1.  In review of the Board’s attendance policy, we are noting that Angela Patton’s absences are 

excused. 
2. Diana wondered if we would prefer meeting bi‐monthly.  We assured her we preferred 

monthly meetings. 
3. Though there has been discussion about having all 5‐member Boards in Molalla, we have 

not seen the change in writing.   
 
The next meeting will be on Thursday, November 19th, at the Molalla Public Library.  This will be the 
final meeting of 2015.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:32 P.M.  
 Submitted by Mary Gilson, Secretary. 
                
                



 

 

City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: Public Hearing  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dan Huff, City Manager   
APPROVED BY:  Dan Huff, City Manager                                               

Subject: Public Hearing/Ordinance – Marijuana Corridors  

Recommendation:   Council Approval 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:     December 23, 2015 

Fiscal Impact:  None  

Background:   
 

Included with this Agenda Bill is an Ordinance and associated map regarding proposed changes to the 

Development Code for medical and recreational marijuana corridors as well as an overlay identifying 

areas for grow sites, processing and wholesale operations. This information has been prepared by the 

City Attorney and has been vetted for State Law compliance. 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 16, 2015 and recommends that Council 

approve the proposal and adopt the associated ordinance. Staff has provided public notice to 

individual property owners as required by State Law and no public testimony opposing this proposal 

was heard at the Planning Commission meeting.  

The proposed Ordinance will repeal Ordinance No. 2015‐05, provide two corridors for medical and 

recreational marijuana sales and provide one overlay area for grow sites, processing and wholesale 

operations (please see the attached map). Staff is available to the City Council for any and all 

questions relating to this proposal.   



HW
Y 2

11
  

5TH ST

HEINTZ ST

ON
A W

AY

SPT CO RR

VAUGHAN RD

SHIRLEY ST

MEADOW DR

VICK RD

LOWE RD

HA
RT

 AV
E

JUNE DR

MEADOWLAWN PL

MA
RY

 D
R

PATROL ST
2ND ST

MT VIEW LN

HE
ZZ

IE 
LN

ST
OW

ER
S R

D

7TH ST

WEST LN

FRANCES ST

LE
RO

Y A
VE

ME
TZ

LE
R A

VE

JULIE LN

KE
NN

EL
 AV

E

FEYRER PARK RD

MA
TH

IAS
 RD

RI
DI

NG
S A

VE

MEADOWLARK PL

MOLALLA FOREST RD

SH
AV

ER
 AV

E

FE
NT

ON
 AV

E

LO
LA

 AV
E

ROSS ST

4TH ST

6TH ST

CE
NT

ER
 AV

E

3RD ST

GR
AN

GE
 AV

E

SW
IEG

LE
 AV

E

LYNN LN

MA
Y S

T BE
RK

LE
Y A

VE

8TH ST

AN
NE

 LN

CO
LE

 AV
E

ZE
PH

ER
 W

AY

MILLER ST

OAK ST

HA
RV

ES
T L

N

EN
GL

E A
VE

HOYT ST

EC
KE

RD
 AV

E

COHO ST

BR
ON

CO
 AV

E
KELSEY LOOP

VIL
LA

GE
 D

R

DI
XO

N 
AV

E

CA
RO

L C
T

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 W

AY

IN
DI

AN
 O

AK
 C

T

RACHEL LN

CHRISTOPHER ST

BOARDWALK AVE

ESCORT ST

TA
YL

OR
 CT

ST
OR

EY
 D

R

PE
GA

SU
S C

T

TR
IN

ITY
 C

T

PA
RK

 AV
E

HA
RV

EY
 LN

RI
VE

RS
 LN

CO
RR

AL
 C

T

AN
DR

IA
N 

DR

CHURCH ST

STACY LN

GARDEN CT

KA
LU

GI
N 

CT

ZIM
ME

RM
AN

 LN
CROMPTONS LN

SKYE LN

CO
LE

 CT

GLORY LN

BERWICK CT
REVILOT CT

5TH ST

SH
AV

ER
 AV

E

4TH ST

8TH ST

7TH ST

CO
LE

 AV
E

HE
ZZ

IE 
LN

MOLALLA FOREST RD

3RD ST

6TH ST

7TH ST

CO
LE

 AV
E

HW
Y 2

13
  

TOLIVER RD

MAIN ST

MO
LA

LL
A A

VE

HWY 211  

HWY 211  

HWY 211  

¯

0 2,0001,000
Feet

Proposed Districts
Retail District
Production District

City Zoning 
Commercially Zoned
Industrially Zoned

CityBoundary

1:12,500

Proposed Marijuana Retail and Production Districts



 

 

City of Molalla 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-07 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MOLALLA LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO IMPOSE 

REASONABLE REGULATIONS ON MARIJUANA FACILITIES IN THE CITY AND DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS: The Molalla City Council previously enacted a ban on marijuana facilities 

pursuant to House Bill 3400; and  

WHEREAS: The City Council desires to utilize its home rule authority and the authority 

granted to it by Senate Bill 1531 and HB 3400 to adopt this ordinance, which 

expressly sets forth those areas of the City in which marijuana dispensaries, 

retailers, grow sites, processing sites, and wholesale operations may be located, 

while prohibiting the location of marijuana facilities in other areas of the City; 

and 

WHEREAS:  The City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the city to retain the 

authority to impose a local three percent (3%) sales tax on recreational retail 

sales, as well as state revenue; and  

WHEREAS: At its meeting of December 16, 2015, the Molalla Planning Commission held a 

hearing as required by section 19.04.050 of the Molalla Municipal Code on this 

proposed ordinance, received public testimony, discussed the issues, and 

recommended approval of this proposed ordinance to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS: At its meeting of December 23, 2015, the Molalla City Council held a hearing as 

required by section 19.04.050 of the Molalla Municipal Code on this proposed 

ordinance, received public testimony, discussed the issues, and considered the 

Planning Commission recommendation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF MOLALLA ORDAINS as follows: 

Section 1. This ordinance repeals Ordinance 2015-05 which prohibited the establishment of 

marijuana facilities within the city.  

Section 2. The Land Use and Development Code is amended as set forth in Exhibit 1, which 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if it were set 

forth verbatim in full.  



 

 

Section 3. Exhibit 2 contains a map showing where the facilities regulated by this ordinance 

may locate in the city.  Exhibit 3 contains findings that the Molalla City Council 

adopts in support of this ordinance.  

Section 4. This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 

health and safety, and, pursuant to section 18 of the Molalla City Charter, an 

emergency is declared to exist, and this Ordinance takes effect upon its passage.    

 

Adopted this _________ day of ___________________, 2015. 

 

     

 _______________________________________ 

      Deborah Rogge 

      Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 ______________________________________ 

 Sadie Cramer 

 City Recorder 

 



 

 

Exhibit 1 

Section 16.12.030 of the Molalla Municipal Code is hereby amended by adding a definition for the 

following terms:  

MARIJUANA ITEMS: Means marijuana, cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates and 

cannabinoid extracts as those terms are defined in Oregon law. 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY OR RETAILER: Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon 

Health Authority and used or intended to be used for purposes of delivering, dispensing, or transferring 

marijuana items to Oregon medical marijuana registry identification card holders pursuant to ORS 

475.300-475.346. 

RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY OR RETAILER: Any facility or operation registered with the 

Oregon Liquor Control Commission that lawfully sells marijuana items to a consumer in Oregon. 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA PRODUCERS:   Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon Health 

Authority and used or intended to be used for the purpose of cultivating marijuana at a specific location 

registered by the Authority and used by the grower to produce marijuana for medical use by a specific 

patient.  Also known as a medical marijuana “grow site.” 

MARIJUANA PRODUCERS: Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon Liquor Control 

Commission that lawfully produces marijuana.  Also known as a recreational marijuana “grow site.” 

MARIJUANA PROCESSORS: Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon Liquor Control 

Commission that lawfully processes marijuana items. 

MARIJUANA WHOLESALER: Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon Liquor Control 

Commission that lawfully purchases marijuana items in this state for resale to a person other than a 

consumer. 

Section 17.12.020 of the Molalla Municipal Code is hereby amended by adding Medical Marijuana 

Dispensary and Recreational Marijuana Dispensary as permitted uses in the Central Business District and 

in the C-2 General Commercial District as follows (new language in bold/italics): 

17.12.020 Land uses and development standards. 

CBD, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

Development Standards 

A.    None - Minimum lot area (sq ft) *Development must conform to lot width, depth, yard setback 

and coverage standards 

B.     50 ft - Minimum lot width 

C.     100 ft - Minimum lot depth 

D.    45 ft - Maximum building height 



 

 

E.     Yes - Building height transition 

F.     100% - Maximum lot coverage 

G.    5% - Minimum landscape area (% of site) 

H.    Minimum Setback (ft)1 

Front Side Street Side Rear Along Arterials 

0 0 0 0 See TSP 

  

I.      Fences and Gardening/Retaining Walls2 

Max Height - Front Max Height - Side Max Height - Street 

Side 

Max Height - Rear 

42 in 6 ft 6 ft 6 ft 

  

J.      Permitted Uses 

1.     Basic utilities 

2.     Brewery 

3.     Commercial indoor recreation (under 25,000 sq ft) 

4.     Community service 

5.     Daycare (adult or child) 

6.     Educational services, not a school (e.g., tutoring or similar services) 

7.     Governmental buildings 

8.     Hotel or motel 

9.     Indoor recreation facilities (under 25,000 sq ft) 

10.   Laundromat not including dry cleaning on site 

11.   Medical centers 

12.   Medical or Recreational Marijuana Dispensary17 

13.   Mortuary (not crematory) 

14.   Offices 

a.     Cafeterias 

b.     Health facilities 

c.     Other facilities primarily for the use of employees of the firm or business 

15.   Parks and open space 

16.   Private club, lodge, convent, social or recreational building or community assembly hall 

17.   Public park, playground, or recreational area, and buildings used in connection therewith 

18.   Quick vehicle servicing or vehicle repair (see also drive-up/drive-in/drive-through uses, 

per Section 17.12.090) - fully enclosed 

19.   Religious institutions and houses of worship 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.12.090&confidence=6


 

 

20.   Restaurants (not including drive-through) 

21.   Retail sales and service (see also drive-up uses) 

22.   Small animal veterinary office or hospital 

23.   Studios including music, dancing, art, photography, or health 

24.   Television and radio studios 

25.   Temporary uses (limited to “P” and “CU” uses) 

26.   Theater, except drive-in 

27.   Transportation facilities (operation, maintenance, preservation, and construction) 

28.   Use customarily incidental and subordinate to a PRINCIPLE use permitted outright 

K.    Accessory Uses 

1.     Accessory structures (with a permitted use) 

2.     Accessory uses for retail sales 

a.     Manufacturing or repackaging of goods for on-site sales 

b.     Parking 

c.     Storage of goods 

3.     Signs (subject to requirements of Chapter 18.32) 

L.     Conditional Uses 

1.     Bars and taverns3 

2.     Bed and breakfast inns 

3.     Buildings and structures exceeding the height limits in Table 17.12.2 

4.     Bus depot but not a bus garage or storage yard 

5.     Colleges and schools 

6.     Commercial indoor recreation (25,000 sq ft or greater) 

7.     Commercial outdoor recreation 

8.     Commercial parking 

9.     Condominium developments (commercial) 

10.   Drive-up/drive-in/drive-through (drive-up windows, kiosks, ATMs, similar uses/facilities) per 

Section 17.12.090 

11.   Entertainment, major event 

12.   Motion picture production studios and allied services 

13.   Multifamily (4 or more) residential4 

14.   Private nursery school, kindergarten, or daycare center5 

15.   Quick vehicle servicing or vehicle repair (see also drive-up/drive-in/drive-through uses, per 

Section 17.12.090) - not enclosed 

16.   Public utility and communication facilities, such as a branch telephone exchange, static transformer, 

booster station, or pumping station 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=chapter_18.32&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.12.090&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.12.090&confidence=6


 

 

17.   Radio frequency transmission facilities 

18.   Rail lines and corridors 

19.   Residential uses above and behind storefronts 

20.   Senior housing 

21.   Swimming pools 

22.   Telecommunication facilities 

23.   Uses operating between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 

  

C-2, GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 

Development Standards 

A.    10,000 sq ft - Minimum lot area (sq ft) *Development must conform to lot width, depth, yard setback 

and coverage standards 

B.     60 ft - Minimum lot width 

C.     120 ft - Minimum lot depth 

D.    45 ft - Maximum building height 

E.     Yes - Building height transition 

F.     80% - Maximum lot coverage 

G.    15% - Minimum landscape area (% of site) 

  

H.    Minimum Setback (ft)6 

Front Side Street Side Rear Along Arterials 

10 ft 10 ft 20 ft 10 ft See TSP 

  

I.      Fences and Gardening/Retaining Walls7 

Max Height - Front Max Height - Side Max Height - Street 

Side 

Max Height - Rear 

42 in 6 ft 6 ft 6 ft 

  

J.      Permitted Uses 

1.     Basic utilities 

2.     Brewery 

3.     Commercial indoor recreation (under 25,000 sq ft) 

4.     Community service 

5.     Daycare (adult or child) 

6.     Drive-through restaurant 



 

 

7.     Drive-up/drive-in/drive-through (drive-up windows, kiosks, ATMs, similar uses/facilities) per 

Section 17.12.090 

8.     Educational services, not a school (e.g., tutoring or similar services) 

9.     Hotel or motel 

10.   Indoor recreation facilities (under 25,000 sq ft) 

11.   Laundromat not including dry cleaning on site 

12.   Medical centers 

13.   Medical or Recreational Marijuana Dispensary17 

14.   Mortuary (not crematory) 

15.   Motion picture production studios and allied services 

16.   Offices 

a.     Cafeterias 

b.     Health facilities 

c.     Other facilities primarily for the use of employees of the firm or business 

17.   Parks and open space 

18.   Public park, playground, or recreational area, and buildings used in connection therewith 

19.   Quick vehicle servicing or vehicle repair (see also drive-up/drive-in/drive-through uses, per 

Section 17.12.090) - fully enclosed 

20.   Recreational vehicle camping parks 

21.   Religious institutions and houses of worship 

22.   Restaurants (not including drive-through) 

23.   Retail sales and service (see also drive-up uses) 

24.   Self service storage 

25.   Small animal veterinary office or hospital 

26.   Studios including music, dancing, art, photography, or health 

27.   Temporary uses (limited to “P” and “CU” uses) 

28.   Theater, except drive-in 

29.   Transportation facilities (operation, maintenance, preservation, and construction) 

30.   Vehicle repair8 

31.   Vehicle sales9 

32.   Use customarily incidental and subordinate to a PRINCIPLE use permitted outright 

K.    Accessory Uses 

1.     Accessory structures (with a permitted use) 

2.     Accessory uses for retail sales 

a.     Gasoline, parts, tire sales and vehicle washing when accessory to vehicle sales or repair 

b.     Manufacturing or repackaging of goods for on-site sales 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.12.090&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.12.090&confidence=6


 

 

c.     Parking 

d.     Storage of goods 

3.     Signs (subject to requirements of Chapter 18.32) 

L.     Conditional Uses 

1.     Bars and taverns10 

2.     Buildings and structures exceeding the height limits in Table 17.12.2 

3.     Bus depot but not a bus garage or storage yard, except as provided in subsection (L)(21) of this 

section 

4.     Cemetery 

5.     Colleges and schools 

6.     Commercial indoor recreation (25,000 sq ft or greater) 

7.     Commercial outdoor recreation 

8.     Commercial parking 

9.     Condominium developments (commercial) 

10.   Drive-in movie theatre 

11.   Entertainment, major event 

12.   Governmental buildings 

13.   Indoor recreation facilities greater than 25,000 sq ft 

14.   Laundromat, including dry cleaning on-site 

15.   Private club, lodge, convent, social or recreational building or community assembly hall 

16.   Public utility and communication facilities, such as a branch telephone exchange, static transformer, 

booster station, or pumping station 

17.   Quick vehicle servicing or vehicle repair (see also drive-up/drive-in/drive-through uses, per 

Section 17.12.090) - not enclosed 

18.   Radio frequency transmission facilities 

19.   Rail lines and corridors 

20.   Telecommunication facilities 

21.   Television and radio stations 

22.   Uses operating between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 

23.   Senior housing 

Table 17.12.1 identifies the land uses that are allowed in the Commercial Districts. The specific land use 

categories are described and uses are defined in Title 16. 

Table 17.12.1 - Commercial Districts—Allowed Land Uses 

  Status of Use 

in District 

Uses C-1 C-2 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=chapter_18.32&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.12.090&confidence=6


 

 

Accessory structures (with a permitted use) AU AU 

Bars and taverns11 CU CU 

Basic utilities P P 

Bed and breakfast inn CU N 

Brewery P P 

Buildings and structures exceeding the height limits in Table 17.12.2 CU CU 

Bus depot but not a bus garage or storage yard CU CU 

Colleges and schools CU CU 

Commercial indoor recreation (under 25,000 sq ft) P P 

Commercial indoor recreation (25,000 sq ft and over) CU CU 

Commercial outdoor recreation CU CU 

Commercial parking CU CU 

Community service P P 

Condominium developments (commercial) CU CU 

Daycare (adult or child) P P 

Drive-in movie theatre N CU 

Drive-up/drive-in/drive-through (drive-up windows, kiosks, ATMs, similar 

uses/facilities) per Section 17.12.090 

CU P 

Educational services, not a school (e.g., tutoring or similar services) P P 

Entertainment, major event CU CU 

Governmental buildings P CU 

Hotel or motel P P 

Indoor recreation facilities P P 

Laundromat, including dry cleaning on-site N CU 

Laundromat, not including dry cleaning on-site P P 

Medical centers P P 

Medical Marijuana Dispensary P17 P17 

Mortuary (not crematory) P P 

Motion picture production studios and allied services CU P 

Multifamily (4 or more units) P N 

Offices P P 

Cafeterias AU AU 

Health facilities AU AU 

Other facilities primarily for the use of the employees of the firm or business AU AU 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.12.090&confidence=6


 

 

Parks and open space P P 

Private club, lodge, convent, social or recreational building or community assembly hall P CU 

Private nursery school, kindergarten, or daycare center12 CU N 

Public park, playground, or recreational area, and buildings used in connection therewith P P 

Public utility and communication facilities, such as a branch telephone exchange, static 

transformer, booster station, or pumping station 

CU CU 

Quick Vehicle Servicing or Vehicle Repair (See also Drive-Up/Drive-In/Drive-Through 

Uses, per Section 17.12.090) 

    

Fully enclosed P P 

Not enclosed CU CU 

Radio frequency transmission facilities CU CU 

Rail lines and corridors CU CU 

Recreational vehicle camping parks N P 

Recreational Marijuana Dispensary P
17 

P
17 

Religious institutions and houses of worship P P 

Residential uses above and behind storefronts CU N 

Restaurants (not including drive-through) P P 

Retail sales and service (see also drive-up uses) P P 

Accessory Uses for Retail Sales     

Gasoline, parts, tire sales and vehicle washing when accessory to vehicle sales or repair N AU 

Manufacturing or repackaging of goods for on-site sales AU AU 

Parking AU AU 

Storage of goods AU AU 

Self service storage N P 

Senior housing CU CU 

Signs (subject to requirements of Chapter 18.32) AU AU 

Small animal veterinary office or hospital P P 

Studios including music, dancing, art, photography, or health P P 

Swimming pools CU N 

Telecommunication facilities CU CU 

Television and radio studios P CU 

Temporary uses (limited to “P” and “CU” uses) P P 

Theater, except drive-in P P 

Transportation facilities (operation, maintenance, preservation, and construction) P P 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.12.090&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=chapter_18.32&confidence=6


 

 

Use customarily incidental and subordinate to a PRINCIPLE use permitted outright P P 

Uses operating between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. CU CU 

Vehicle repair13 N P 

Vehicle sales14 N P 

Key: 

P      =      Permitted, subject to site/development review 

CU   =      Conditional Use Permit required 

N     =      Not permitted 

AU   =      Accessory Uses 

  

The development standards in Table 17.12.2 apply to all new structures, buildings, and development, and 

major remodels, in the Commercial Districts. 

Table 17.12.2 - Commercial Districts—Development Standards 

Standard C-1 C-2 

Minimum Lot Area (sq ft) *Development must conform to lot width, 

depth, yard setback and coverage standards 

None 10,000 

Minimum Lot Width (ft) 50 60 

Minimum Lot Depth (ft) 100 120 

Maximum Building Height (ft) 45 45 

Building Height Transition Yes Yes 

Maximum Lot Coverage (%) 100 80 

Minimum Landscape Area (% of site) 5 15 

Minimum Setback (ft)
15

     

Front 0 10 

Side 0 10 

Street Side 0 20 

Rear 0 10 

Setbacks Along Arterials See TSP See TSP 

Fences and Gardening/Retaining Walls
16

     

Max Height - Front 42 in 42 in 

Max Height - Side 6 ft 6 ft 

Max Height - Street Side 6 ft 6 ft 

Max Height - Rear 6 ft 6 ft 

  

Notes: 

1     No balconies may extend into the public right-of-way. 



 

 

2     See also Sections 18.04.020 Vision Clearance and 18.08.050 Fences and Walls. 

3     Bars and taverns established after the effective date of this Code shall not be located within 500 feet of another use classified 

as a bar or tavern. 

4     Setbacks for multifamily development in this district shall comply with the standards of Section 17.08.030 through 

Section 17.08.100 as well as to meet the development standards of Section 17.08.020. 

5     On lots having a minimum of 10,000 sq ft, provided there is established in connection therewith, a play lot having a 

minimum area of 400 sq ft plus an additional 40 sq ft for each child in excess of 10, which play lot is separated from adjoining 

properties by a sight-obscuring security fence. 

6     No balconies may extend into the public right-of-way. 

7     See also Sections 18.04.020 Vision Clearance and 18.08.050 Fences and Walls. 

8     Includes passenger vehicle, light and medium truck, motorcycle, boat and recreational vehicle sales and repair in an enclosed 

building, quick lubrication services, transmission or muffler services, auto body services, detailing and upholstery shops. Does 

not include junking, wrecking, storage, towing, or salvaging operations. 

9     Does not include junking, wrecking, storage, towing, or salvaging operations. 

10   Bars and taverns established after the effective date of this Code shall not be located within 500 feet of another use classified 

as a bar or tavern. 

11   Bars and taverns established after the effective date of this Code shall not be located within 500 feet of another use classified 

as a bar or tavern. 

12   On lots having a minimum of 10,000 sq ft, provided there is established in connection therewith a play lot having a minimum 

area of 400 sq ft plus an additional 40 sq ft for each child in excess of 10, which play lot is separated from adjoining properties by 

a sight-obscuring security fence. 

13   Includes passenger vehicle, light and medium truck, motorcycle, boat and recreational vehicle sales and repair in an enclosed 

building, quick lubrication services, transmission or muffler services, auto body services, detailing and upholstery shops. Does 

not include junking, wrecking, storage, towing, or salvaging operations. 

14   Does not include junking, wrecking, storage, towing, or salvaging operations. 

15   No balconies may extend into the public right-of-way. 

16   See also Sections 18.04.020 Vision Clearance and 18.08.050 Fences and Walls. 

17   Must be located on real property adjacent to, or with legal access through property adjacent to: (a) the public right of way 

on W. Main St. between OR HWY 213 and Industrial Way; (b) the public right of way on OR 213 between Toliver Rd and 

City boundary furthest to the South; (c) the public right of way on Molalla Ave between Heintz St and S 3rd St.; (d) or the 

public right of way on W. Main St. (OR HWY 211) between Molalla Ave and Hart St. Furthermore, location shall not be 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising another medical or recreational marijuana dispensary. In addition, any and 

all medical and recreational marijuana dispensaries must be registered respectively with the Oregon Health Authority under 

ORD 475.314 and comply with all OHA rules and the Oregon Liquor Control Commission and comply with all OLCC rules.  

  

All new developments shall: 

1.     Always avoid utility easements when building is near property lines; 

2.     Porches, balconies, and patios must be less than 50 percent enclosed on side elevations; 

3.     On street side fences, retaining/garden walls the six-foot height may be expanded to eight feet with 

approval through a building permit. (Ord. 2011-04; Ord. 2010-15 §1; Ord. 2010-04 §1) 

 

Section 17.16.020 of the Molalla Municipal Code is hereby amended by adding Medical Marijuana 

Producers, Marijuana Producers, Marijuana Processors and Marijuana Wholesalers as permitted uses in 

the M-1 and M-2 zoning districts, as follows (new language in bold/italics): 

 

17.16.020 Land uses and development standards. 

  

M-1, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

Development Standards 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_18.04.020&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=_18.08.050&confidence=5
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.08.030&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.08.100&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.08.020&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_18.04.020&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=_18.08.050&confidence=5
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_18.04.020&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=_18.08.050&confidence=5


 

 

A.    15,000 sq ft - Minimum lot area (sq ft) *Development must conform to lot width, depth, yard 

setback and coverage standards 

B.     No minimum - Minimum lot width 

C.     No minimum - Minimum lot depth 

D.    45 ft - Maximum building height 

E.     No - Building height transition 

F.     85% - Maximum lot coverage 

G.    15% - Minimum landscape area (% of site) 

H.    Minimum Setback (ft)1 

Front Side Street Side Rear Along Arterials 

20 ft 10 ft 20 ft 10 ft See TSP 

  

I.      Fences and Gardening/Retaining Walls2 

Max Height - Front Max Height - Side Max Height - Street Side Max Height - Rear 

42 in 6 ft 6 ft 6 ft 

  

J.      Permitted Uses 

1.     Basic utilities 

2.     Computer component assembly plants 

3.     Corporate or government headquarters or regional offices with 50 or more employees 

4.     Distribution or warehousing 

5.     Engineering, architectural and surveying services 

6.     Experimental, film or testing laboratories 

7.     Industries that manufacture from, or otherwise process, previously prepared materials 

8.     Industrial and professional equipment and supply stores, which may include service and 

repair of the same 

9.     Manufacture and production, fully enclosed 

10. Medical Marijuana Producers, Marijuana Producers, Marijuana Processors and 

Marijuana Wholesalers
10 

11.   Mortuary 

12.   Non-commercial, educational, scientific and research organizations 

13.   Printing, publishing, bookbinding, graphic or photographic reproduction, blueprinting or 

photo processing 

14.   Research and development activities 

15.   Quick vehicle servicing or vehicle repair 

16.   Self service storage 



 

 

17.   Software and hardware development 

18.   Transportation facilities (operation, maintenance, preservation, and construction, in 

accordance with the City’s transportation systems plan) 

19.   Veterinary clinics and hospitals for small animals (both large and small animals) 

20.   Warehouse and freight movement 

21.   Wholesale sales (per Section 17.16.020) 

K.    Accessory Uses 

1.     Accessory structures 

2.     Agriculture - Nurseries and similar horticulture (see also, wholesale and retail uses) 

3.     Offices 

4.     Parks and open space 

L.     Conditional Uses 

1.     Aircraft and parts 

2.     Buildings and structures exceeding the height limits 

3.     Bus depot, but not bus garage or storage yard 

4.     Colleges 

5.     Manufactured home used as a permanent residence for a night watchman or caretaker 

6.     Mobile food unit 

7.     Outdoor recreation, commercial 

8.     Parking lot (when not an accessory use) 

9.     Radio frequency transmission facilities 

10.   Rail lines and utility corridors 

11.   Recycling depots 

12.   Religious institutions and houses of worship 

13.   Telecommunications facilities 

14.   Temporary uses per Section 19.36.010 

15.   Trade schools including technical, professional, vocational, business schools and college 

or university programs serving industrial needs 

  

M-2, HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

Development Standards 

A.    25,000 sq ft - Minimum lot area (sq ft) *Development must conform to lot width, depth, yard 

setback and coverage standards 

B.     No minimum - Minimum lot width 

C.     No minimum - Minimum lot depth 

D.    45 ft - Maximum building height 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.16.020&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_19.36.010&confidence=6


 

 

E.     No   - Building height transition 

F.     85% - Maximum lot coverage 

G.    15% - Minimum landscape area (% of site) 

  

H.    Minimum Setback (ft)3 

Front Side Street Side Rear Along Arterials 

20 ft 10 ft 20 ft 10 ft See TSP 

  

I.      Fences and Gardening/Retaining Walls4 

Max Height - Front Max Height - Side Max Height - Street 

Side 

Max Height - Rear 

42 in 6 ft 6 ft 6 ft 

  

J.      Permitted Uses 

1.     Basic utilities 

2.     Computer component assembly plants 

3.     Corporate or government headquarters or regional offices with 50 or more employees 

4.     Experimental, film or testing laboratories 

5.     Industries that manufacture from, or otherwise process previously prepared materials 

6.     Industrial and professional equipment and supply stores, which may include service repair 

of the same 

7.     Manufacturing and production, fully enclosed 

8. Medical Marijuana Producers, Marijuana Producers, Marijuana Processors and 

Marijuana Wholesalers10 

9.     Parking lot (when not an accessory use) 

10.     Printing, publishing, bookbinding, graphic or photographic reproduction, blueprinting or 

photo processing 

11.   Quick vehicle servicing or vehicle repair 

12.   Transportation facilities (operation, maintenance, preservation, and construction, in 

accordance with the City’s TSP) 

13.   Veterinary clinics and hospitals for small animals (both large and small animals) 

14.   Warehouse and freight movement 

15.   Wholesale sales (per Section 17.16.020) 

K.    Accessory Uses 

1.     Accessory structures 

2.     Agriculture - Nurseries and similar horticulture (see also, wholesale and retail uses) 

3.     Offices 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.16.020&confidence=6


 

 

4.     Parks and open space 

L.     Conditional Uses 

1.     Aircraft and parts 

2.     Buildings and structures exceeding the height limits 

3.     Bus depot, but not bus garage or storage yard 

4.     Crematory 

5.     Drive-in theatre 

6.     Entertainment, major event 

7.     Manufactured home used as a permanent residence for a night watchman or caretaker 

8.     Manufacturing and production, not enclosed 

9.     Mining 

10.   Mobile food unit 

11.   Mortuary 

12.   Radio frequency transmission facilities 

13.   Rail lines and utility corridors 

14.   Recycling depots 

15.   Research and development activities 

16.   Self service storage 

17.   Software and hardware development 

18.   Telecommunications facilities 

19.   Temporary uses per Section 19.36.010 

  

EMPLOYMENT DISTRICT 

Development Standards 

A.    25,000 square feet - Minimum lot area (sq ft) *Development must conform to lot width, depth, 

yard setback and coverage standards. 

B.     100 ft - Minimum lot width 

C.     100 ft - Minimum lot depth 

D.    45 feet - Maximum building height 

E.     Yes - Building height transition 

F.     85% - Maximum lot coverage 

G.    15% - Minimum landscape area (% of site) 

H.    Minimum Setback (ft)5 - Along All Public Rights-of-Way6 

Front Side Street Side Rear Along Arterials 

20 ft 10 ft 20 ft 10 ft See TSP 

  

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_19.36.010&confidence=6


 

 

I.      Fences and Gardening/Retaining Walls7 

Max Height - Front Max Height - Side Max Height - Street 

Side 

Max Height - Rear 

42 in 6 ft 6 ft 6 ft 

  

J.      Permitted Uses 

1.     Colleges 

2.     Corporate or government headquarters or regional offices with 50 or more employees 

3.     Computer component assembly plants 

4.     Engineering, architectural and surveying services 

5.     Experimental, film or testing laboratories 

6.     Financial, insurance, real estate or other professional offices, as an accessory use to a 

permitted use, located in the same building as the permitted use and limited to 10% of the total 

floor area of the development. Financial institutions shall primarily serve the needs of 

businesses and employees within the development and drive-through features are prohibited 

7.     Industrial and professional equipment and supply stores, which may include service and 

repair of the same 

8.     Industries that manufacture from, or otherwise process, previously prepared materials 

9.     Information and data processing centers 

10.   Manufacturing and production (fully enclosed) 

11.   Non-commercial, educational, scientific and research organizations 

12.   Parks and open space 

13.   Printing, publishing, bookbinding, graphic or photographic reproduction, blueprinting or 

photo processing 

14.   Trade schools including technical, professional, vocational, business schools and college 

or university programs serving industrial needs 

15.   Research and development activities 

16.   Rail lines and utility corridors 

17.   Religious institutions and houses of worship 

18.   Retail sales and services, including eating establishments for employees (i.e., a cafe or 

sandwich shop), located in a single building or in multiple buildings that are part of the same 

development shall be limited to a maximum of 20,000 square feet or 5% of the building square 

footage, whichever is less and the retail sales and services shall not occupy more than 10% of 

the net developable portion of all contiguous industrial lands 

19.   Software and hardware development 

20.   Transportation facilities (operations, maintenance, preservation, and construction, in 

accordance with the City’s TSP) 

K.    Accessory Uses 



 

 

No accessory structure shall be detached from the main building and must be built to the same look 

of the existing structure when connected to an existing structure. 

L.     Conditional Uses 

Any other use which, in the opinion of the Planning Commission, is of similar character of those 

specified as outright uses and conditional uses. In addition the proposed conditional uses: 

      Will have minimal adverse impact on the appropriate development of primary uses on 

abutting properties and the surrounding area considering location, size, design and operating 

characteristics of the use; 

      Will not create odor, dust, smoke, fumes, noise, glare, heat or vibrations which are 

incompatible with primary uses allowed in this district; 

      Will be located on a site occupied by a primary use, or, if separate, in a structure which is 

compatible with the character and scale or uses allowed within the district and on a site no 

larger than necessary for the use and operational requirements of the use; and 

      Will provide vehicular and pedestrian access, circulation, parking and loading areas 

which are compatible with similar facilities for uses on the same site or adjacent sites. 

M.    Distribution or warehousing 

N.    Building and structures exceeding the height limitation 

O.    Bus depot, but not bus garage or storage yard 

P.     Outdoor recreation commercial 

Q.    Parking lot (when not an accessory use) 

R.     Radio frequency transmission facilities 

S.     Temporary uses per Section 19.36.010 

T.     Wholesale sales 

Table 17.16.1 identifies the land uses that are allowed in the Industrial Districts. The specific land use 

categories are described and uses are defined in Chapters 16.12 and 16.16. 

Table 17.16.1 - Land Uses Allowed in Industrial Districts 

  Status of Use in District 

Uses M-1 M-2 EZ 

Accessory structures AU AU AU 

Agriculture - Nurseries and similar horticulture (see also, wholesale and 

retail uses) 

AU AU N 

Aircraft and parts CU CU N 

Basic utilities P P N 

Buildings and structures exceeding the height limitations CU CU CU 

Bus depot, but not bus garage or storage yard CU CU CU 

Colleges CU N P 

Computer component assembly plants P P P 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_19.36.010&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=chapter_16.12&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=chapter_16.16&confidence=6


 

 

Corporate or government headquarters or regional offices with 50 or more 

employees 

P P P 

Crematory N CU N 

Distribution or warehousing P P P 

Drive-in theatre N CU N 

Engineering, architectural and surveying services P N P 

Experimental, film or testing laboratories P P P 

Financial, insurance, real estate or other professional offices, as an 

accessory use to a permitted use, located in the same building as the 

permitted use and limited to 10% of the total floor area of the 

development. Financial institutions shall primarily serve the needs of 

businesses and employees within the development and drive-through 

features are prohibited. 

N N P 

  Status of Use in District 

Uses M-1 M-2 EZ 

Industries that manufacture from, or otherwise process, previously 

prepared materials 

P P P 

Industrial and professional equipment and supply stores, which may 

include service and repair of the same 

P P N 

Information and data processing centers N N P 

Manufactured home used as a permanent residence for a night watchman 

or caretaker 

CU CU N 

Medical Marijuana Producers, Marijuana Producers, Marijuana 

Processors and Marijuana Wholesalers 

P
10

 P
10

 N 

Manufacturing and production       

Fully enclosed P P P 

Not fully enclosed N CU N 

Mining N CU N 

Mobile food unit CU CU N 

Mortuary P CU N 

Non-commercial, educational, scientific and research organizations P N P 

Offices AU AU P 

Outdoor recreation commercial CU N CU 

Parking lot (when not an accessory use) CU P CU 

Parks and open space P AU P 

Printing, publishing, bookbinding, graphic or photographic reproduction, 

blueprinting or photo processing 

P P P 



 

 

Quick vehicle servicing or vehicle repair P P N 

Radio frequency transmission facilities CU CU CU 

Rail lines and utility corridors CU CU P 

Recycling depots CU CU N 

Religious institutions and houses of worship CU N P 

Research and development activities P CU P 

Retail sales and services, including eating establishments for employees 

(i.e. a cafe or sandwich shop), located in a single building or in multiple 

buildings that are part of the same development shall be limited to a 

maximum of 20,000 square feet or 5% of the building square footage, 

whichever is less and the retail sales and services shall not occupy more 

than 10% of the net developable portion of all contiguous industrial lands 

N N P 

Self service storage P CU N 

Software and hardware development P CU P 

Telecommunications facilities CU CU CU 

Temporary uses per Section 19.36.010 CU CU N 

Trade schools including technical, professional, vocational, business 

schools and college or university programs serving industrial needs 

CU N P 

Transportation facilities (operations, maintenance, preservation, and 

construction, in accordance with the City’s TSP) 

P P P 

Veterinary clinics and hospitals for small animals (large and small 

animals) 

P P N 

  Status of Use in District 

Uses M-1 M-2 EZ 

Warehouse and freight movement P P N 

Wholesale sales (per Section 17.16.020) P P SP 

Any other use which, in the opinion of the Planning Commission, is of 

similar character of those specified as outright uses and conditional uses. 

In addition the proposed conditional uses: 

    CU 

- Will have minimal adverse impact on the appropriate development of 

primary uses on abutting properties and the surrounding area considering 

location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use; 

      

- Will not create odor, dust, smoke, fumes, noise, glare, heat or vibrations 

which are incompatible with primary uses allowed in this district; 

      

- Will be located on a site occupied by a primary use, or, if separate, in a 

structure which is compatible with the character and scale or uses allowed 

within the district and on a site no larger than necessary for the use and 

operational requirements of the use; and 

      

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_19.36.010&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_17.16.020&confidence=6


 

 

- Will provide vehicular and pedestrian access, circulation, parking and 

loading areas which are compatible with similar facilities for uses on the 

same site or adjacent sites. 

      

  

Key: 

P = Permitted, subject to site/development review 

CU = Conditional Use Permit required 

N = Not permitted 

AU = Accessory 

SP = Only specified uses 

  

*No accessory structure shall be detached from the main building and must be built to the same 

look of the existing structure when connected to an existing structure. 

  

The development standards in Table 17.16.2 apply to all new structures, buildings, and development, and 

major remodels, in the Industrial Districts. 

Table 17.16.2 - Development Standards for Industrial Districts 

  

Standard M-1 M-2 

Minimum Lot Area (sq ft) *Development must conform to lot 

width, depth, yard setback and coverage standards 

15,000 25,000 

Minimum Lot Width (ft) No Minimum No Minimum 

Minimum Lot Depth (ft) No Minimum No Minimum 

Maximum Building Height (ft) 45 45 

Building Height Transition No No 

Maximum Lot Coverage (%) 85 85 

Minimum Landscape Area (% of site) 15 15 

      

Standard M-1 M-2 

Minimum setback (ft)
8
     

Front 20 20 

Side 10 10 

Street Side 20 20 

Rear 10 10 

Setbacks along Arterials See TSP See TSP 

Fences and Gardening/Retaining Walls
9
     



 

 

Max Height - Front 42 in 42 in 

Max Height - Side 6 ft 6 ft 

Max Height - Street Side 6 ft 6 ft 

Max Height - Rear 6 ft 6 ft 

  

Notes: 
1      No balconies may extend into public rights-of-way. 
2      See also Sections 18.04.020, Vision clearance, and 18.08.050, Fences and walls. 
3      No balconies may extend into public rights-of-way. 
4      See also Sections 18.04.020, Vision clearance, and 18.08.050, Fences and walls. 
5      No balconies may extend into the public right-of-way. 
6      Buffers shall follow those of industrial uses abutting residential when such an adjacent use exists. 
7      See also Sections 18.04.020, Vision clearance and 18.08.050, Fences and walls. Fences and walls may be extended to 8 feet 

when approved through a land use procedure. 
8      No balconies may extend into the public right-of-way. 
9      See also Sections 18.04.020, Vision clearance and 18.08.050, Fences and walls. 
10 Must be located on real property West of Molalla Forest Rd. All Medical Marijuana Producers, Marijuana Producers, 

Marijuana Processors and Marijuana Wholesalers must be registered with the Oregon Health Authority or the Oregon 

Liquor Control Commission, as applicable, and comply with all applicable OHA and OLCC rules. 

  

 

 

 

 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_18.04.020&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=_18.08.050&confidence=5
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_18.04.020&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=_18.08.050&confidence=5
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_18.04.020&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=_18.08.050&confidence=5
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=section_18.04.020&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?cite=_18.08.050&confidence=5


 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
5499 AMY STREET •  WEST LINN, OREGON 97068  • PHONE: (503) 723-0300  •  FAX: (503) 723-9946  WWW.MERINACPAS.COM 

 
 
 
 
 
December 7, 2015  
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Molalla, Oregon 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Molalla, 
Oregon (the City) for the year ended June 30, 2015. Professional standards require that we 
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing 
standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We 
have communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 12, 2015. Professional 
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.  
 
Significant Audit Findings  
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. As described in Note 12 to the financial statements, the City implemented two new 
accounting pronouncements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
Those pronouncements include: 
 

 GASB Statement No.  68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 

 GASB Statement No. 71 Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 

 
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the 
financial statements in the proper period.  
 
There were prior period adjustments that were included in the financial statements:  
 
During the year, the City discovered there were unrecorded accounts receivable and interest 
payable that should have been reported in prior year financial statements.  This resulted in prior 
period adjustments of $198,500 to accounts receivable and ($44,700) to interest payable for a 
total financial statement effect of $153,800.  The City also re-classed $9,681 of the internal 
service fund from business activities to governmental activities. There was no financial statement 
effect. 

 

 CCEERRTTIIFFIIEEDD  PPUUBBLLIICC  AACCCCOOUUNNTTAANNTTSS  AANNDD  CCOONNSSUULLTTAANNTTSS 
 
 

PARTNERS 
KAMALA K. AUSTIN, CPA  • TONYA M. MOFFITT, CPA 



 

Page 2 of 4 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates 
affecting the City’s financial statements were: 
 

Management’s estimate of the accumulated depreciation is based on historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed and donated capital assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  

 
Management’s estimate of the compensated absences payable is based on current wages. 
 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining 
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:  
 

The disclosure of Capital Assets in Note 3 and Long-Term Debt in Note 4 to the financial 
statements summarizes the changes in capital assets and long-term debt for the year 
ended June 30, 2015. 

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, 
none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management 
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements 
taken as a whole. 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management. We noted known and likely uncorrected misstatements of the financial 
statements with a total financial statement effect of $7,632. Management has determined that the 
effect of the uncorrected misstatements is immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to 
each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.  
 



 

Page 3 of 4 

The City relies on Merina & Company, LLP to propose audit adjustments that are necessary for 
converting the City’s records from the cash basis of accounting to the accrual basis of accounting 
for proper presentation of the financial statements.  
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated December 7, 2015. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or 
a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 

 
We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of 
the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of contributions which are 
required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We did not audit management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of 
the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of contributions and do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on this information. 

 



 

Page 4 of 4 

We were engaged to report on the budgetary comparison schedules, as listed in the table of 
contents under RSI, is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  
 
We were engaged to report on the other supplementary information, as listed in the table of 
contents, which accompany the financial statements but is not RSI. With respect to this 
supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, 
content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and 
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
We were not engaged to report on the introductory section or statistical section, which 
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other 
procedures on this other information and we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on it. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of Honorable Mayor, City Council, and 
management of City of Molalla, Oregon and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
If you should have any questions or comments, we would be pleased to discuss this report with 
you at your convenience. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Merina & Company, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
 
 
 



 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 CITY OF MOLALLA  
 

comprehensive annual  
financial report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2015 

with 
Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL  
FINANCIAL REPORT 

For the Fiscal Year Ended  
June 30, 2015 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by 
City of Molalla, Finance Department 

 
 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

 

 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 
Letter of Transmittal ......................................................................................................................................... i 
Mayor and City Council of the City of Molalla, Oregon ................................................................................ ix 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report ..................................................................................................................... 1 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis ..................................................................................................... 5 

 
Basic Financial Statements:......................................................................................................................... 13 

  Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
  Statement of Net Position ................................................................................................................. 14 
  Statement of Activities ...................................................................................................................... 15 
  Fund Financial Statements: 
  Governmental Funds:  ....................................................................................................................... 16 
  Balance Sheet ............................................................................................................................. 17 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ..................................... 18 
  Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

to the Statement of Activities ............................................................................................... 19  
 Proprietary Funds .............................................................................................................................. 20 
  Statement of Net Position ........................................................................................................... 21 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position...................................... 22 
  Statement of Cash Flows ............................................................................................................ 23 
 
 Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ................................................................................................... 24 
 
Required Supplementary Information ....................................................................................................... 47 
  
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual: 

General Fund (Budgetary Basis) ....................................................................................................... 48 
Library Fund ..................................................................................................................................... 49 
Street Fund ........................................................................................................................................ 50 
Urban Renewal Agency Fund ........................................................................................................... 51 

  Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ........................................................ 52 
  Schedule of Contributions ..................................................................................................................... 53 
 
  Notes to the Required Supplementary Information ............................................................................... 54 
 
Other Supplementary Information ............................................................................................................ 56 
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual: 

Parks SDC Fund ................................................................................................................................ 58 
  Combining Statements: 
      Non-major Governmental Funds Combining Balance Sheet ............................................................ 59 
      Non-major Governmental Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
            Changes in Fund Balances ........................................................................................................... 61 
  Budgetary Comparison Schedules: ....................................................................................................... 63 

 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
Schedule of Expenditures – Budget and Actual:       
      General Fund (Budgetary Basis) ................................................................................................. 64 

 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual: 

Aquatic Center Fund .................................................................................................................. 65 
TAP Grant Fund ......................................................................................................................... 66 
Police Department Restricted Revenue Fund ............................................................................. 67 
Bonded Debt Fund ...................................................................................................................... 68 
Transportation SDC Fund .......................................................................................................... 69 

 Enterprise Funds .............................................................................................................................. 70 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual: 

Water Operations Combined ...................................................................................................... 71 
Water Fund ................................................................................................................................. 72 
Water SDC Fund ........................................................................................................................ 73 
Water Debt Retirement ............................................................................................................... 74 
Sewer Operations Combined ...................................................................................................... 75 
Sewer Fund ................................................................................................................................. 76 
Sewer SDC Fund ........................................................................................................................ 77 
Sewer Debt Retirement .............................................................................................................. 78 
CWSRF Fund ............................................................................................................................. 79 
Storm Water Operations Combined ........................................................................................... 80 
Storm Water Fund ...................................................................................................................... 81 
Storm Water SDC Fund ............................................................................................................. 82 
Utility Deposits........................................................................................................................... 83 
Public Works Personnel Service Fund ....................................................................................... 84 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report Required By Oregon State Regulation .................................................. 85 
 
STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
 Introduction ............................................................................................................................................... 87 
 Net Position by Component (Last Ten Fiscal Years) ................................................................................ 88 
 Changes in Net Position (Last Ten Fiscal Years) ...................................................................................... 90 
 Program Revenue by Function (Last Ten Fiscal Years) ............................................................................ 92 
 Fund Balances of Governmental Funds ..................................................................................................... 94 
 Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds .................................................................................. 96 



 

 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 



                       Office of Financial Management   
                                   117 N Molalla Avenue 

                                                                        PO Box 248 
                                            Molalla, Oregon  97038 
                                        Phone: (503) 829‐6855 

                                                      finance@cityofmolalla.com 

 

 
City of Molalla    Office of Financial Management    117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038    (503) 829 6855 

 
i 

 

 

December 7, 2015 

 

Citizens of Molalla 

Honorable Mayor 

Members of the City Council 
 

It  is our pleasure to submit to you the Comprehensive Financial Report of the City of Molalla, 

Oregon, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 

 

Oregon  Revised  Statutes  (ORS)  297.425  requires  that  every  municipal  corporation  publish 

within  six  months  of  the  close  of  each  fiscal  year  a  complete  set  of  financial  statements 

presented  in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted  in the United States of 

America  (GAAP) and audited  in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted  in  the 

United States of America by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.   

 

This  report  consists  of  management's  representations  concerning  the  finances  of  the  city. 

Consequently, management assumes  full responsibility  for the completeness and reliability of 

all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these 

representations, management  of  the  city  has  established  a  comprehensive  internal  control 

framework that  is designed both to protect the city's assets from  loss, theft, or misuse and to 

compile sufficient reliable  information for the preparation of the city's financial statements  in 

conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, 

the  city's  comprehensive  framework  of  internal  controls  has  been  designed  to  provide 

reasonable  rather  than  absolute  assurance  that  the  financial  statements  will  be  free  from 

material misstatements. As management, we  assert  that,  to  the best of  our  knowledge  and 

belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

 

The  city's  financial  statements were  audited  by Merina &  Company,  LLP,  a  firm  of  licensed 

certified  public  accountants.  The  goal  of  the  independent  audit was  to  provide  reasonable 

assurance that the financial statements of the city for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are 

free  of material misstatement.  The  independent  audit  involved  examining,  on  a  test  basis, 

evidence  supporting  the  amounts  and  disclosures  in  the  financial  statements;  assessing  the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management; and evaluating 

the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditors concluded, based upon 

the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the city's 



 
 

ii 
 

basic  financial statements  for  the  fiscal year ended  June 30, 2015, are  fairly presented,  in all 

material respects, in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is included in the 

financial section of this report. 

 

GAAP  require  that management  provide  a  narrative  introduction,  overview,  and  analysis  to 

accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 

(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in 

conjunction with  it.  The  city's MD&A  can  be  found  immediately  following  the  report  of  the 

independent auditors.     

 

City Overview 

 

The  City  of Molalla  is  a  community where 

citizens, business and city government work 

together  to  ensure  that  the  community 

retains  its hometown  identity,  livability and 

its  natural  beauty.    The  estimated 

population  is  8,450.   Molalla’s  rich  past  is 

still  reflected  today  in  our  commitment  to 

our rural lifestyle and quality of life. 

  

Location 

 

Molalla is located in the foothills of the Cascade Range, near the Mount Hood National Forest, 

15 miles south of Oregon City and 13 miles from  Interstate 5. Molalla  is surrounded by farms 

and rural residential development. 

  

City of Molalla Government 

 

The City of Molalla is a full‐service municipality that operates under a council/manager form of 

government.   The elected city council sets policies for city government, enacts ordinances and 

hires, directs and evaluates the city manager.  In turn, the city manager is responsible for overall 

management and administration. 

  

The Molalla City Council meets the second and fourth Wednesday of each month at the Molalla 

Adult Center.   The City Council consists of the Mayor and six councilors who act as a board of 

directors of the City of Molalla municipal corporation.  Municipal services are provided by a staff 

of  34  full‐time  employees  headed  by  the  city  manager.    The  city  operates  its  own  police 

department,  a  municipal  court,  and  water,  wastewater  and  storm  water  utilities,  street 

operations, planning and engineering services, library, and an aquatic center. 

  



 
 

iii 
 

History 

 

Long  before  the  first  settlers  began  arriving;  this  area was  populated  by  the Molalla  Indian 

tribe.   As  settlers  arrived,  the  community  grew  around  the  crossing  of  two  Indian  trails.  

Descendants of the Molalla tribe now live on the Grande Ronde Reservation in western Oregon.  

The last known full‐blooded Molalla Indian died in 1913. 

  

Seeking  fertile  soils,  ample  water  and  rich  grasses,  the  pioneers  were  attracted  to  the 

Willamette Valley.     William Russell filed the first land claim in the area in 1840.  In 1850 a post 

office  was  opened  and  the  community  started  to  grow.   By  1856,  the  first  schools  were 

operating and  the  town had become a  thriving agricultural and  trade  center.  The  year 1857 

brought the first general store.    The year 1913 was a year of “firsts” for Molalla.  It welcomed 

the first steam train, the first Molalla Buckeroo Rodeo, the first bank, the first locally published 

weekly  newspaper  and  the  incorporation  of  the  City.      Over  the  years,  lumber  production 

became the community’s biggest commodity.  At one point five saw mills were  in operation  in 

Molalla.  Timber remained the mainstay of the community’s economy until the 1980s.  

 

Now  in  the  new  century,  Molalla  has  transitioned  from  a  lumber  town  into  a 

bedroom/commuter community that is positioned 15 miles from everywhere and residents can 

enjoy the quiet country life while maintaining their mainstream metro employment. 

 

Financial Analysis 

 

Fiscal year 2014/2015 was a positive year for the City we turned a corner and remained in the 

black  through  fiscally  conservative decision making.   This philosophy has allowed  the City  to 

refocus and begin projects on core  issues such as  infrastructure  (streets, water, sewer, parks 

and  storm  water),  police  and  basic  administrative  services  in  the midst  of  our  challenging 

economic environment.  

 

In response to our challenge, discretionary spending has been reduced and continues with the 

budget  for  the 2015/2016  fiscal year. With  this healthy yet conservative budget you will  find 

changes that begin to bring back service  levels that are sorely needed for the community. We 

have adopted a philosophy of doing as much as we can with the level of resources available.  

 

As part of our conservative approach the City completed an update and review of our System 

Development  Charges  and  capital  improvement  programs.  The  Park Master  Plan  has  been 

updated  and  the  Comprehensive  Plan  is  nearing  update  completion.  Staffing  levels  and 

expectations, auditing procedures, and checks and balances have been dutifully  implemented 

throughout the current year. Partnerships have been identified and connected or reconnected.    

 



 
 

iv 
 

There  is a commitment  to a  level of Staff professionalism,  training and competence  that will 

lead  to excellence  in provision of our  level of service. Our currently stable conditions project 

through this fiscal year but we are cautiously approaching this budget year  in order to ensure 

that any increases in service levels are sustainable into the immediate future.  

 

Staff has begun a process toward a 5‐year plan  for each department that will  feature capital, 

equipment,  facility and staffing projections within each budget year. This process will  involve 

one more  fiscal  cycle  in order  to complete certain  changes  in process and  function.  In other 

words we still have work to do in our internal growing up for the City of Molalla.  

 

Infrastructure and Capital  Improvement planning and projects are necessary  to address  core 

needs for the City of Molalla. Pro‐active changes that you will find include but are not limited to 

the following: 

 

 Identifying  needs  for  annual  maintenance  funding  in  both  water  and  waste  water 

treatment 

 Street repair line items 

 Distribution and collection system maintenance funding  

 Facility planning 

 ODOT Fund Exchange 

 

There are two areas of concern including Wastewater and the Aquatic Center.  The Wastewater 

fund has been burdened with debt payment as well as a  lack of creative  funding  for needed 

maintenance.  The  2014‐15  budget  begins  to  address  needed  cost  allocations  for  plant 

maintenance, inflow and infiltration duties and our new NPDES Permitting. We will need to be 

diligent in monitoring this fund.  The Aquatic Center has created a problem for the City in that 

the subsidy  to keep  the pool open has grown  to a  level  that creates a gross  inequity  for city 

residents. Staff is proposing a six‐month budget in the event an alternative for funding the pool 

can be identified.  At that point a supplemental budget will be required to move forward with 

an alternative.      

 

Staff and Council will be pursuing island annexations that will begin to close the gap regarding 

equity of service between city residents and those properties surrounded by city limits. Each of 

these properties will be on the tax roll for 2015 but actual tax revenues may not be realized for 

all properties until 2017. 

 

We  have  a  tremendous  need  to  focus  on  streets,  water,  sewer,  parks  and  all  of  our  city 

facilities.  A  Council  goals  for  the  2013/2014  fiscal  year was  to  update  Capital  Improvement 

Plans with audited and  current methodologies. This  task was  finalized on April 26, 2014 and 

provides the City with a stable and up to date framework to work with. The 2014‐15 fiscal year 



 
 

v 
 

also marks  the  beginning  of  a  5‐year  financial  forecast  and  individual Department  and  fund 

capital  improvement  planning. We will  also  continue  to  proceed  cautiously  from  a  financial 

standpoint and strive to continue the process of healthy reserves and contingencies.    

 

Financial Goals 

 

The City of Molalla’s financial goals seek to: 

 

 Ensure the financial integrity of the City 

 Improve financial information for decision makers at all levels: 

 Assist policy makers as  they contemplate decisions  that affect  the City on a  long‐term 

basis, a manager as they implement policy on a day‐to‐day basis. 

 

Financial Objectives 

 

The City of Molalla’s fiscal policies address the following major areas: 

1.   Revenue  policy  ‐  Addresses  property  taxes,  user  charges  and  other  sources  to 

  adequately fund desired services  

2.  Operating budget policy ‐ Relating to budgeting guidelines 

3.  Accounting policy  ‐ Relating  to  reporting  financial  transactions and preparing  financial 

  reports 

4.  Debt Policy  ‐ Dealing with  long‐term  financing of  the City’s capital needs and  its bond 

  rating 

5.  Reserve policy  ‐  For  establishing  reserves  and  contingency  funding  as needed  for  the 

  various activities of the City 

6.  Management  of  fiscal  policy  ‐  Dealing  with  approval,  recommendation,  review  and 

  implementation of policies including monitoring compliance 

 

Major Initiatives 

 

The Molalla City Council meets at the beginning of each year to establish goals.   Council goals 

comprise high priority  tasks or programs  that  the City Council  intends  to complete or  initiate 

during the year, through attainment of these goals may take several years.  The goals are based 

on the city’s vision, departmental needs, and City Council priorities.   The six main goals are as 

follows: 

 



 
 

vi 
 

 
Goal 1 – Maintain a Healthy and Balanced Budget 

•  Participate openly in the Annual Audit process 

•  Ensure fair City tax rates and fees 

•  Maintain a financial model that balances short and long term needs  

•  Continue multiple year budget planning 

•  Implement strategies using the Budget as the fiscal Master Plan for the City 

•  Update salary and benefit survey 

•  Prepare 1st City of Molalla CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) 

•  Alternate funding source for the Aquatic Center 

•  Implement a Council Policy process 

 

Goal 2 ‐ Provide Effective and Efficient Services 

•  Expect professionalism in all phases of City services 

•  Promote employee development in a quality work environment 

•  Continue centralization of contracts and permanent retention of records 

•  Initiate a sidewalk replacement program 

•  Implement a water mainline replacement program  

•  Establish an annual funding source for I & I (Inflow & Infiltration) 

•  Establish a funding source for annual street maintenance  

•  Create a north/south connection from Toliver Road to Highway 211  

•  Construct a bike/pedestrian trail on the old rail line  

•  Pursue additional land options for recycled water and bio solid placement 

 

Balanced Budget

Efficient 
Services

Public Safety

Economic 
Developement

Partnering 
with other 
Agencies

Promote 
Community 
Liveability



 
 

vii 
 

Goal 3 ‐ Promote excellence in public safety  

•  Establish a police vehicle replacement sustainability program 

•  Police Department policy manual update 

•  Examine personnel needs and develop a partnership with School District to establish a 

  School Resource Officer 

•  Increase public awareness of community safety needs  

•  Improve community policing efforts (More of a presence) 

 

Goal 4 ‐ Manage growth and economic development 

•  Implement new SDC Methodology and fees (By December 31, 2014) 

•  Complete the Comprehensive Plan update process 

•  Update and streamline the Development Code 

•  Partnering with  Clackamas  County  Business  and  Economic  Development,  develop  an 

  economic development plan for Molalla. 

•  Begin process to examine public facilities including current and future needs 

•  Complete Island annexation process 

•  Complete Highway 211 improvements 

•  Update the Transportation System Plan 

Goal 5 ‐ Effective relationships with local, regional and state agencies and partners 

•  Continue improving regional relationships with local, state and regional partners 

•  Be visible at Regional and State events 

•  City Council participation in Regional organizations such as Economic Development, C‐4, 

  League of Oregon Cities, etc. 

•  Develop funding partnerships with Clackamas County and ODOT 

 

Goal 6 – Promote a livable community with a sense of pride and place 

•  Use the new website to promote community awareness and information provision 

•  Promote a Downtown Development/Main Street program 

•  Work with local events as partners through participation   

•  Promote green space and park improvements 

•  Continue to work toward meeting Oregon Library Association Standards 

•  Update the library strategic plan 

•  Continue to research and assess building needs for future remodeling and expansion or 

  the replacement of the library 

•  Review and update library policies 

•  Plan for public building upgrades and replacement 

  1.  City Hall 

  2.  Police Station 

  3.  PAL Building 

  4.  Skate Park 

•  Promote Downtown improvements and events 



 
 

viii 
 

Acknowledgement 

 

We appreciate the professionalism, commitment and effort of Merina & Company. LLC during 

their review and audit of the City of Molalla’s financial information.  We also want to thank all 

city departments, boards, and commissions for their continued diligence  in handling the city’s 

financial operations in a professionally responsible manner. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

 
 

Dan Huff           

City Manager           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



ix 
 

 

 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  

 
 
 
NAME          TERM EXPIRES 

Mayor 

Debbie Rogge December 2016 
 

Councilors: 

George Pottle December 2018 
Jason Griswold December 2016 
Jennifer Satter December 2018 
Jimmy Thompson December 2016 
Russell Riggs December 2018 
Stephen Clark December 2018 
 

 
CITY STAFF 

 

City Manager     
Dan Huff     
 
Finance Director    
Heather Penni     
 

MAILING ADDRESS 
PO Box 248 

Molalla, Oregon  97038 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 



1 
 

 
5499 AMY STREET •  WEST LINN, OREGON 97068  • PHONE: (503) 723-0300  •  FAX: (503) 723-9946  WWW.MERINACPAS.COM 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

City of Molalla, Oregon 
Molalla, Oregon 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Molalla, Oregon, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;  
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

 CCEERRTTIIFFIIEEDD		PPUUBBLLIICC		AACCCCOOUUNNTTAANNTTSS		AANNDD		CCOONNSSUULLTTAANNTTSS		
 

 
PARTNERS 

KAMALA K. AUSTIN, CPA • TONYA M. MOFFITT, CPA 



2 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2015, and 
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof,  for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle  

As discussed in Note 12 to the financial statements, the City adopted new accounting guidance, 

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of 

GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71 Pension Transition for Contributions 

Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. Our 

opinion is not modified with respect to these matters. 

Other Matters  

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the 
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  

We have applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, schedule 
of the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of contributions, in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance.  

 



3 

The budgetary comparison schedules, as listed in the table of contents under required 
supplementary information, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  In our opinion, this information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  

Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, other 
supplementary information, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The other supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, this 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as 
a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have 
also issued our report dated December 7, 2015, on our consideration of the City’s compliance 
with certain provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised 
Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules.  The purpose of that report is to describe 
the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an 
opinion on compliance. 
 

 
Merina & Company, LLP 
West Linn, Oregon 
December 7, 2015 



5 

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

 
The management of  the City of Molalla, Oregon offers  readers of  the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report,  this narrative overview and analysis of  the  financial activities of  the City of 
Cornelius for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. This analysis focuses on significant financial 
issues, major  financial activities, and  resulting changes  in  financial position, budget variances 
and  specific  issues  related  to  funds and  the economic  factors affecting  the City. Readers are 
encouraged  to  consider  the  information  here  in  conjunction  with  additional  information 
provided in the transmittal letter. 

Financial Highlights 

Assets  totaled $38,839,688  at  June 30, 2015  and  consisted of $11,657,257  in  cash  and  cash 
equivalents;  $1,089,493  in  accounts  receivable  and  other  assets;  and  $26,092,938  in  capital 
assets. 

Net position was $29,333,798 at June 30, 2015 compared to $28,938,734 at June 30, 2014 year 
end. 

As of June 30, 2015 the City had $8,814,017  in outstanding bonds, notes payable and accrued 
compensated absences.  

The City’s net position  increased by $399,044  from  June 2014, primarily due  to  capital asset 
additions, utility rate  increases,  increased collection on receivables and early payoff of bonds. 
Governmental capital assets in Fiscal Year 2015 totaled $26,092,938 net of depreciation, which 
includes current year assets as well as other major capital construction projects. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The Management Discussion and Analysis  (MD&A)  is  intended  to  serve as an  introduction  to 
the City of Molalla basic financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of 
three components: 1) government‐wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 
3)  notes  to  the  basic  financial  statements.  The  report  also  contains  other  supplementary 
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

1.  Government‐Wide Financial Statements 

These  two  statements present an overview of  the City's  finances,  in a manner  similar  to  the 
private  sector.  Each  statement presents highly  condensed,  entity‐wide  information  and uses 
the full accrual basis of accounting. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the City’s total assets, deferred outflows 
of  resources,  liabilities,  and  deferred  inflows  of  resources  of  the  City  as  of  the  date  on  the 
statement.   Net  position  is  the  difference  between  assets,  deferred  outflows  of  resources, 



6 

liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may  serve as  a useful  indicator of whether  the  financial position of  the City  is  improving or 
deteriorating.  

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how net position of the City changed 
over the most recent fiscal year by tracking receipts, disbursements and other transactions that 
increase  or  reduce  net  position.  All  changes  in  net  position  are  reported  as  soon  as  the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result 
in  cash  flows  in  future  fiscal periods  (e.g. uncollected  taxes and earned but unused vacation 
leave).  

In  government‐wide  financial  statements,  the  City’s  activities  are  shown  as  governmental 
activities.     Governmental activities of the City of Molalla include general government, city hall, 
legal, parks, library, streets, and police. These activities are primarily finance through property 
taxes and other  intergovernmental activities.   Business‐type activities consist of water, sewer, 
and storm.  These activities are services to the public for a fee. 

2.  Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been  segregated  for  specific activities or objectives. The City of Molalla,  like other  state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance‐
related  legal  requirements.  All  of  the  funds  of  the  City  of Molalla  can  be  divided  into  two 
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental  Funds.  Governmental  funds  are  used  to  account  for  essentially  the  same 
functions  reported  as  governmental  activities  in  the  government‐wide  financial  statements. 
However,  unlike  the  government‐wide  financial  statements,  governmental  fund  financial 
statements  focus  on  near‐term  inflows  and  outflows  of  spendable  resources,  as well  as  on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such  information may 
be useful in evaluating a government’s near‐term financial requirements. 

Because  the  focus  of  governmental  funds  is  narrower  than  that  of  the  government‐wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds 
with  similar  information  presented  for  governmental  activities  in  the  government‐wide 
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the  long‐term  impact of the 
City’s  near  term  financial  decisions.  Both  the  governmental  fund  balance  sheet  and 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and change in fund balances provide 
a  reconciliation  to  facilitate  this  comparison between governmental  funds and governmental 
activities. 

The  City  of Molalla maintains  ten  individual  governmental  funds.  Information  is  presented 
separately  in  the  governmental  balance  sheet  and  in  the  governmental  fund  statement  of 
revenues,  expenditures,  and  changes  in  fund  balances  for  the  General  Fund,  Library  Fund, 
Street Fund, Urban Renewal Agency Fund, and Park SDC Fund. All of these funds are considered 
to be major funds. Data from the other five non‐major governmental funds are combined into a 



7 

single aggregated presentation.  Individual  fund data  for each of  the non‐major governmental 
funds  is provided  in the form of combining schedules  in the other supplementary  information 
described below. 

Proprietary  Funds.  Proprietary  funds  represent  three  segments  of  business‐type  operations, 
water, sewer and storm, used  to account  for operations  that are  financed and operated  in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises. The  intent  is that the costs of providing these 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed primarily through user charges. 
The  City  has  a  Public Works  Personnel  Fund  that  is  an  internal  service  fund.   All  personnel 
charges  for  the  public  works  funds  are  expensed  out  of  this  fund  and  then  this  fund  is 
reimbursed for those charges.  

3.  Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding  of  the  information  provided  in  the  government‐wide  and  fund  financial 
statements. 

Required Supplementary  Information. Required supplementary  information  includes financial 
information and disclosures that are required by the GASB but are not considered part of basic 
financial statements. A budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund and major special 
revenue funds, schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of 
contributions are presented immediately following the notes to the basic financial statements. 

Other Supplementary Information. The schedules for any major capital project funds and non‐
major  governmental  funds  and  budgetary  comparison  schedules  for  both  the  non‐major 
governmental  funds  and  the  proprietary  funds  are  presented  immediately  following  the 
required supplementary information. 

Government‐wide Financial Analysis 

As  noted  earlier,  net  position may  serve  over  time  as  a  useful  indictor  of  a  government’s 
financial position. Assets exceeded  liabilities by $29,333,798  at  the  close of  the most  recent 
fiscal year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 

The following table reflects a Summary of Net Position for these fiscal years: 

 

 

By  far the  largest portion of the City of Molalla’s net position reflect  its  investment  in capital 
assets  (e.g.  land, buildings, machinery, and equipment)  less any  related debt used  to acquire 
those assets  that  is still outstanding. The City uses  these capital assets  to provide services  to 
citizens;  consequently,  these  assets do not have  financial  liquidity  easily  available  for  future 
spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted  that  the  resources needed  to  repay  this debt must be provided  from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to pay these liabilities. The balance 
of $4,966,449 represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be 
used.   The  remaining balance of $4,147,615  is unrestricted net position and may be used  to 
meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.  

   

Governmental  

Activities

Business‐

Type 

Activities Total

Governmental  

Activities

Business‐

Type 

Activities Total

Assets

   Current assets 7,996,124$    4,411,749$    12,407,873$  4,221,215$    5,133,104$    9,354,319$   

   Net pension assets 254,498          84,379            338,877          ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

   Capital  assets 12,939,431    13,153,507    26,092,938    12,994,500    13,116,956    26,111,456   

Total  assets 21,190,053    17,649,635    38,839,688    17,215,715    18,250,060    35,465,775   

Deferred outflows of resources 139,294          46,185            185,479          ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Liabilities

   Current l iabil ities 330,261          830,112          1,160,373      81,884            668,678          750,562         

   Long‐term l iabilities 3,047,147      4,829,953      7,877,100      236,899          5,539,580      5,776,479     

Total  l iabil ities 3,377,408      5,660,065      9,037,473      318,783          6,208,258      6,527,041     

Deferred inflows  of resources 491,076          162,820          653,896          ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Net position

   Net investment in capital  assets 12,696,338    7,678,396      20,374,734    12,779,500    7,009,980      19,789,480   

   Restricted 2,976,327      1,990,122      4,966,449      2,071,278      2,980,333      5,051,611     

   Unassigned 1,788,198      2,204,417      3,992,615      2,046,154      2,051,489      4,097,643     

Total  net position 17,460,863$  11,872,935$  29,333,798$  16,896,932$  12,041,802$  28,938,734$ 

2015 2014



9 

The following table summarizes revenues and expenses for these fiscal years: 

 

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Molalla’s net position by 
$792,751.  The  increase  is  primarily  due  to  an  increase  in  property  taxes  and  a  decrease  in 
overall expenses. 

Governmental  

Activities

Business‐

Type 

Activities Total

Governmental  

Activities

Business‐

Type 

Activities Total

Revenues

Program Revenues

   Charges  for services 1,065,981$    3,422,466$    4,488,447$    1,442,580$    2,976,353$    4,418,933$   

   Operating grants 23,877            ‐                       23,877            11,654            ‐                       11,654           

   Capital  grants ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       76,135            285,310          361,445         

‐                      

General Revenues ‐                      

   Property taxes 2,954,828      ‐                       2,954,828      2,775,997      ‐                       2,775,997     

   Other taxes 2,283,739      ‐                       2,283,739      1,495,926      ‐                       1,495,926     

   Other revenues 169,655          10,601            180,256          140,894          4,150              145,044         

Total Revenues 6,498,080      3,433,067      9,931,147      5,943,186      3,265,813      9,208,999     

Expenses

Governmental

   General  government 825,410$       ‐$                     825,410$       1,681,897$    ‐$                     1,681,897$   

   Public safety 2,097,686      ‐                       2,097,686      2,074,492      ‐                       2,074,492     

   Highways  and streets 1,457,004      ‐                       1,457,004      593,752          ‐                       593,752         

   Culture and recreation 643,646          ‐                       643,646          603,233          ‐                       603,233         

   Community development 244,004          ‐                       244,004          597,644          ‐                       597,644         

   Interest long‐term debt 37,579            ‐                       37,579            8,308              ‐                       8,308             

‐                      

Business‐Type ‐                      

   Water ‐                       1,223,534      1,223,534      ‐                       1,163,666      1,163,666     

   Sewer ‐                       2,457,600      2,457,600      ‐                       1,404,365      1,404,365     

   Storm water ‐                       102,813          102,813          ‐                       189,513          189,513         

   Interest long‐term debt ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Total expenses 5,305,329      3,783,947      9,089,316      5,559,326      2,757,544      8,316,870     

Transfers (400,000)        400,000          ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Change in Net Position 792,751          49,120            841,871          383,860          508,269          892,129         

Net Position July, 1 16,896,932    12,037,822    28,934,754    16,513,072    11,533,533    28,046,605   

Restatements (228,820)        (214,007)        (442,827)        ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Net Position‐as  restated 16,668,112    11,823,815    28,491,927    16,513,072    11,533,533    28,046,605   

Net Position‐‐June 30 17,460,863    11,872,935    29,333,798    16,896,932    12,041,802    28,938,734   

2015 2014



10 

Business‐type Activities. Business‐type activities increased the City of Molalla’s net position by 
$49,120. The increase is primarily due to transfers from other funds. 

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds 

Governmental  Funds.  The  focus  of  the  City  of Molalla’s  governmental  funds  is  to  provide 
information  on  near‐term  inflows,  outflows,  and  balances  of  spendable  resources.  Such 
information  is  useful  in  assessing  the  City  of Molalla’s  financial  requirements.  In  particular, 
unassigned  fund  balance  may  serve  as  useful  measure  of  a  government’s  net  resources 
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year as they have not been  limited to use for a 
particular purpose. 

At  the  end  of  the  fiscal  year,  the  City  of Molalla’s  governmental  funds  reported  combined 
ending fund balances of $7,656,487.  

Proprietary Funds. The City’s proprietary funds are enterprise funds and internal service fund. 
An enterprise fund is used to account for activities for which a fee is charged to external users 
for services. These funds provide the same type of information found in the government‐wide 
financial  statements,  but  in  more  detail.  Internal  service  fund  is  used  to  account  for  the 
financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or 
agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis.  

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The  General  Fund  received  $200,607 more  than what was  budgeted mostly  due  to  higher 
property taxes than expected. 

The  General  Fund  spent  $441,551  less  than  what  was  budgeted  due  to  the  city  trying  to 
improve the General Fund ending balance and conservative spending. 

 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

The following table compares capital assets for these fiscal years: 

 

Change

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 + (-)

Land 1,489,291$   1,489,291$   727,511$      727,511$      2,216,802$   2,216,802$   -$              

Construction in Progress 243,093        -                    -                    -                    243,093        -                    243,093     

Land improvement 245,809        265,876        11,139          11,139          256,948        277,015        (20,067)     

Buildings 2,076,019     2,141,254     1,878,135     1,878,135     3,954,154     4,019,389     (65,235)     

Infrastructure 8,670,520     8,843,278     9,826,830     9,826,830     18,497,350   18,670,111   (172,761)   

Machinery and Equipment 137,141        151,293        695,909        695,909        833,050        847,202        (14,152)     

Vehicles 77,558          103,508        13,983          13,983          91,541          117,491        (25,950)     

Total 12,939,431$ 12,994,500$ 13,153,507$ 13,153,510$ 26,092,938$ 26,148,010$ (55,072)$   

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total



11 

For more detailed information regarding capital assets please refer to Note 3 in the “notes to 
the Basic Financial Statements”. 

 
Long‐term  Debt.  At  June  30,  2015,  the  City  had  bonded  debt  outstanding  of  $6,740,026 
compared to $4,265,000 at June 30, 2014. There was an increase in debt due to the issuance of 
general obligation bonds in the amount of $3,055,656.   

 
 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 

Fiscal year 2014/2015  is a continued year of calming  the water, performing core operational 
functions, and not repeating past practices.  The primary change  is  the gauging how  to move 
forward.  The City is preparing to begin some capital projects in the near future. We are doing 
our  due  diligence  to  ensure  that  the  fiscal  impact  of  the  improvements  do  not  change  the 
course  of  the  river  back  to  what  it  was  before.  We  will  continue  forward  to  ensure  the 
conservative  approaches  to  all  spending  remain  in  play  and  that  the  correct  staffing  are 
functioning as needed to maximize the benefits to the residents of Molalla.  The City of Molalla 
will  continue  the  practice  of  utilizing  a  cost  allocation  plan  for  administrative  costs  that  are 
indirect and unassignable  to a specific cost objective.  The method  in use  is based on budget 
percentage of the entire city‐wide budget but imposed only on actual expenditures. 

The City of Molalla will  remove  the  spending moratorium of  system development charges as 
the methodology updates have been successfully completed  for all  five  types. Capital system 
improvement project development is currently underway. 

The City of Molalla budget committee considered all the following factors while preparing the 
City budget for the 2015/2016 fiscal year. 

 Prior history of revenue and expenditures 
 Capital projects slated in the next fiscal year as directed from the Capital Improvement 

Plan 
 Expected property tax revenue 

   

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Bonds payable 2,845,000$      215,000$         3,540,000$      4,050,000$      6,385,000$      4,265,000$      

Bond premium 355,026           -                       -                       -                       355,026           -                       

Notes payable -                       -                       1,935,111        2,056,976        1,935,111        2,056,976        

Compensated absences 88,162             81,899             50,718             64,469             138,880           146,368           

Total 3,288,188$      296,899$         5,525,829$      6,171,445$      8,814,017$      6,468,344$      

Total

Business 

ActivitiesActivities

Government 



12 

Requests  for  Information.  This  financial  report  is  designed  to  present  the  user  (citizens, 
taxpayers,  investors,  and  creditors)  with  a  general  overview  of  the  City’s  finances  and  to 
demonstrate the City’s accountability.  The City of Molalla Urban Renewal Agency has issued a 
separate report; which  is available to those who are  interested.   Questions concerning any of 
the  information  provided  in  this  report  or  requests  for  additional  information  should  be 
addressed to: 

 
Heather Penni, Finance Director 
City of Molalla 
PO Box 248 
Molalla, Oregon  97038 



 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



     Government-Wide Financial Statements

     Fund Financial Statements

- Governmental Funds

- Proprietary Funds

The basic financial statements include interrelated sets of financial statements as required by 
the GASB.  The sets of statements include:

In addition, the notes to the basic financial statements are included to provide information that 
is essential to a user’s understanding of the basic financial statements.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,594,675$     4,062,582$     11,657,257$        
Accounts receivable, net 219,860         349,167         569,027              
Property taxes receivable 170,383         -                     170,383              
Due from other governments 11,206           -                     11,206                
Net pension assets 254,498         84,379           338,877              
Capital Assets:

Non-depreciable 1,732,384       727,511         2,459,895           
Depreciable 11,207,047     12,425,996     23,633,043         

Total assets 21,190,053     17,649,635     38,839,688         

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred outflows related to pensions 139,294         46,185           185,479              

Total deferred outflows of resources 139,294         46,185           185,479              

Total asset & deferred outflows of resources 21,329,347$   17,695,820$   39,025,167$        

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 47,849$         86,043$         133,892$            
Deposits -                     1,036             1,036                  
Accrued interest payable 41,371           47,157           88,528                
Current portion of long-term debt 241,041         695,876         936,917              
Non-current portion of long-term debt 3,047,147       4,829,953       7,877,100           

Total liabilities 3,377,408       5,660,065       9,037,473           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflows related to pensions 491,076         162,820         653,896              

Total deferred inflows of resources 491,076         162,820         653,896              

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in capital assets 12,541,338     7,678,396       20,219,734         
Restricted for:

Debt service 66,526           46,607           113,133              
System development 1,271,112       1,943,515       3,214,627           
Urban renewal projects 1,321,298       -                     1,321,298           
Highways and streets 283,526         -                     283,526              
Police department 33,865           -                     33,865                

Unassigned 1,943,198       2,204,417       4,147,615           

Total net position 17,460,863     11,872,935     29,333,798         

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position 21,329,347$   17,695,820$   39,025,167$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
14



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Operating Capital Business
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities:
General government 825,410$              769,780$         -$                      -$                  (55,630)$         -$                     (55,630)$        
Public safety 2,097,686             208,997           -                        -                    (1,888,689)      -                       (1,888,689)     
Highways and streets 1,457,004             -                       -                        -                    (1,457,004)      -                       (1,457,004)     
Culture and recreation 643,646                87,204             3,877                -                    (552,565)         -                       (552,565)        
Community Development 244,004                -                       20,000              -                    (224,004)         -                       (224,004)        
Interest on long-term debt 37,579                  -                       -                        -                    (37,579)           -                       (37,579)          

Total governmental activities 5,305,329             1,065,981        23,877              -                    (4,215,471)      -                       (4,215,471)     

Business type activities:
Water Operations 1,223,534             1,523,794        -                        -                    -                      300,260           300,260         
Sewer Operations 2,457,600             1,775,320        -                        -                    -                      (682,280)          (682,280)        
Storm Water Operations 102,813                123,352           -                        -                    -                      20,539             20,539           

Total business type activities 3,783,947             3,422,466        -                        -                    -                      (361,481)          (361,481)        

Total government 9,089,276$           4,488,447$      23,877$           -$                 (4,215,471)    (361,481)          (4,576,952)   

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes 2,954,828       -                       2,954,828      
Public Service taxes and state revenue sharing 1,919,016       -                       1,919,016      

    Franchise taxes 364,723          -                       364,723         
Interest and  investment earnings 54,350            -                       54,350           
Miscellaneous revenues 115,305          10,601             125,906         

Transfers in (out) (400,000)         400,000           -                     

          Total general revenues and transfers 5,008,222       410,601           5,418,823      

                Change in net position 792,751          49,120             841,871         

Net position - beginning 16,896,932     12,037,822      28,934,754    

(417,639)         (178,988)          (596,627)        
Prior period adjustment 188,819        (35,019)            153,800       

Net position - ending 17,460,863$  11,872,935$    29,333,798$ 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Change in Net PositionProgram Revenues

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
15



General Fund 

Library Fund

Street Fund

Urban Renewal Agency Fund

Park SDC Fund
The Park SDC Fund is used to account for the collection and spending of Park System
Development Charges.  

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Major Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the city. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Library Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for financial activities related to
the city's library. The major source of revenue for the Library Fund comes from
intergovernmental revenue from Clackamas County.

The Street Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for maintenance of the city's streets
and street lighting. The major sources of revenue for the Street Fund come from the state of
Oregon with tax on motor vehicle fuel and the Surface Transportation Program funds.

The Urban Renewal Agency Fund is used to account for the discretely presented Molalla
Urban Renewal Agency. The major source of revenue is property taxes assessed for the
Urban Renewal Agency.  

16



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2015

General Fund Library Fund Street Fund

Urban 
Renewal 

Agency Fund
Park SDC 

Fund
Total Nonmajor 

Funds
Total 

Governmental

Cash and cash equivalents 951,559$        1,274,843$     218,184$        3,766,420$   947,630$    436,039$        7,594,675$     
Accounts receivable, net 152,819          -                      67,041            -                    -                 -                      219,860          
Property taxes receivable 155,542          -                      -                      14,841          -                 -                      170,383          
Due from other governments 10,482            -                      -                      724               -                 -                      11,206            

Total assets 1,270,402$     1,274,843$    285,225$       3,781,985$  947,630$   436,039$        7,996,124$    

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 39,798$          6,352$            1,699$            -$                  -$               -$                    47,849$          

Total liabilities 39,798            6,352              1,699              -                    -                 -                      47,849            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenue - franchise fees 58,875            -                      -                      -                    -                 -                      58,875            
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 146,539          -                      -                      13,780          -                 -                      160,319          
Unavailable revenue - municipal court 72,594            -                      -                      -                    -                 -                      72,594            

Total deferred inflows of resources 278,008          -                      -                      13,780          -                 -                      291,788          

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted for:

Debt service -                      -                      -                      -                    -                 66,526            66,526            
System development -                      -                      -                      -                    947,630      323,482          1,271,112       
Urban renewal projects -                      -                      -                      3,768,205     -                 -                      3,768,205       
Highways and streets -                      -                      283,526          -                    -                 -                      283,526          
Police department -                      -                      -                      -                    -                 33,865            33,865            

Assigned to:
Library -                      1,268,491       -                      -                    -                 -                      1,268,491       
Aquatic center -                      -                      -                      -                    -                 12,166            12,166            

Unassigned 952,596          -                      -                      -                    -                 -                      952,596          

Total fund balances 952,596          1,268,491       283,526          3,768,205     947,630      436,039          7,656,487       

1,270,402$     1,274,843$     285,225$        3,781,985$   947,630$    436,039$        

12,939,431     

(90,678)           

291,788          

(16,995)           

Long-term debt (3,277,799)      
Interest payable (41,371)           

Net position of governmental activities 17,460,863$  

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are 
deferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of  the administrative services 
department to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in 
governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds.

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

ASSETS:

Amounts reported in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 
in the funds.

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and 
fund balances

Pension related changes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
17



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

General Fund Library Fund Street Fund

Urban 
Renewal 

Agency Fund
Park SDC 

Fund
Total Nonmajor 

Funds
Total 

Governmental
REVENUES:

Property taxes 2,592,570$   -$                  -$                  290,770$      -$                63,739$          2,947,079$    
Franchise fees 143,048        -                    218,800        -                    -                  -                      361,848         
Licenses, permits and fees 53,053          -                    -                    -                    -                  -                      53,053           
Intergovernmental 154,495        789,050        975,471        -                    -                  -                      1,919,016      
Grants -                    3,877            -                    -                    -                  20,000            23,877           
Fines and forfeitures -                    19,218          -                    -                    -                  -                      19,218           
Charges for services 588,919        2,526            -                    -                    -                  65,460            656,905         
Interest revenue 53,721          -                    -                    629               -                  -                      54,350           
Miscellaneous revenue 66,271          953               28,968          -                    -                  16,960            113,152         
Contributions and donations -                    1,118            -                    -                    -                  1,035              2,153             
System development charges -                    -                    -                    -                    393,456       108,525          501,981         

Total revenues 3,652,077     816,742        1,223,239     291,399        393,456       275,719          6,652,632      

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 794,142        -                    -                    -                    -                  22,000            816,142         
Public safety 2,175,759     -                    -                    -                    -                  -                      2,175,759      
Highways and streets -                    -                    536,001        -                    -                  -                      536,001         
Culture and recreation -                    577,784        -                    -                    -                  178,673          756,457         
Community development -                    -                    -                    169,730        -                  -                      169,730         

Capital outlay 65,578          93,073          716,052        243,093        40,643         96,902            1,255,341      
Debt service:
     Principal -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  60,000            60,000           
     Interest -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  6,838              6,838             

Total expenditures 3,035,479     670,857        1,252,053     412,823        40,643         364,413          5,776,268      

Revenues over (under) expenditures 616,598        145,885        (28,814)         (121,424)       352,813       (88,694)           876,364         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of debt -                    -                    -                    3,055,656     -                  -                      3,055,656      
Transfers in -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  87,500            87,500           
Transfers out (487,500)       -                    -                    -                    -                  -                      (487,500)       

Total other financing sources (uses) (487,500)       -                    -                    3,055,656     -                  87,500            2,655,656      

Net changes in fund balances 129,098        145,885        (28,814)         2,934,232     352,813       (1,194)             3,532,020      

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 814,998        1,122,606     248,340        833,973        594,817       432,027          4,046,761      

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 8,500            -                    64,000          -                    -                  5,206              77,706           

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 952,596$      1,268,491$  283,526$     3,768,205$  947,630$     436,039$        7,656,487$   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
18



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances 3,532,020$     

326,961          

Current year depreciation (990,772)                            
Loss on disposal of asset (9,860)                                
Capital asset additions 945,563                              (55,069)           

(3,042,438)      

Debt service principal payments 74,756                               
Accrued interest expense (41,371)                              33,385            

(2,108)            

Change in net position of governmental activities 792,751$        

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the 
statements of activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee 
contributions is reports as pension expanse.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. This is the amount by which
proceeds exceeded repayments.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of the
administrative services department to individual funds. The net revenue of certain
activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances report capital
outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the
current period.

Some revenue reported in the statement of activities do not provide current financial
resources in the governmental funds.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
19



Water Operations
Water Fund

Water SDC Fund

Water Debt Retirement

Sewer Operations
Sewer Fund

Sewer SDC Fund

Sewer Debt Retirement

CWSRF Fund

Storm Water Operations
Storm Water Fund

Storm Water SDC Fund

Public Works Personnel Service Fund

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Funds

These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. The intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing the
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed primarily through user charges. These
funds represent three segments of operations – Water, Sewer, and Storm Water. Included in these
segments are:

The Water Fund accounts for water services for residents of the City. The principal revenues source is
from user fees.  The primary expenditure is for system operations.

The Water Capital Asset Fund is used to implement the Water System Master Plan, provided
sufficient revenue is generated from the water rate.

The Sewer Debt Retirement Fund is an enterprise debt service fund used to account for the debt
incurred during the construction of major sewer utility projects.

The CWSRF Debt Retirement Fund accounts for the debt service payments for the Clean Water State 
Revolving Loan.

Proprietary Funds

The Sewer Fund accounts for sewer services for residents of the City. The principal revenue source is
from user fees.  The primary expenditure is for system operations.

The Water Debt Retirement Fund is an enterprise debt service fund used to account for the debt 
incurred during the construction of major water utility projects.

The Storm Drain Fund accounts for storm drain services for residents of the City. The principal
revenue source is from user fees.  The primary expenditure is for system operations.

The Sewer Capital Asset Fund accounts for expenditures on major construction projects or equipment
acquisition. The principal resources are system development charges and transfers from the Sewer
Fund.

The Storm Drain Capital Asset Fund is used to implement the Storm Sewer System Master Plan
provided there are sufficient revenues from operating rates and system development charges.

This fund accounts for services provided to other departments or agencies within the city on a cost
reimbursement basis.

This fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or
agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost
reimbursement basis.

For Generally Accepted Accounting Principles purposes, these aforementioned funds are consolidated
and included as three separate Enterprise funds.

Internal Service Fund

20



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2015

Governmental 
Activities

Water 
Operations

Sewer 
Operations

Storm Water 
Operations Total

Internal 
Service Fund

ASSETS:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,658,050$       1,147,448$     257,084$      4,062,582$      -$                
Accounts receivable, net 173,399            166,041          9,727            349,167           -                  

Total current assets 2,831,449         1,313,489       266,811        4,411,749        -                  

Noncurrent assets:
Net pension assets -                        -                      -                    -                       101,663      
Capital assets, net 5,468,990         7,141,909       542,608        13,153,507      -                  

Total non current assets 5,468,990         7,141,909       542,608        13,153,507      101,663      

Total assets 8,300,439         8,455,398       809,419        17,565,256      101,663      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amounts related to pensions  -  -  -  - 55,644

Total deferred outflows of resources  -  -  -  - 55,644

Total asset & deferred outflows of resources 8,300,439$       8,455,398$     809,419$      17,565,256$    157,307$    

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 6,056$              79,987$          -$                  86,043$           -$                
Accrued interest payable 10,250 36,907  - 47,157  -
Deposits 1,036                -                      -                    1,036               -                  
Current portion of long-term debt 310,000            345,301          -                    655,301           48,886        

Total current liabilities 327,342            462,195          -                    789,537           48,886        

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 665,000            4,154,810       -                    4,819,810        12,221        

Total liabilities 992,342            4,617,005       -                    5,609,347        61,107        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amounts related to pensions -                        -                      -                    -                       196,169      

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 4,493,990         2,641,798       542,608        7,678,396        -                  
Restricted for:

System development 1,501,547         238,034          203,934        1,943,515        -                  

Debt service -                        46,607            -                    46,607             -                  
Unrestricted 1,312,560         911,954          62,877          2,287,391        (99,969)       

Total net position 7,308,097         3,838,393       809,419        11,955,909      (99,969)       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 8,300,439$       8,455,398$     809,419$      17,565,256      157,307$    

130,564

Total liabilities and net position of business-type activities 17,695,820$    

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

LIABILITIES:

Internal balances result from transactions between the governmental activities, business-type activities and internal 
service funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
21



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Governmental 
Activities

Water 
Operations

Sewer 
Operations

Storm Water 
Operations Total

Internal Service 
Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services 1,388,894$     1,594,920$    95,787$       3,079,601$      1,238,835$     
System development charges 134,900          180,400         27,565         342,865           -                       
Miscellaneous income 2,676               4,882              3,043           10,601             -                       

    Total operating revenues 1,526,470       1,780,202      126,395       3,433,067        1,238,835       

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operating and maintenance expenses 1,013,018       2,089,469      88,208         3,190,695        -                       
Personnel services -                       -                      -                   -                        1,251,234       
Depreciation 171,723          192,483         14,242         378,448           -                       

Total operating expenses 1,184,741       2,281,952      102,450       3,569,143        1,251,234       

Operating income (loss) 341,729          (501,750)        23,945         (136,076)          (12,399)           

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest expense (33,775)           (170,738)        -                   (204,513)          -                       

Total non-operating revenues  (expenses) (33,775)           (170,738)        -                   (204,513)          -                       

Net income (loss) before transfers 307,954          (672,488)        23,945         (340,589)          (12,399)           

TRANSFERS:
Transfers in (out) -                       400,000         -                   400,000           -                       

Change in net position 307,954          (272,488)        23,945         59,411             (12,399)           
    

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 6,951,757       4,155,481      774,697       11,881,935      155,887          

-                       -                      -                   -                        (178,988)         
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 48,386             (44,600)          10,777         14,563             (64,469)           

NET POSITION, ENDING 7,308,097$     3,838,393$    809,419$     11,955,909      (99,969)$         

(82,974)            

11,872,935$     

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities are different because:

A portion of the net revenue (expenses) of internal service funds is allocated to
business-type activities

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING 
PRINCIPLE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
22



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Governmental 

Activities

Water 
Operations

Sewer 
Operations

Storm Water 
Operations Total

Internal Service 
Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers 1,519,377$       1,809,996$      127,445$        3,456,818$       1,238,835$      
Cash paid to employees and others for salaries and benefits -                        -                      -                      -                       (1,394,722)       
Cash paid to suppliers and others (1,006,962)        (2,046,295)      (88,208)           (3,141,465)       -                       

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 512,415            (236,299)         39,237            315,353            (155,887)          

CASH FLOWS FROM 
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in (out) -                        400,000           -                      400,000            -                       

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing activities -                        400,000           -                      400,000            -                       

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of capital assets (414,999)           -                      -                      (414,999)          -                       
Debt principal payments (300,000)           (331,865)         -                      (631,865)          -                       
Interest paid (34,125)             (171,931)         -                      (206,056)          -                       

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities (749,124)           (503,796)         -                      (1,252,920)       -                       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (236,709)           (340,095)         39,237            (537,567)          (155,887)          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 2,894,759         1,487,543        217,847          4,600,149         155,887           

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING 2,658,050$       1,147,448$      257,084$        4,062,582$       -$                     

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income 341,729$          (501,750)$       23,945$          (136,076)$        (12,399)$          
Adjustments
  Depreciation and amortization 171,723            192,483           14,242            378,448            -                       
  Decrease (increase) in:

Accounts receivable and due from other funds (8,129)               29,794             1,050              22,715              -                       
Net pension asset -                        -                      -                      -                       (330,541)          
Dererred outflows related to pensions -                        -                      -                      -                       (5,754)              

  Increase (decrease) in:
    Accounts payable and accrued expense 6,056              43,174           -                     49,230             -                     
    Deposits 1,036                -                      -                      1,036                -                       
    Deferred inflows related to pension -                        -                      -                      -                       196,169           
    Accrued compensated absences -                        -                      -                      -                       (3,362)              

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activitie 512,415$          (236,299)$       39,237$          315,353$          (155,887)$        

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
23



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

24 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Molalla, Oregon (the City) have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting standards. 

The Financial Reporting Entity 
The City of Molalla, Oregon is governed by an elected mayor and council members who 
comprise the City Council.  The City Council exercises supervisory responsibilities over the City 
operations, but day-to-day management control is the responsibility of a City Manager.  All 
significant activities and organizations for which the City is financially accountable are included 
in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

There are certain governmental agencies and various service districts which provide services 
within the City.  These agencies have independently elected governing boards and the City is not 
financially accountable for these organizations.  Therefore, financial information for these 
agencies is not included in the accompanying basic financial statements. 

As defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its component units, 
which are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a 
voting majority of the component unit’s board, and either a) the ability to impose will by the 
primary government, or b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit 
to or impose a financial burden on the primary government. The City of Molalla’s financial 
statements include the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency as a blended component unit. The City 
Council and Board of Directors of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency are composed of the 
same individuals.  

Basic Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements report information on all activities of the primary 
government.  As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from these 
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees, fines, and charges for services. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct and allocated indirect 
expenses of a given function or business-type activity are offset by program revenues.  Direct 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or program.  Indirect 
expenses are those costs, usually administrative in nature, that support all City functions and 
enable direct services to be provided.  Program revenues include (1) fees, fines, and charges to 
customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by 
a given function or program, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or program.  Taxes and other items 
not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

25 

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 

Basis of Presentation 
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured by a fund.  Basis of accounting refers to 
when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the 
financial statements. 

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are accounted for using an 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.    

The City’s government-wide and proprietary fund accounting and financial reporting practices 
are based on all applicable GASB pronouncements. 

Interfund activity consists of transfers, services provided and/or used, reimbursements, advances, 
and loans.  As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
governmental-wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule include interfund 
services provided and/or used.  Interfund services provided and/or used are accounted for as 
revenues and expenses since the elimination of such revenues and expenses would distort the 
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions. 

Operating revenues and operating expenses are intermediate components within the proprietary 
fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and include only those 
transactions that constitute their principal, ongoing activities exclusive of investing or financing 
transactions.  Significant operating revenues include charges for services and system 
development fees.  Significant operating expenses include personnel, maintenance expenses, and 
depreciation.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
The governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using a current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded only 
when susceptible to accrual (both measurable and available).  “Measurable” means that the 
amount of the transaction can be determined.  “Available” is defined as being collectible within 
the current period or soon enough thereafter (60 days) to be used to liquidate liabilities of the 
current period.  Expenditures other than interest on noncurrent obligations, are recorded when 
the fund liability is incurred. 

Intergovernmental revenues are recognized as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met.  
There are, however, essentially two types of intergovernmental revenues.  In one, monies must 
be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; 
therefore, all eligibility requirements are determined to be met when the underlying expenditures 
are recorded.  In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to the purpose of the expenditure  



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

26 

and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed requirements; therefore, all 
eligibility requirements are determined to be met at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible 
to accrual criteria are met. 

Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeits, and miscellaneous revenues 
(except investment earnings) are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are 
generally not measurable until actually received.  Investment earnings are recorded as earned 
since they are measurable and available.  Rental income is typically received in advance and is 
deferred when appropriate. 

The GASB 34 reporting model sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets liabilities, 
receipts or disbursements of either fund category or the government and enterprise combined) for 
the determination of major funds.  The City electively added funds as major funds, which either 
had debt outstanding or specific community focus.  Non-major funds are combined in a column 
in the fund financial statements and detailed in the combining section. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operation fund. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in a different fund.   

The Library Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the financial activities related to 
the city’s library.  The major source of revenue for the Library Fund comes from 
intergovernmental revenue from Clackamas County.   

The Street Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for maintenance of the city’s streets 
and street lighting.  The major sources of revenue for the Street Fund come from the state of 
Oregon with tax on motor vehicle fuel and the Surface Transportation Program funds.   

The Urban Renewal Agency Fund is used to account for the discretely presented Molalla Urban 
Renewal Agency.  The major source of revenue is property taxes assessed for the Urban Renewal 
Agency. 

The Park SDC Fund is used to account for the collection and spending of Park System 
Development Charges.   

The City reports each of its proprietary funds as major funds.  These funds are used to account 
for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises.  
The intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing the services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed primarily through user charges.  The City reports the following 
proprietary funds: 
 

 Water Operations 
 Sewer Operations  
 Storm Water Operations 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

27 

Internal Service Fund accounts for administration services provided to other departments or 
agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.   

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect reporting amounts of certain assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2015.  Actual results may differ from such estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments, included in cash and investments, are carried at cost which approximates fair value.  
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider cash and cash 
equivalents to include the cash and investment common pool.  These amounts have the general 
characteristics of demand deposit accounts in that the proprietary funds may deposit additional 
cash at any time and also effectively may withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or 
penalty.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

Receivables and Property Tax Calendar 
Receivables for state, county and local shared revenues, included in accounts receivable, are 
recorded as revenue in the governmental funds as earned. Receivables of the enterprise funds are 
recorded as revenue as earned. 

Property taxes receivable for the governmental fund types, which have been collected within 
thirty days subsequent to year end, are considered measurable and available and are recognized 
as revenues.  All other property taxes are offset by unavailable revenues and, accordingly, have 
not been recorded as revenue.  Real and personal property taxes are levied upon all taxable 
property within the City and become liens against the property as of July 1 of each year and are 
payable in three installments which are due on November 15, February 15, and May 15.  
Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received by November 15.  Taxes unpaid and 
outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent.  Property taxes receivable by the City 
represent the City’s allocated share of delinquent property taxes and other amounts to be 
collected from property owners within Clackamas County, Oregon. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Financial Position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources.  Deferred outflows of resources represent a 
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an 
outflow of resources (expenditure/expense) until then. The City has one item that qualifies for 
reporting in this category. It is the deferred amounts relating to pensions. This amount is 
deferred and recognized as an outflow of resources in the period when the City's recognizes 
pension expense/expenditures. Deferred outflows are included in the government-wide 
Statement of Net Position and the proprietary funds Statement of Net Position. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net 
position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time. The City has four types of items that qualify for reporting in this 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

28 

category. Unavailable revenue from property taxes, franchise fees, and municipal court revenue 
is reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. This amount is deferred and recognized as 
an inflow of resources in the period that amount becomes available. The City also reports 
deferred amounts related to pensions.  This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of 
resources in the period when the City's recognizes pension income.  

Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, 
street lights, etc.) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column 
in the governmental-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are charged to expenditures as 
purchased in the governmental fund statements, and capitalized in the proprietary fund 
statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual cost 
is not available.  Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the 
time received.   

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more, 
and having useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period.   Additions or improvements 
and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or that significantly 
increase the capacity of an asset are capitalized.  Other costs incurred for repairs and 
maintenance are expensed as incurred. 

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is 
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.   

Depreciation on exhaustible assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of 
Activities with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position and is 
provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Land Improvements      20 years 
Buildings       25-50 years 

  Infrastructure       20-65 years 
  Machinery and equipment     10-30 years 
  Vehicles        8 years 

Annual depreciation is taken in the year the assets are acquired or retired.  Gains or losses from 
sales or retirements of capital assets are included in operations of the current period. 

Long-Term Debt 
Long-term debt directly related and expected to be paid from the enterprise funds is recorded in 
these funds.  All other unmatured long-term debt is recorded on the Statement of Net Position.   

Compensated Absences 
It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay 
benefits.  No liability is recorded for non-vested unpaid accumulated sick pay benefits.  All 
vacation pay and vested sick pay benefits are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for vacation pay is reported in the governmental 
funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements.  
 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

29 

Benefit amounts are paid from the same fund as the employee’s payroll, primarily the General 
Fund.  
 
Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) and additions 
to/deductions from OPERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by OPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

Restricted Net Position 
Net revenues received by the City which are restricted by donors or legislation are reported as 
restricted net position.  Such net revenues include system development charges (SDC's), state gas 
tax, and designated donations or grants. 

Fund Balance 
In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound 
to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent.  Fund 
balance is reported in five components – non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and 
unassigned. 

Non-Spendable – Includes amounts not immediately converted to cash, such as prepaid items 
and inventory. 

Restricted – Includes amounts that are restricted by external creditors, grantors or contributors, 
or restricted by enabling legislation.  

Committed – Includes amounts that have been committed by resolution by the City Council 
which is the City’s “highest level of decision-making authority.”  Committed amounts may not 
be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes the constraint by similar council 
action.  Commitments of fund balance must be made prior to the end of the fiscal year. 

Assigned – Includes amounts assigned for specific purposes by Council action or their designee.   

Unassigned – This is the residual classification used for those balances not assigned to another 
category. 

Use of Restricted Resources 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.  When unrestricted 
resources (committed, assigned, and unassigned) are available for use it is the City’s policy to 
use committed resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as they are needed. 
 
2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except for 
restricted cash and investments.  Each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the 
Statement of Net Position as part of “cash and investments.” 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

30 

At June 30, 2015 investments included in cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: 

  Weighted  
Average 
Maturity 
(Years) 

 Fair 
Value 

Investments in the State Treasurer’s Local 
Government Investment Pool 

  
0.00 

  
$           7,755,251

    
Total cash equivalents  0.00  $           7,755,251

 

Following is a summary of the City’s deposit and investment balances at June 30, 2015: 

2015
Cash deposits:

Cash on hand 300$              
Demand deposits 3,901,706      

3,902,006      

Pooled cash and investments:
State of Oregon - LGIP 7,755,251      

Total 11,657,257$  

 
Interest Rate Risk 
The City of Molalla does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as 
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk 
State statues authorize the City of Molalla to invest in general obligations of the U.S. 
Government and its agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank 
repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, and the State Treasure’s Oregon Local 
Government Investment Pool, among others.  The City has no investment policy that would 
further limit its investment choices.  The State Treasurer’s Investment Pool operates in 
accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations, but is not regulated by other laws, 
organizations or regulations.  The reported value of the Pool is the same as the fair value of Pool 
shares.  Investments are regulated by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board and approved by the 
Oregon Investment Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895).  The State Treasurer’s Oregon Local 
Government Investment Pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company and is 
unrated.   
The City’s investment in the Local Government Investment Pool is considered unclassified as to 
credit risk because it is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
The City of Molalla does not currently have an investment policy for concentration of credit risk. 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

31 

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be 
returned. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. The Federal 
Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and National Credit Union Administration (NCUA) 
provides insurance for the City’s deposits up to $250,000 for the combined total of all deposit 
accounts at each financial institution.  The remaining deposits are covered by the Public Funds 
Collateralization program (PFCP) of the State of Oregon in accordance with ORS 295. 
Depositories qualified under this program are required to pledge collateral against any public 
funds deposits in excess of deposit insurance amounts. This provides additional protection for 
public funds in the event of a bank failure or loss. ORS 295 sets the specific value of the 
collateral, as well as the types of collateral that are acceptable. ORS 295 creates a shared liability 
structure for participating depositories, better protecting public funds though still not 
guaranteeing that all funds are 100% protected. As of June 30, 2015, the book value of the City’s 
deposits was $3,901,706 and the bank balance was $4,347,033 The City’s bank balances of 
4,097,033 were exposed to custodial credit risk as they were collateralized under PFCP. 

3. CAPITAL ASSETS 

The changes in capital assets for the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2015 is 
as follows: 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

32 

Primary Government

Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions Ending Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 1,489,291$      -$                -$               1,489,291$      
Construction in progress -                    243,093        -                 243,093          

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,489,291        243,093        -                 1,732,384        

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land Improvements 748,442          -                  -                 748,442          
Buildings 3,265,658        -                  -                 3,265,658        
Infrastructure 20,050,603      693,473        -                 20,744,076      
Machinery and equipment 469,478          8,997           -                 478,475          
Vehicles 634,337          -                  -                 634,337          

Total capital assets, being depreciated 25,168,518      702,470        -                 25,870,988      

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land Improvements (482,566)         (20,067)        -                 (502,633)         
Buildings (1,124,404)      (65,235)        -                 (1,189,639)      
Infrastructure (11,207,325)     (866,231)      -                 (12,073,556)     
Machinery and equipment (318,185)         (23,149)        -                 (341,334)         
Vehicles (530,829)         (25,950)        -                 (556,779)         

Total accumulated depreciation (13,663,309)     (1,000,632)    -                 (14,663,941)     

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 11,505,209      (298,162)      -                 11,207,047      

Governmental activities capital assets, net 12,994,500$    (55,069)$      -$               12,939,431$    

 

All depreciation on governmental capital assets is allocated to governmental functions on the 
statement of activities as follows: 
 

Governmental activities: Depreciation
General government 15,014$         
Public safety 20,273           
Public works 891,071         
Community development 74,274           

1,000,632$     
      Total depreciation expense - 

governmental activities
 

 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

33 

The changes in capital assets for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2015 is as 
follows:  

 Beginning  Ending 
Business-type activities:  Balance  Additions  Deletions  Balance 

Land 727,511$        -$                  -$                  727,511$        

Total capital assets , not being depreciated 727,511          -                    -                    727,511          

Land Improvements 159,202          -                    -                    159,202          
Buildings 3,651,204       -                    -                    3,651,204       
Infrastructure 14,611,099     408,449          -                    15,019,548     
Machinery and equipment 1,881,550       6,550             -                    1,888,100       
Vehicles 125,691          -                    -                    125,691          

Total capital assets, being depreciated 20,428,746     414,999          -                    20,843,745     

Land Improvements (146,753)        (1,310)            -                    (148,063)        
Buildings (1,695,778)      (77,291)          -                    (1,773,069)      
Infrastructure (4,962,811)      (229,907)        -                    (5,192,718)      
Machinery and equipment (1,125,330)      (66,861)          -                    (1,192,191)      
Vehicles (108,629)        (3,079)            -                    (111,708)        

Total accumulated depreciation (8,039,301)      (378,448)        -                    (8,417,749)      

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 12,389,445     36,551           -                    12,425,996     

Business-type activities capital assets, net 13,116,956$    36,551$          -$                  13,153,507$    

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Less accumulated depreciation for:

 

Depreciation expense is allocated to business-type functions as follows: 

Business-type activities:
Water 171,723$  
Sewer 192,483    
Stormwater 14,242      

378,448$  

Total depreciation expense -
business-type activities

 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

34 

4. LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt transactions for the year were as follows: 
Beginning Ending Due in

Balance Additions Reductions Balance 1 Year
Governmental Activities

Governmental Bonds
Water Refunding Bonds 215,000$      -$                60,000$     155,000$      60,000$     
Urban Renewal Series 2015 -                  2,690,000     -               2,690,000     85,000       
Bond Premium -                  365,656       10,630       355,026       25,512       

Total Governmental Bonds 215,000        3,055,656     70,630       3,200,026     170,512     

Compensated Absences 92,288         -                 4,126         88,162         70,529       

Total Governmental 307,288$      3,055,656$   74,756$     3,288,188$   241,041$    

Business Type Activities
Enterprise Bonds

2010 Water Refunding 1,275,000$   -$                300,000$    975,000$      310,000$    
2010 Sewer Refunding 2,775,000     -                 210,000     2,565,000     220,000     

Total Enterprise Bonds 4,050,000     -                 510,000     3,540,000     530,000     

Enterprise Loans/Notes
Clean Water State Revolving Loan 2,056,976     -                 121,865     1,935,111     125,301     

Total Enterprise Loans 2,056,976     -                 121,865     1,935,111     125,301     

Compensated Absences 54,080         -                 3,362         50,718         40,575       

Total Enterprise 6,161,056$   -$                635,227$    5,525,829$   695,876$    

 

Bonds 

Governmental Activities: 
 
In 2010, the City of Molalla refunded General Obligation Installment 
Water Bond No. 1 and No. 2.  The bonds were for capital improvements.  
Interest is a variable rate that ranges from 2.5% to 3.5% per annum.  
Repayment is on semi-annual payments every June 1.   $        155,000

During 2014-2015, the Urban Renewal Agency issued $2,690,000 of 
series 2015 full faith and credit obligation bonds secured by the City of 
Molalla’s full faith and credit. This series bond pays interest of 3.00%. 
The bond matures in June 2029. Loan principal and interest is payable 
annually through June 2029. $     2,690,000



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

35 

 

Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 60,000$        4,650$          85,000$             131,144$       
2017 65,000          3,088            120,000             98,750           
2018 30,000          750               130,000             95,150           
2019 -                    -                   140,000             91,250           
2020 -                    -                   155,000             87,050           

2021-2025 -                    -                   970,000             340,000         
2026-2030 -                    -                   1,090,000          112,400         

Total 155,000$      8,488$          2,690,000$        955,744$       

Water Refunding Bonds Urban Renewal Series 2015

 
Business-Type Activities: 

 
In August 2010, the City of Molalla refunded series 1997 and 1992 bonds 
that were for major water system improvements.  The interest is at 3% per 
annum.  Interest payments are due each February 1 and principal and 
interest payments are due each August 1.   $            975,000

In March 2010, the City of Molalla refunded series 2000 bonds that were 
for improvements to the sewer system.  The interest is at a variable rate 
ranges from 3% to 4% per annum.  Interest payments are due each March 
1.   $        2,565,000

Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 310,000$      24,600$        220,000$           98,150$         
2017 325,000        15,075          225,000             91,550           
2018 340,000        5,100            230,000             84,800           
2019 -                    -                   240,000             75,600           
2020 -                    -                   250,000             66,000           

2021-2025 -                    -                   1,400,000          166,600         

Total 975,000$      44,775$        2,565,000$        582,700$       

2010 Water Refunding 2010 Sewer Refunding

 

Loans/Notes 

Business-Type Activities: 
 

In December 2005 the City of Molalla signed an agreement to borrow 
$2,670,000 for the purpose of improving the wastewater treatment plant.  
The funds were issued in 2007 and repayment of the loan began on 
August 1, 2008.  The repayment schedule is semi-annual with payments 
on August 1 and February 1 through 2028, including interest at the rate of 
2.8% per annum.   $        1,935,111



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

36 

Principal Interest
2016 125,301$       53,313$        
2017 128,835         49,779          
2018 132,467         46,147          
2019 136,203         42,411          
2020 140,043         38,571          

2021-2025 761,717         131,353        
2026-2030 510,545         25,297          

Total 1,935,111$    386,871$      

Clean Water State Revolving 
Loan

 

5. NET POSITION 

The government-wide statement of net position reports $4,966,449 of restricted net position, of 
which $3,498,153 is restricted by enabling legislation.  

6. PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description 

Employees of the City are provided with pensions through the Oregon Public Employees 
Retirement System (OPERS) a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, the 
Oregon Legislature has delegated authority to the Public Employees Retirement Board to 
administer and manage the system. All benefits of the System are established by the legislature 
pursuant to ORS Chapters 238 and 238A. Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Benefit plan, 
established by ORS Chapter 238, is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003. 
The Pension Program, established by ORS Chapter 238A, provides benefits to members hired on 
or after August 29, 2003. OPERS issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report and Actuarial Valuation that can be obtained at  

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/section/financial_reports/financials.aspx. 

Benefits provided  

1. Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Benefit ORS Chapter 238 

Pension Benefits  

The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13 
retirement benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum 
refunds. The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary. A 
percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire employees, 1.67 percent for general service 
employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. 
Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members who 
were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater 
benefit results.  



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

37 

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a 
service retirement allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar 
years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing employment with a 
participating employer (age 45 for police members). General service employees may 
retire after reaching age 55. Police members are eligible after reaching age 50. Tier One 
general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with 
fewer than 30 years of service. Police member benefits are reduced if retirement occurs 
prior to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier Two members are eligible for 
full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to 
new members hired on or after August 29, 2003. 

Death Benefits  

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of 
the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the 
beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account 
balance, provided one or more of the following conditions are met:  

 the member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death,  
 the member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered 

employment, 
 the member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERScovered 

job, or 
 the member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the 

time of death. 

Disability Benefits  

A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other 
than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability 
resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge 
members) for disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon 
qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 
for police members) when determining the monthly benefit.  

Benefit Changes  

After Retirement Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities 
investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to 
changes in the market value of equity investments. Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits 
are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. Under current law, the cap on the 
COLA in fiscal year 2015 and beyond will vary based on 1.25 percent on the first 
$60,000 of annual benefit and 0.15 percent on annual benefits above $60,000. 

 

 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

38 

2. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB)  

Pension Benefits  

The Pension Program (ORS Chapter 238A) provides benefits to members hired on or 
after August 29, 2003. This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by 
employer contributions. Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members 
who attain normal retirement age:  
 

Police: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final 
average salary. Normal retirement age for police members is age 60 or age 53 
with 25 years of retirement credit. To be classified as a police member, the 
individual must have been employed continuously as a police member for at least 
five years immediately preceding retirement.  
 
General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and 
the final average salary. Normal retirement age for general service members is 
age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.  
 

A member of the OPSRP Pension Program becomes vested on the earliest of the 
following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five 
calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and, if the pension 
program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.  

Death Benefits  

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is 
constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 
50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member.  

Disability Benefits  

A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member 
becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall 
receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last 
full month of employment before the disability occurred.  

Benefit Changes After Retirement  

Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living 
changes. Under current law, the cap on the COLA in fiscal year 2015 and beyond will 
vary based on 1.25 percent on the first $60,000 of annual benefit and 0.15 percent on 
annual benefits above $60,000. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

39 

3. OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)  

Pension Benefits  

An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on 
the date the rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional employer 
contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the following 
dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, 
the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the 
date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies.  
Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP) may 
receive the amounts in his or her employee account, rollover account, and vested 
employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-
year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 
minimum distribution limit. 

Death Benefits  

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the 
member’s account balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional 
contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the installment payments 
are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose 
a lump-sum payment.  

Recordkeeping  

OPERS contracts with VOYA Financial to maintain IAP participant records. 

Contributions 

PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined 
rates. These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to 
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS 
Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans. Employer contribution rates 
during the period were based on the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation as subsequently 
modified by 2013 legislated changes in benefit provisions. The rates based on a percentage of 
payroll, first became effective July 1, 2013. Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 
2015 were $162,250, excluding amounts to fund employer specific liabilities. The rates in effect 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 were 14.31 percent for Tier One/Tier Two General 
Service Member, 14.31 percent for Tier One/Tier Two Police, 7.36 percent for OPSRP Pension 
Program General Service Members, 11.46 percent for OPSRP Pension Program Police Members, 
and 6 percent for OPSRP Individual Account Program. 

Pension Assets, Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  

At June 30, 2015, the City reported an asset of $338,877 for its proportionate share of the net 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

40 

pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension 
asset used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2012 rolled forward to June 30, 2014. The City's proportion of the net pension 
asset was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At June 
30, 2014, the City's proportion was 0.01495 percent, which was unchanged from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 2013. 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City's recognized pension expense (income) of ($306,030). 
At June 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual
experience -$                         -$                         

Changes in assumptions -                           -                           

Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
investments -                           653,896                 

Changes in proportion and differences
between City contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 23,229                   -                           

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 162,250                 -                           

Total 185,479$               653,896$               
 

$162,250 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30:
2016 (158,424)$              
2017 (158,424)                
2018 (158,424)                
2019 (158,424)                
2020 3,029                    

Thereafter -                            



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

41 

Actuarial assumptions  

The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2015, were set using the 
projected unit credit actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS 
Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an 
amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the 
employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization of unfunded 
actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded 
actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 20 years. For the OPSRP Pension Program 
component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution 
rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance 
benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an amount for the 
amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed 
period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 16 years. The total 
pension liability in the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions:   
 

Valuation Date

Experience Study Report

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation Rate

Investment Rate of Return

Projected Salary Increases

Mortality

2.75 percent

December 31, 2012 rolled forward to June

30, 2014

2012, published September 18, 2013

Entry Age Normal

Amortized as a level percentage of payroll

as layered amortization bases over a closed

period; Tier One/Tier Two UAL is amortized

over 20 years and OPSRP pension UAL is

amortized over 16 years.

Market value of assets

7.75 percent

3.75 percent overall payroll growth

Health retirees and beneficiaries: PF‐2000

Sex‐distinct, generational per Scale AA,

with collar adjustments and set‐backs as

described in the valuation.   

Active Members: Mortality rates are a

percentage of healthy retiree rates that

vary by group, as described in the valuation.

Disabled retirees: Mortality rates are a

percentage of the RP‐2000 statistic

combined disabled mortality sex‐distinct

table.  



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

42 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts 
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of 
even numbered years. The methods and assumptions shown above are based on the 2012 
Experience Study which reviewed experience for the four-year period ending on December 31, 
2012. 

Long-term expected rate of return 

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return 
assumption, in July 2013 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both 
Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) 
investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s assumptions for each of the asset classes 
in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. 
The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset 
classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying 
assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not 
based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic 
model. 

Asset Class Target Allocation

Compounded 

Annual Return 

(Geometric)

Core Fixed Income 7.20% 4.50%

Short‐Term Bonds 8.00% 3.70%

Intermediate ‐Term Bonds 3.00% 4.10%

High Yield Bonds 1.80% 6.66%

Large Cap US Equities 11.65% 7.20%

Mid Cap US Equities 3.88% 7.30%

Small Cap US Equities 2.27% 7.45%

Developed Foreign Equities 14.21% 6.90%

Emerging Foreign Equities 5.49% 7.40%

Private Equities 20.00% 8.26%

Opportunity Funds/Absolute Return 5.00% 6.01%

Real Estate (Property) 13.75% 6.51%

Real Estate (REITS) 2.50% 6.76%

Commodities 1.25% 6.07%

Total 100.00%

Assumed Inflation ‐ Mean 2.75%  



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

43 

Discount rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent for the Defined 
Benefit Pension Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
that contributions from plan members and those of the contributing employers are made at the 
contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension 
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate  

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 
(6.75 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.75 percent) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease (6.75%) Discount Rate (7.75%) 1% Increase (8.75%)

717,620$                 (338,877)$                (1,232,426)$             
City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset)

 

Pension plan fiduciary net position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued OPERS financial report.  

Changes in Plan Provisions Subsequent to Measurement Date 

The Oregon Supreme Court on April 30, 2015, ruled that the provisions of Senate Bill 861, 
signed into law in October 2013, that limited the post-retirement COLA on benefits accrued prior 
to the signing of the law was unconstitutional. Benefits could be modified prospectively, but not 
retrospectively. As a result, those who retired before the bills were passed will continue to 
receive a COLA tied to the Consumer Price Index that normally results in a 2% increase 
annually. OPERS will make restoration payments to those benefit recipients.  

OPERS members who have accrued benefits before and after the effective dates of the 2013 
legislation will have a blended COLA rate when they retire.  

This is a change in benefit terms subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2014, and has 
not been included in the net pension liability (asset) proportionate shares provided by OPERS. 

7. RETIREMENT HEALTH INSURANCE ACCOUNT (RHIA) 

Plan Description 
As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), the City contributes to 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

44 

the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees.  RHIA is a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other post-employment benefit plan administered 
by OPERS.  RHIA pays a monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health 
insurance premiums of eligible retirees. Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420 established this 
trust fund. Authority to establish and amend the benefit provision of RHIA resides with the 
Oregon Legislature.  OPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information.  That report may be obtained by writing to 
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700. 

Funding Policy 
Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution requirements of 
the plan members and the participating employers were established and may be amended only by 
the Oregon Legislature.  ORS require that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of 
Medicare companion health insurance premiums coverage, whichever is less, shall be paid by the 
eligible retired member in the manner provided in ORS 238.410.  

Participating employers are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each 
year by OPERS, currently 0.59% of annual coverall payroll.  The OPERS Board of Trustees sets 
the employer contribution rate based on level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortized the annual required contribution of the 
employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement No. 45.  The ARC represent any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of 
the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years.  The City’s contributions to RHIA for the years 
ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $25,176, $24,437 and $25,229 respectively which 
equal the required contributions for that year. 

8. INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Transfer In Transfer Out

General Fund -$                  487,500$      
Aquatic 87,500          -                    
Water -                    250,000        
Water Debt Service 250,000        -                    
Sewer 400,000        204,738        
CWSRF Debt Service 183,414        -                    
Sewer Debt Service 174,000        -                    
Sewer SDC -                    152,676        

Totals 1,094,914$   1,094,914$   

 

Transfers on the modified accrual basis are different from transfers on the full accrual basis due 
to capital assets acquired by the systems development fund being transferred to the enterprise 
funds.  Such transfers are not reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting but are 
recorded on the full accrual basis. 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

45 

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect 
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend then, (2) move receipts restricted to 
debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service 
payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance 
various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

9. CONTINGENCIES 

The City purchases commercial insurance to cover all commonly insurable risks, which includes 
property damage, liability and employee bonds.  Most policies carry a small deductible amount.   

Management of the City believes that the total amount of liability if any, which may arise from 
claims and lawsuits pending against the City beyond which is covered by insurance, would not 
have a material effect on the City’s financial condition.   

10. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to errors and omissions; automobile; damage 
to or destruction of assets; bodily injury; and worker’s compensation for which the City carries 
commercial insurance.  Settled claims resulting from risks of loss have not exceeded commercial 
insurance coverage in any of the past three years. 

11. DEFICIT NET POSITION 

The Public Works Personnel Service Fund has a deficit net position of $99,969 at June 30, 2015.  
The deficit is primarily created by pension amounts due to the implementation of GASB 
Statement 68. 

12.  PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT  

The City discovered there were unrecorded accounts receivable and interest payable that should 
have been reported in prior year financial statements.  This resulted in prior period adjustments 
of $198,500 to accounts receivable and ($44,700) to interest payable for a total effect of 
$153,800.  The City also reclassed $9,681 of the internal service fund from business activities to 
governmental activities for a total effect of $0. 

13. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT – GASB STATEMENT NO. 68 AND 71 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 
and Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. GASB Statement No. 68 
establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, 
deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures.  GASB Statement No. 71 addresses an 
issue regarding application of the transition provisions of GASB Statement No. 68.  The City 
implemented GASB Statement No. 68 and 71 in the year ending June 30, 2015.  Additional 
information can be found in Note 6 - Pension Plan and Note 14 - Change in Accounting 
Principle. 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2015 
 

46  

14. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 

Based on implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 and 71, the City restated the beginning net 
position for the Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities. Net position has been 
restated as follows: 

 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type 
Activities Total

16,896,932$       12,041,802$         28,938,734$     
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (417,639)             (178,968)              (596,607)           

16,479,293$       11,862,834$         28,342,127$     

Net position - beginning (as originally reported)

Net position - beginning (as restated)



 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



      Budgetary Comparison Schedule

- General Fund

- Library Fund

- Street Fund

- Urban Renewal Agency Fund

      Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

      Schedule of Contributions

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are required by
the GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

47



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES: 
Property taxes 2,400,000$    2,400,000$    2,587,350$    187,350$       
Franchise fees 149,500         149,500         151,548         2,048             
Licenses, permits and fees 30,680           30,680           53,053           22,373           
Intergovernmental 139,250         139,250         159,621         20,371           
Charges for services 658,846         658,846         588,919         (69,927)          
Interest revenue 40,000           40,000           53,721           13,721           
Miscellaneous revenue 26,600         41,600         66,271           24,671         

Total revenues 3,444,876      3,459,876      3,660,483      200,607         

EXPENDITURES:
General government 821,920         896,920         768,682         128,238         
Public safety 2,424,650      2,453,650      2,175,759      277,891         
Capital outlay 310,000         85,000           65,578           19,422           
Contingency 100,000         16,000           -                    16,000           

Total expenditures 3,656,570      3,451,570      3,010,019      441,551         

Revenues over (under) expenditures (211,694)        8,306             650,464         642,158         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out (62,500)          (487,500)        (487,500)        -                    

Total other financing sources (uses) (62,500)          (487,500)        (487,500)        -                    

Net change in fund balance (274,194)        (479,194)        162,964         642,158         

681,347         788,595         788,595         -                    

407,153$       309,401$       951,559         642,158$       

Accounts receivable 152,819
Property tax receivable 155,542
Cash with county 10,482
Unavailable revenue -franchise fees (58,875)          
Unavailable revenue - property taxes (146,539)        
Unavailable revenue -municipal court (72,594)          
Accounts payable (39,798)          

952,596$         

Budget

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING BUDGETARY 
BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS

48



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
LIBRARY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 744,619$        744,619$        789,050$        44,431$          
Grants 853,500          853,500          3,877              (849,623)         
Fines and forfeitures 25,000            25,000            19,218            (5,782)             
Charges for services 2,500              2,500              2,526              26                   
Miscellaneous revenue 500                 500                 953                 453                 
Contributions and donations 1,000              1,000              1,118              118                 

Total revenues 1,627,119       1,627,119       816,742          (810,377)         

EXPENDITURES:
Personal service 589,285          589,285          388,084          201,201          
Materials and service 212,049          212,049          183,348          28,701            
Capital outlay 127,500          177,500          93,073            84,427            
Contingency 100,000          50,000            -                      50,000            

Total expenditures 1,028,834       1,028,834       664,505          364,329          

Revenues over (under) expenditures 598,285          598,285          152,237          (446,048)         

Net change in fund balance 598,285          598,285          152,237          (446,048)         

1,137,324       1,137,324       1,122,606       (14,718)           

1,735,609$     1,735,609$     1,274,843       (460,766)$       

Accounts payable (6,352)             

1,268,491$      

Budget

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING BUDGETARY 
BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

49



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
STREET FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES:
Franchise fees 209,180$       209,180$         218,800$       9,620$            
Intergovernmental 970,000         970,000         972,430         2,430             
Miscellaneous revenue 2,500             42,500           28,968           (13,532)          

Total revenues 1,181,680      1,221,680      1,220,198      (1,482)            

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 651,918         701,918         541,848         160,070         
Capital outlay 510,000         600,000         716,052         (116,052)        
Contingency 100,000         -                    -                    -                    

Total expenditures 1,261,918      1,301,918      1,257,900      44,018           

Revenues over (under) expenditures (80,238)          (80,238)          (37,702)          42,536           

Net change in fund balance (80,238)          (80,238)          (37,702)          42,536           

115,109         115,109         255,886         140,777         

34,871$         34,871$         218,184         183,313$       

Accounts receivable 67,041
Accounts payable (1,699)            

283,526$         

Budget

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING BUDGETARY 
BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

50



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

Property taxes 285,000$       285,000$       290,891$       5,891$            
Interest revenue 250                250                629                379                

Total revenues 285,250         285,250         291,520         6,270             

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 170,000         170,000         169,730         270                
Capital outlay 3,000,000      3,000,000      243,093         2,756,907      
Debt service:
     Principal 300,000         300,000         -                    300,000         
     Interest 75,000           75,000           -                    75,000           
Contingency 100,000         100,000         -                    100,000         

Total expenditures 3,645,000      3,645,000      412,823         3,232,177      

Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,359,750)     (3,359,750)     (121,303)        3,238,447      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of debt 3,000,000      3,000,000      3,055,656      55,656           

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,000,000      3,000,000      3,055,656      55,656           

Net changes in fund balances (359,750)        (359,750)        2,934,353      3,294,103      

816,508         816,508         832,067         15,559           

456,758$         456,758$         3,766,420      3,309,662$      

Accounts receivable
Property tax receivable 14,841
Cash with county 724
Unavailable revenue - property taxes (13,780)          

3,768,205$      

Budget

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 
BUDGETARY BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING BUDGETARY 
BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

51



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
For the Last Two Fiscal Years

(b/c)
City's

(a) (b) Plan fiduciary
City's City's (c) net position as

Year proportion of proportionate share City's a percentage of 
Ended  the net pension  of the net pension covered the total pension

June 30, liability (asset) liability (asset) payroll liability

2015 0.01495015% (338,877)$             1,332,481$          -25.43% 103.60%
2014 0.01495015% 762,928                1,373,512           55.55% 91.97%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determined at December 31 and rolled forward to the
measurement date.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is
available.

proportionate share 
of the net pension 

liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its 
covered payroll

52



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Last Two Fiscal Years

(b) (b/c)
(a) Contributions in (a-b) (c) Contributions

Year Statutorily relation to the Contribution City's as a percent
Ended required statutorily required deficiency covered of covered

June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2015 162,250$         162,250$               -$                     1,332,481$       12.18%
2014 166,301           166,301                -                       1,373,512        12.11%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-
year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary
information is available.

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determined at December 31 and rolled forward to the
measurement date.

53



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLMENTARY INFORMATION  
June 30, 2015 
 

54  

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 
A. Budgetary Information 

On or before June 30 of each year, the City enacts a resolution approving the budget, 
appropriating the expenditures, and levying the property taxes.  Prior to enacting this resolution, 
the proposed budget is presented to a budget committee consisting of members of the City 
Council and a like number of interested citizens.  The budget committee presents the budget to 
the City Council for budget hearings prior to enactment of the resolution. The City budgets all 
funds as required by Oregon Local Budget Law.  The basis of budgeting for all major funds is 
the cash basis of accounting. 

The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the legal level of control by which 
expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations.  Total expenditures by department as 
established by the resolution are the legal level of control for the General Fund. Expenditure 
categories of personnel services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt service, transfers, 
and contingency are the legal level of control for all other funds. The detail budget document, 
however, is required to contain more specific information for the above mentioned expenditure 
categories.  Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the use of a 
supplemental budget.  A supplemental budget requires hearings before the public, publications in 
newspapers, and adoption by the City Council.  Management may modify original and 
supplemental budgets by the use of appropriation transfers between the legal levels of control 
within a fund.  Such transfers require approval by the City Council. 
 
Expenditures in the following funds exceeded appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2015: 
 
Fund    Budget Category  Amount of Over Expenditure 
Street Fund   Capital outlay    $116,052 
Utility Deposit Fund  Materials and services     $11,245 

B. Changes in Plan Provisions 

A summary of key changes in plan provisions are described in the Oregon Public Employees 
Retirement System’s GASB 68 Disclosure Information which can be found at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/docs/er_general_information/opers_gasb_68_disclosure_infor
mation_revised.pdf  

C. Changes of Assumptions 

A summary of key changes implemented since the December 31, 2011 valuation are described in 
the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System’s GASB 68 Disclosure Information which can 
be found at: 

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/docs/er_general_information/opers_gasb_68_disclosure_infor
mation_revised.pdf  

 



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLMENTARY INFORMATION  
June 30, 2015 
 

55  

Additional details and a comprehensive list of changes in methods and assumptions can be found 
in the 2012 Experience Study for the System, which was published on September 18, 2013, and 
can be found at: http://www.oregon.gov/pers/docs/2012%20Exp%20Study%20Updated.pdf  
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 



Special Revenue Funds

Aquatic Center Fund

TAP Grant Fund

Police Department Restricted Revenue Fund

Other supplementary information includes financial schedules not required by the GASB, nor a part of the
basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COMBINING SCHEDULES

Such schedules include:

      Combining Schedules – Nonmajor Governmental Funds

      Budgetary Comparison - Park SDC Fund

The TAP Grant Fund accounts for Tourism Grant Program grants to the City received from Clackamas
County.

      Budgetary Comparison Schedules

      Budgetary Comparison Schedules – Enterprise Funds

      Other Financial Schedules

The Aquatic Center Fund accounts for revenue received from user fees collected at the pool, a park and rec fee
and transfers from the General fund. The revenue received is used to fund the operations of the Aquatic
Center.

      Budgetary Comparison Schedules – Internal Service Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

The Police Department Restricted Revenue Fund accounts for revenues restricted to the police department.
These funds are only to be used on expenditures for the police department as they are legally restricted. 

These funds account for revenue derived from specific taxes or other earmarked revenue sources, which are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.  Funds included in this category are:

56



Debt Service Fund

Bonded Debt Fund

Capital Projects Fund

Transportation SDC Fund

The Bonded Debt Fund accounts for the collection of special assessments and the payment of debt principal
and interest on special assessment bonded debt.

These funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital items and facilities.  The fund included in this category is:

The Transportation SDC Fund accounts for revenues from the Transportation System Development Charges.
These funds are used to pay for upgrade and expansion of the street systems. 

These funds are used to account for revenues and expenditures related to the servicing of general long-term
debt:

57



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
PARK SDC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

System development charges 54,600$          54,600$          393,456$        338,856$        

Total revenues 54,600           54,600           393,456          338,856          

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 25,000           25,000           -                     25,000           
Capital outlay 500,000          500,000          40,643           459,357          

Total expenditures 525,000          525,000          40,643           484,357          

Net changes in fund balances (470,400)        (470,400)        352,813          823,213          

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 517,883          517,883          594,817          76,934           

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 47,483$          47,483$          947,630$         900,147$        

Budget

58



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2015

Aquatic Center 
Fund

TAP Grant 
Fund

Police 
Department 
Restricted 

Revenue Fund

Cash and cash equivalents 12,166$          -$                   33,865$          

Total assets 12,166$         -$                   33,865$         

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:

Debt service -$                   -$                   -$                   
System development -                     -                     -                     
Police department -                     -                     33,865            

Assigned to:
Aquatic center 12,166            -                     -                     

Total fund balances 12,166            -                     33,865            

Total liabilities and fund balances 12,166$         -$                   33,865$         

ASSETS

59



Bonded Debt 
Fund

Transportation 
SDC Fund Total

66,526$          323,482$        436,039$        

66,526$          323,482$        436,039$        

66,526$          -$                   66,526$          
-                     323,482          323,482
-                     -                     33,865

-                     -                     12,166

66,526            323,482          436,039          

66,526$          323,482$        436,039$        

60



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Aquatic Center 
Fund

TAP Grant 
Fund

Police 
Department 
Restricted 

Revenue Fund
REVENUES:

Property taxes -$                   -$                   -$                   
Grants -                    20,000           -                    
Charges for services 65,460           -                    -                    
Miscellaneous revenue -                    -                    16,960           
Contributions and donations -                    -                    1,035             
System development charges -                    -                    -                    

Total revenues 65,460           20,000           17,995           

EXPENDITURES:
General government -                    20,000           2,000             
Culture and recreation 178,673         -                    -                    
Capital outlay -                    -                    -                    
Debt service:

     Principal -                    -                    -                    
     Interest -                    -                    -                    

Total expenditures 178,673         20,000           2,000             

Revenues over (under) expenditures (113,213)        -                    15,995           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 87,500           -                    -                    

Total other financing sources (uses) 87,500           -                    -                    

Net change in fund balance (25,713)          -                    15,995           

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 37,879           -                    17,870           

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT -                    -                    -                    

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 12,166$        -$                   33,865$        

61



Bonded Debt 
Fund

Transportation 
SDC Fund Total

63,739$         -$                     63,739$        
-                    -                       20,000          
-                    -                       65,460          
-                    -                       16,960          
-                    -                       1,035            
-                    108,525            108,525        

63,739           108,525            275,719        

-                    -                       22,000          
-                    -                       178,673        
-                    96,902              96,902          

60,000           -                       60,000          
6,838             -                       6,838            

66,838           96,902              364,413        

(3,099)            11,623              (88,694)         

-                    -                       87,500          

-                    -                       87,500          

(3,099)            11,623              (1,194)           

64,419           311,859            432,027        

5,206             -                       5,206            

66,526$         323,482$          436,039$      

62



      General Fund Schedule of Expenditures - Budgetary Basis

Nonmajor Governmental Budgetary Comparison schedules included the following:

      Special Revenue Funds
- Aquatic Center Fund
- TAP Grant Fund
- Police Department Restricted Revenue Fund

      Debt Service Fund
- Bonded Debt Fund

      Capital Project Funds
- Transportation SDC Fund

Pursuant to the provisions of Oregon Revised Statute, an individual schedule of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - budget and actual be displayed for each fund where
legally adopted budgets are required.

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

Major Governmental Budgetary Comparison schedules not included in required supplemental 
information include the following:

63



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Police operations:
Personnel services 1,719,000$       1,719,000$       1,604,915$       114,085$          
Materials and services 496,750            516,750            365,069            151,681            
Capital outlay 60,000              60,000              53,447              6,553                

Subtotal 2,275,750         2,295,750         2,023,431         272,319            

Municipal court:
Personnel services 131,200            140,200            136,664            3,536                
Materials and services 77,700              77,700              69,111              8,589                

Subtotal 208,900            217,900            205,775            12,125              

Planning:
Materials and services 31,400              46,400              30,791              15,609              

Subtotal 31,400              46,400              30,791              15,609              

Office of governance and management:
Personnel services 529,520            529,520            442,743            86,777              
Materials and services 261,000            321,000            295,148            25,852              
Capital outlay 250,000            25,000              12,131              12,869              

Subtotal 1,040,520         875,520            750,022            125,498            

Total expenditures 3,556,570$      3,435,570$      3,010,019$       425,551$         

Budget

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

64



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
AQUATIC CENTER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

Charges for services 126,500$        126,500$        65,460$         (61,040)$         

Total revenues 126,500         126,500         65,460           (61,040)          

EXPENDITURES:
Personnel service 96,013           101,609         69,334           32,275           
Materials and service 110,200         150,200         109,339         40,861           

Total expenditures 206,213         251,809         178,673         73,136           

Revenues over (under) expenditures (79,713)          (125,309)        (113,213)        12,096           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 62,500           87,500           87,500           -                     

Total other financing sources (uses) 62,500           87,500           87,500           -                     

Net changes in fund balances (17,213)          (37,809)          (25,713)          12,096           

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 17,213           37,809           37,879           70                  

FUND BALANCES, ENDING -$                  -$                  12,166$         12,166$        

Budget

65



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
TAP GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

Grants 20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         -$                    

Total revenues 20,000           20,000           20,000           -                    

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 20,000           20,000           20,000           -                    

Total expenditures 20,000           20,000           20,000           -                    

Net changes in fund balances -                    -                    -                    -                    

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING -                    -                    -                    -                    

FUND BALANCES, ENDING -$                  -$                  -$                   -$                  

Budget

66



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
POLICE DEPARTMENT RESTRICTED REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES:
Miscellaneous revenue 16,000$         16,000$         18,237$         2,237$            
Contributions and donations 2,820             2,820             1,035             (1,785)            

Total revenues 18,820           18,820           19,272           452                

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 36,509           36,509           2,000             34,509           

Total expenditures 36,509           36,509           2,000             34,509           

Net change in fund balance (17,689)          (17,689)          17,272           34,961           

17,689           17,689           16,593           (1,096)            

-$                  -$                  33,865$         33,865$        

Budget

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 
BUDGETARY BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

67



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
BONDED DEBT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

Property taxes 63,739$         63,739$         63,739$         -$                   

Total revenues 63,739           63,739           63,739           -                    

EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:
     Principal 60,000           60,000           60,000           -                    
     Interest 7,663             7,663             6,838             825                

Total expenditures 67,663           67,663           66,838           825                

Net changes in fund balances (3,924)            (3,924)            (3,099)            825                

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 70,388           70,388           64,419           (5,969)            

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT -                    -                    5,206             5,206             

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 66,464$        66,464$        66,526$         62$               

Budget

68



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
TRANSPORTATION SDC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES:
System development charges 31,620$          31,620$          108,525$        76,905$          

Total revenues 31,620           31,620           108,525          76,905           

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 10,000           10,000           -                     10,000           
Capital outlay 261,169          261,169          96,902           164,267          

Total expenditures 271,169          271,169          96,902           174,267          

Net changes in fund balances (239,549)        (239,549)        11,623           251,172          

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 271,169          271,169          311,859          40,690           

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 31,620$         31,620$         323,482$        291,862$       

Budget

69



Enterprise Budgetary Comparison schedules include the following:

 Water Operations

- Water Fund
- Water SDC Fund
- Water Debt Retirement

 Sewer Operations

- Sewer Fund
- Sewer SDC Fund
- Sewer Debt Retirement
- CWSRF Fund

 Storm Water Operations

- Storm Water Fund
- Storm Water SDC Fund

      Utility Deposits

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

Pursuant to the provisions of Oregon Revised Statute, an individual schedule of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances - budget and actual be displayed for each fund where legally adopted
budgets are required.

Enterprise Funds 

70



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
WATER OPERATIONS COMBINED
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Water Fund
Water SDC 

Fund
Water Debt 
Retirement

Total Water 
Operations

REVENUES:
Charges for services 1,380,765$    -$                  -$                 1,380,765$    
Miscellaneous revenue 2,676             -                    -                   2,676             
System development charges -                    134,900         -                   134,900         

Total revenues 1,383,441      134,900         -                   1,518,341      

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 945,056         -                    -                   945,056         
Capital outlay 476,905         -                    -                   476,905         
Debt service:  
     Principal -                    -                    300,000       300,000         
     Interest -                    -                    34,125         34,125           

Total expenditures 1,421,961      -                    334,125       1,756,086      

Revenues over (under) expenditures (38,520)          134,900         (334,125)      (237,745)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                    -                    250,000       250,000         
Transfers out (250,000)        -                    -                   (250,000)        

Total other financing sources (uses) (250,000)        -                    250,000       -                    
    

Net change in fund balance (288,520)        134,900         (84,125)        (237,745)        

958,692         1,366,647      574,626       2,899,965      

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT  -  -  (5,206)  (5,206)

670,172$       1,501,547$    485,295$      2,657,014      

Accounts receivable 173,399
Accounts payable  (6,056)
Capital assets 5,468,990
Accrued interest payable  (10,250)
Long-term debt  (975,000)

7,308,097$   

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING BUDGETARY 
BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING    BUDGETARY BASIS

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

71



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

Charges for services 1,388,000$   1,388,000$   1,380,765$   (7,235)$          
Miscellaneous revenue 1,500            1,500            2,676            1,176             

Total revenues 1,389,500     1,389,500     1,383,441     (6,059)            

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 1,038,747     1,053,747     945,056        108,691         
Capital outlay 531,000        531,000        476,905        54,095           
Contingency 100,000        85,000          -                    85,000           

Total expenditures 1,669,747     1,669,747     1,421,961     247,786         

Revenues over (under) expenditures (280,247)       (280,247)       (38,520)         241,727         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out (250,000)       (250,000)       (250,000)       -                     

Total other financing sources (uses) (250,000)       (250,000)       (250,000)       -                     

Net change in fund balance (530,247)       (530,247)       (288,520)       241,727         

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 1,023,857     1,023,857     958,692        (65,165)          

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 493,610$      493,610$      670,172$      176,562$       

Budget

72



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
WATER SDC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

System development charges 35,500$       35,500$       134,900$      99,400$        

Total revenues 35,500        35,500        134,900        99,400          

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 10,000        10,000        -                   10,000          
Capital outlay 1,308,873    1,308,873    -                   1,308,873     

Total expenditures 1,318,873    1,318,873    -                   1,318,873     

Net change in fund balance (1,283,373)  (1,283,373)  134,900        1,418,273     

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 1,318,873    1,318,873    1,366,647     47,774          

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 35,500$      35,500$      1,501,547$   1,466,047$  

Budget

73



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
WATER DEBT RETIREMENT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:

Debt service:
     Principal 300,000$      300,000$      300,000$      -$                 
     Interest 38,250          38,250          34,125          4,125            

Total expenditures 338,250        338,250        334,125        4,125            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 250,000        250,000        250,000        -                   

Total other financing sources (uses) 250,000        250,000        250,000        -                   

Net changes in fund balances (88,250)         (88,250)         (84,125)         4,125            

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 569,770        569,770        574,626        4,856            

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT -                   -                   (5,206)          (5,206)          

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 481,520$      481,520$      485,295$      3,775$          

Budget

74



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
SEWER OPERATIONS COMBINED
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Sewer Fund
Sewer SDC 

Fund
Sewer Debt 
Retirement CWSRF Fund

Total Sewer 
Operations

REVENUES:
Charges for services 1,624,714$     -$                    -$                    -$                    1,624,714$     
Miscellaneous revenue 4,882              -                      -                      -                      4,882              
System development charges -                      180,400          -                      -                      180,400          

Total revenues 1,629,596       180,400          -                      -                      1,809,996       

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 1,986,780       -                      -                      -                      1,986,780       
Capital outlay 59,515            -                      -                      -                      59,515            
Debt service:
     Principal -                      -                      210,000          121,865          331,865          
     Interest -                      -                      105,200          66,731            171,931          

Total expenditures 2,046,295       -                      315,200          188,596          2,550,091       

Revenues over (under) expenditures (416,699)         180,400          (315,200)         (188,596)         (740,095)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 400,000          -                      174,000          183,414          757,414          
Transfers out (204,738)         (152,676)         -                      -                      (357,414)         

Total other financing sources (uses) 195,262          (152,676)         174,000          183,414          400,000          

Net change in fund balance (221,437)         27,724            (141,200)         (5,182)             (340,095)         

624,852          210,310          459,221          193,160          1,487,543       

403,415$        238,034$        318,021$        187,978$        1,147,448       

Accounts receivable 166,041
Accounts payable  (79,987)
Capital assets 7,141,909
Accrued interest payable  (36,907)
Long-term debt (4,500,111)    

3,838,393$     

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 
BUDGETARY BASIS

FUND BALANCES, ENDING   
BUDGETARY BASIS

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

75



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Charges for services 1,557,800$   1,557,800$   1,624,714$   66,914$           
Miscellaneous revenue 1,500            1,500            4,882            3,382               

Total revenues 1,559,300     1,559,300     1,629,596     70,296             

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 1,320,280     2,000,996     1,986,780     14,216             
Capital outlay 233,262        83,262          59,515          23,747             
Contingency 100,000        -                    -                    -                      

Total expenditures 1,653,542     2,084,258     2,046,295     37,963             

Revenues over (under) expenditures (94,242)         (524,958)       (416,699)       108,259           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                    400,000        400,000        -                      
Transfers out (204,738)       (204,738)       (204,738)       -                      

Total other financing sources (uses) (204,738)       195,262        195,262        -                      

Net change in fund balance (298,980)       (329,696)       (221,437)       108,259           

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 594,135        624,852        624,852        -                      

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 295,155$     295,156$     403,415$      108,259$        

Budget

76



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
SEWER SDC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
System development charges 45,100$       45,100$       180,400$     135,300$       

Total revenues 45,100         45,100         180,400       135,300         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out (152,676)      (152,676)      (152,676)      -                     

Total other financing sources (uses) (152,676)      (152,676)      (152,676)      -                     

Net change in fund balance (107,576)      (107,576)      27,724         135,300         

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 152,676       152,676       210,310       57,634           

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 45,100$      45,100$      238,034$     192,934$      

Budget

77



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
SEWER DEBT RETIREMENT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:
     Principal 210,000$        210,000$        210,000$        -$                   
     Interest 104,450         104,450         105,200         (750)               

Total expenditures 314,450         314,450         315,200         (750)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 174,000         174,000         174,000         -                     

Total other financing sources (uses) 174,000         174,000         174,000         -                     

Net changes in fund balances (140,450)        (140,450)        (141,200)        (750)               

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 459,571         459,571         459,221         (350)               

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 319,121$         319,121$         318,021$         (1,100)$           

Budget

78



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
CWSRF FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:

Debt service:
     Principal 121,865$      121,865$      121,865$      -$                  
     Interest 66,731          66,731          66,731          -                    

Total expenditures 188,596        188,596        188,596        -                    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 183,414        183,414        183,414        -                    

Total other financing sources (uses) 183,414        183,414        183,414        -                    

Net changes in fund balances (5,182)           (5,182)           (5,182)           -                    

193,160        193,160        193,160        -                    

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 187,978$      187,978$      187,978$      -$                  

Budget

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS

79



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
STORM WATER OPERATIONS COMBINED
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Storm Water 
Fund

Storm Water 
SDC Fund

Total Storm 
Water 

Operations

REVENUES:
Charges for services 96,837$          -$                    96,837$          
Miscellaneous revenue 3,043              -                      3,043              
System development charges -                      27,565            27,565            

Total revenues 99,880            27,565            127,445          

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 56,662            -                      56,662            
Capital outlay 31,546            -                      31,546            

Total expenditures 88,208            -                      88,208            

Net change in fund balance 11,672            27,565            39,237            

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 41,478            176,369          217,847          

FUND BALANCES, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 53,150$         203,934$       257,084         

Accounts receivable 9,727
Capital assets 542,608

809,419$       FUND BALANCE, ENDING

80



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
STORM WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

Charges for services 104,500$    104,500$    96,837$      (7,663)$      
Miscellaneous revenue -                 -                 3,043          3,043          

Total revenues 104,500      104,500      99,880        (4,620)        

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 72,564        82,564        56,662        25,902        
Capital outlay 40,000        40,000        31,546        8,454          
Contingency 25,000        15,000        -                 15,000        

Total expenditures 137,564      137,564      88,208        49,356        

Net change in fund balance (33,064)      (33,064)      11,672        44,736        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 48,666        48,666        41,478        (7,188)        

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 15,602$     15,602$     53,150$      37,548$     

Budget

81



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
STORM WATER SDC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

System development charges 7,450$        7,450$        27,565$      20,115$      

Total revenues 7,450          7,450          27,565        20,115        

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 10,000        10,000        -                 10,000        
Capital outlay 250,000      250,000      -                 250,000      

Total expenditures 260,000      260,000      -                 260,000      

Net change in fund balance (252,550)    (252,550)    27,565        280,115      

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 323,217      323,217      176,369      (146,848)    

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS 70,667$     70,667$     203,934$    133,267$   

Budget

82



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
UTILITY DEPOSITS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

Charges for services -$                 10,000$        19,679$        9,679$          

Total revenues -                   10,000          19,679          9,679           

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and service 1,378           11,378          22,623          (11,245)        

Total expenditures 1,378           11,378          22,623          (11,245)        

Net changes in fund balances (1,378)          (1,378)          (2,944)          (1,566)          

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS 1,378           1,378           3,980           2,602           

FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS -$                  -$                  1,036$           1,036$           

Budget

83



CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
PUBLIC WORKS PERSONNEL SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES:
Charges for services 1,341,000$   1,341,000$   1,238,835$     (102,165)$    

Total revenues 1,341,000     1,341,000     1,238,835       (102,165)      

EXPENDITURES:
Personnel services 1,388,999     1,444,726     1,394,722       50,004         
Contingency 52,727          -                    -                      -                   

Total expenditures 1,441,726     1,444,726     1,394,722       50,004         

Revenues over (under) expenditures (100,726)       (103,726)       (155,887)         (52,161)        

Net change in fund balance (100,726)       (103,726)       (155,887)         (52,161)        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 103,726        103,726        155,887          52,161         

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 3,000$         -$                 -                      -$                

Compensated absences  (61,107)
Net pension asset 101,663
Deferred outflows related to pensions 55,644
Deferred inflows related to pensions  (196,169)

(99,969)$         

Budget

NET POSITION, ENDING 

84



 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT REQUIRED 
BY OREGON STATE REGULATION 



85 
 

 
5499 AMY STREET •  WEST LINN, OREGON 97068  • PHONE: (503) 723-0300  •  FAX: (503) 723-9946  WWW.MERINACPAS.COM 

 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATION 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Molalla, Oregon (the City), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2015 and have issued our report thereon dated December 7, 
2015. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as 
specified  in the Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum 
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required 
comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following: 

 Deposits of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295). 

 Indebtedness limitations, restrictions, and repayments. 

 Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294). 

 Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law. 

 Programs funded from outside sources.  

 Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets. 

 Authorized investment of surplus funds. (ORS Chapter 294). 

 Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, and 279C). 

 Accountability for collecting or receiving money by elected officials. The City does not 
have any elected officials collecting or receiving money. 
 

In connection with our testing, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City 
was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in the Oregon 
Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of 
Oregon Municipal Corporations except as follows: 

 CCEERRTTIIFFIIEEDD		PPUUBBLLIICC		AACCCCOOUUNNTTAANNTTSS		AANNDD		CCOONNSSUULLTTAANNTTSS		
 

 
PARTNERS 

KAMALA K. AUSTIN, CPA • TONYA M. MOFFITT, CPA 



86 

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following funds: 

Fund            Budget Category    Amount of Over Expenditure 

Street Fund   Capital Outlay   $116,052 

Utility Deposit Fund  Materials & Services    $11,245  

The following fund had a deficit net position at June 30, 2015. 

Fund       Amount 

Public Works Personnel Service Fund  $99,969 

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, City Council, 
Oregon Secretary of State Audits Division, and management, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
Merina & Company, LLP 
West Linn, Oregon 
December 7, 2015 



 

 

STATISTICAL SECTION 
 



87 

STATISTICAL SECTION 

 

This part of the Government’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government’s overall 
financial health. 

 

CONTENTS 

 

Financial Trends 

 These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
government’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 



2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Government activites
Net investment in capital assets -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                        -$                        
Restricted 1,425,076             773,254               377,224                 245,792               255,954               
Unrestricted (654,112)               35,606                 136,069                 375,887               1,030,520            
Total governmental activites net position 770,964                808,860               513,293                 621,679               1,286,474            

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets -                            -                          -                             -                          -                          
Restricted 2,888,716             2,023,420            1,670,893              2,055,647            3,074,561            
Unrestricted 2,573,544             1,236,785            1,910,257              1,940,137            904,437               
Total business-type activities net position 5,462,260             3,260,205            3,581,150              3,995,784            3,978,998            

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets -                            -                          -                             -                          -                          
Restricted 4,313,792             2,796,674            2,048,117              2,301,439            3,330,515            
Unrestricted 1,919,432             1,272,391            2,046,326              2,316,024            1,934,957            
Total primary government net position 6,233,224$           4,069,065$          4,094,443$            4,617,463$          5,265,472$          

Source: Statement of Net Position - City of Molalla, Oregon

Last Ten Fiscal Years
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON

88



2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Government activites
Net investment in capital assets -$                          14,219,155$        13,482,859$        12,779,500$        12,453,245$        
Restricted 302,899                1,219,319            1,753,988            2,071,278            2,976,327            
Unrestricted 1,044,033             633,802               1,276,225            2,046,154            1,788,198            
Total governmental activites net position 1,346,932             16,072,276          16,513,072          16,896,932          17,217,770          

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets -                            6,383,973            6,768,889            7,009,980            7,678,396            
Restricted 3,302,428             2,888,883            2,796,017            2,980,333            1,990,122            
Unrestricted 942,728                1,579,021            1,968,627            2,051,489            2,204,417            
Total business-type activities net position 4,245,156             10,851,877          11,533,533          12,041,802          11,872,935          

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets -                            20,603,128          20,251,748          19,789,480          20,131,641          
Restricted 3,605,327             4,108,202            4,550,005            5,051,611            4,966,449            
Unrestricted 1,986,761             2,212,823            3,244,852            4,097,643            3,992,615            
Total primary government net position 5,592,088$           26,924,153$        28,046,605$        28,938,734$        29,090,705$        

Source: Statement of Net Position - City of Molalla, Oregon

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
Last Ten Fiscal Years

89



EXPENSES 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Governmental activities

General government 846,266$       990,713$       950,022$       746,752$       831,924$       
Public safety 2,117,830      2,162,434      2,138,776      2,385,828      2,527,461      
Public works 1,851,076      1,807,780      835,004         406,165         853,522         
Community development 1,457,950      1,527,785      1,487,311      1,629,342      1,659,655      
Debt service-interest only 35,852           34,291           30,699           30,883           26,830           
Total governmental activities 6,308,974      6,523,003      5,441,812      5,198,970      5,899,392      

Business-type activities
Water 1,727,200      1,496,053      1,578,086      1,211,039      1,331,791      
Sewer 1,127,172      3,874,607      3,695,765      1,365,369      1,446,684      
Storm water 168,543         103,580         117,076         115,332         124,960         
Debt service-interest only -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total business-type activities 3,022,915      5,474,240      5,390,927      2,691,740      2,903,435      

Total 9,331,889      11,997,243    10,832,739    7,890,710      8,802,827      

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmental Activities

Charges for services
   General government 37,132           36,359           228,942         300,798         319,412         
   Public safety 479,267         414,414         370,631         584,615         516,990         
   Public works 590,743         659,176         351,797         343,936         180,291         
   Community development -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Operating grants & contributions
   General government -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
   Public safety 215,800         185,213         196,455         73,398           81,028           
   Public works 433,328         466,273         466,403         475,789         924,969         
   Community development 1,416,284      309,021         306,441         288,191         451,422         
Capital grants & contributions
   Public works 121,671         685,830         160,554         237,906         294,749         
   Community development 347,114         351,090         158,706         350,204         -                     
Total governmental activities 3,641,339      3,107,376      2,239,929      2,654,837      2,768,861      

Business-type activities
Charges for services
   Water 1,186,179      1,249,594      1,349,538      1,225,984      1,248,931      
   Sewer 1,071,100      1,382,962      1,708,996      1,505,140      1,546,155      

Fiscal Year

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Last Ten Fiscal Years

   Storm water 84,610           85,762           88,884           91,047           93,282           
Operating grants & contributions
   Water -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Capital grants & contributions
   Water 240,882         216,925         30,601           98,243           69,441           
   Sewer 340,834         546,751         30,600           173,856         136,084         
   Storm water 37,923           46,690           15,606           37,719           13,675           
Total business-type activities 2,961,528      3,528,684      3,224,225      3,131,989      3,107,568      

Net (expense) revenue
  Governmental activities (2,667,635)     (3,415,627)     (3,201,883)     (2,544,133)     (3,130,531)     
  Business-type activities (61,387)          (1,945,556)     (2,166,702)     440,249         204,133         
Total primary government (expense) revenue (2,729,022)$   (5,361,183)$   (5,368,585)$   (2,103,884)$   (2,926,398)$   

Governmental activities
Property Taxes 1,756,229$    2,164,325$    2,115,471$    2,201,120$    2,362,963$    
Franchise fees 210,194         265,964         270,943         285,467         292,917         
Intergovernmental 115,302         133,709         141,494         161,878         149,799         
Earnings on investments -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Miscellaneous 291,263         315,584         388,639         207,968         459,108         
Total general revenues 2,372,988      2,879,582      2,916,547      2,856,433      3,264,787      

Business-type activities
Earnings on investments -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Loan proceeds -                     50,000           2,377,783      -                     6,672,189      
Debt refundings -                     -                     -                     -                     (6,601,019)     
Miscellaneous 165,079         158,501         99,633           70,468           34,752           
Total general revenues 165,079         208,501         2,477,416      70,468           105,922         

Governmental - Transfers 85,000           465,000         (10,231)          96,083           326,842         
Business-type Transfers (85,000)          (465,000)        10,231           (96,083)          (326,842)        

Change in net position
Governmental activities (209,647)        (71,045)          (295,567)        408,383         461,098         
Business-type activities 18,692           (2,202,055)     320,945         414,634         (16,787)          
Total primary government (190,955)$      (2,273,100)$   25,378$         823,017$       444,311$       

Source: Statement of Activities - City of Molalla, Oregon

9090



EXPENSES 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Governmental activities

General government 912,395$       1,956,069$    1,670,994$    1,681,897      1,231,553      
Public safety 2,598,947      2,186,773      2,059,733      2,074,492      2,044,240      
Public works 542,614         902,547         546,591         593,752         1,368,643      
Community development 1,636,911      1,703,136      1,253,662      1,200,877      866,407         
Debt service-interest only 12,063           11,748           9,689             8,308             37,579           
Total Governmental Activities 5,702,930      6,760,273      5,540,669      5,559,326      5,548,422      

Business-type activities
Water 1,216,462      1,245,463      1,017,690      1,163,666      1,223,534      
Sewer 1,349,734      1,229,123      1,149,515      1,404,365      2,457,600      
Storm water 136,841         324,715         89,966           189,513         102,813         
Debt service-interest only -                     -                     232,091         -                     
Total Business Type Activities 2,703,037      2,799,301      2,489,262      2,757,544      3,783,947      

Total 8,405,967      9,559,574      8,029,931      8,316,870      9,332,369      

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmental Activities

Charges for services
   General government 325,210         828,799         743,039         817,374         769,780         
   Public safety 515,935         304,267         249,891         231,200         208,997         
   Public works 37,169           222,683         342,054         364,303         -                     
   Community development 70,929           392,414         314,675         286,433         87,204           
Operating grants & contributions
   General government 58,692           -                     -                     -                     -                     
   Public safety 93,180           277,647         16,811           7,270             -                     
   Public works 953,158         507,473         553,683         482,525         -                     
   Community development 522,916         892,341         862,273         761,055         23,877           
Capital grants & contributions
   Public works 34,487           -                     40,000           56,135           
   Community development -                     10,300           3,020             20,000           
Total governmental activities 2,611,676      3,435,924      3,125,446      3,026,295      1,089,858      

Business-type activities
Charges for services
   Water 1,267,714      1,626,293      1,343,038      1,299,054      1,527,794      
   Sewer 1,550,378      1,328,893      1,610,659      1,561,509      1,775,320      

Fiscal Year

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Last Ten Fiscal Years

   Storm water 94,325           101,098         97,556           115,790         123,352         
Operating grants & contributions
   Water -                     -                     84,000           -                     -                     
Capital grants & contributions
   Water 14,537           -                     -                     113,090         -                     
   Sewer 26,853           -                     -                     161,790         -                     
   Storm water 1,988             -                     -                     10,430           -                     
Total business-type activities 2,955,795      3,056,284      3,135,253      3,261,663      3,426,466      

Net (expense) revenue
  Governmental activities (3,091,254)     (3,324,349)     (2,415,223)     (2,533,031)     (4,458,564)     
  Business-type activities 252,758         256,983         645,991         504,119         (357,481)        
Total primary government (expense) revenu (2,838,496)$   (3,067,366)$   (1,769,232)$   (2,028,912)$   (4,816,045)$   

Governmental activities
Property Taxes 2,488,050$    2,768,775$    2,653,271$    2,775,997$    2,954,828$    
Franchise fees 268,475         -                     -                     -                     364,723         
Intergovernmental 103,907         -                     -                     -                     1,919,016      
Earnings on investments -                     -                     39,687           49,499           54,350           
Miscellaneous 177,786         108,178         92,410           91,395           116,582         
Total general revenues 3,038,218      2,876,953      2,785,368      2,916,891      5,409,499      

Business-type activities
Earnings on investments -                     13,712           576                -                     -                     
Loan proceeds -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Debt refundings -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Miscellaneous 30,591           13,260           35,089           4,150             10,601           
Total general revenues 30,591           26,972           35,665           4,150             10,601           

Governmental - Transfers 122,329         30,000           -                     -                     (400,000)        
Business-type Transfers (122,329)        (30,000)          -                     -                     400,000         

Change in net position
Governmental activities 69,293           (417,396)        370,145         383,860         550,935         
Business-type activities 161,020         253,955         681,656         508,269         53,120           
Total primary government 230,313$       (163,441)$      1,051,801$    892,129$       604,055$       

Source: Statement of Activities - City of Molalla, Oregon

9191



2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Governmental activities

   General government 37,132$         36,359$         228,942$       300,798$       319,412$       
   Public safety 695,067         599,627         567,086         658,013         598,018         
   Public works 1,145,742      1,811,279      978,754         1,057,631      1,400,009      
   Community development 1,763,398      660,111         465,147         638,395         451,422         
Total governmental activities 3,641,339      3,107,376      2,239,929      2,654,837      2,768,861      

Business-type activities
   Water 1,427,061      1,466,519      1,380,139      1,324,227      1,318,372      
   Sewer 1,411,934      1,929,713      1,739,596      1,678,996      1,682,239      
   Storm water 122,533         132,452         104,490         128,766         106,957         
Total business-type activities 2,961,528      3,528,684      3,224,225      3,131,989      3,107,568      

Total program revenues
  Governmental activities 3,641,339      3,107,376      2,239,929      2,654,837      2,768,861      
  Business-type activities 2,961,528      3,528,684      3,224,225      3,131,989      3,107,568      
Total primary government revenues 6,602,867$    6,636,060$    5,464,154$    5,786,826$    5,876,429$    

PROGRAM REVENUE BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON

92

Source: Statement of Activities - City of Molalla, Oregon

92



2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Governmental activities

   General government 383,902$       828,799$       743,039$       817,374$       769,780$       
   Public safety 609,115         581,914         266,702         238,470         208,997         
   Public works 1,024,814      730,156         935,737         902,963         -                     
   Health 593,845         1,295,055      1,179,968      1,067,488      111,081         
Total governmental activities 2,611,676      3,435,924      3,125,446      3,026,295      1,089,858      

Business-type activities
   Water 1,282,251      1,626,293      1,427,038      1,412,144      1,527,794      
   Sewer 1,577,231      1,328,893      1,610,659      1,723,299      1,775,320      
   Storm water 96,313           101,098         97,556           126,220         123,352         
Total business-type activities 2,955,795      3,056,284      3,135,253      3,261,663      3,426,466      

Total program revenues
  Governmental activities 2,611,676      3,435,924      3,125,446      3,026,295      1,089,858      
  Business-type activities 2,955,795      3,056,284      3,135,253      3,261,663      3,426,466      
Total primary government revenues 5,567,471$    6,492,208$    6,260,699$    6,287,958$    4,516,324$    

Fiscal Year

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
PROGRAM REVENUE BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

93

Source: Statement of Activities - City of Molalla, Oregon

93



2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
General Fund

Unreserved (903,879)$         (196,669)$           (209,500)$          (95,319)$           (18,715)$           
Spendable
   Unassigned -                        -                          -                         -                        -                        

Total General Fund (903,879)           (196,669)             (209,500)            (95,319)             (18,715)             

All other governmental funds
Reserved -                        -                          -                         96,303              96,303              
Unreserved reported in

Special revenue funds 1,379,434         554,296              338,572             785,296            1,268,394         
Capital projects funds 222,279            243,169              196,920             50,806              11,015              
Debt service fund 73,130              99,064                72,753               68,326              13,345              
Permanent fund -                        109,000              114,548             16,267              12,435              

Nonspendable -                        -                          -                         -                        -                        
Spendable

Restricted -                        -                          -                         -                        -                        
Assigned -                        -                          -                         -                        -                        

Total all other governmental funds 1,674,843$       1,005,529$         722,793$           1,016,998$       1,389,057$       

Note:  In fiscal year 2011, GASB Statement No. 54  came in affect which changed the
classifications of fund balances.

Last Ten Fiscal Years

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

94

Source:  City of Molalla, Oregon financial records

94



2010 2011 2012 2013 2015
General Fund

Unreserved (18,715)$            -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                      
Spendable
   Unassigned -                         (321,757)            (320,485)            209,181            952,596            

Total General Fund (18,715)              (321,757)            (320,485)            209,181            952,596            

All other governmental funds
Reserved 96,303               -                         -                         -                        -                        
Unreserved reported in

Special revenue funds 1,268,394          -                         -                         -                        -                        
Capital projects funds 11,015               -                         -                         -                        -                        
Debt service fund 13,345               -                         -                         -                        -                        
Permanent fund 12,435               -                         -                         -                        -                        

Nonspendable -                         96,303               251,491             96,303              -                        
Spendable

Restricted -                         811,316             1,123,016          1,657,685         5,423,234         
Assigned -                         -                         762,433             1,014,343         1,280,657         

Total all other governmental funds 1,389,057$        1,668,689$        2,136,940$        2,768,331$       6,703,891$       

Note:  In fiscal year 2011, GASB Statement No. 54  came in affect which changed the
classifications of fund balances.

Last Ten Fiscal Years

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

95

Source:  City of Molalla, Oregon financial records

95



Revenues 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Taxes and assessments 1,756,229$      2,164,325$      2,115,471$      2,201,119$      2,362,962$      
Intergovernmental 2,044,729        1,518,114        971,711           956,973           1601418
Charges for services -                      -                      192,982           266,230           286,883           
Licenses and permits 1,182,446        1,319,584        941,395           1,083,930        639,047           
Investment earnings -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Fines and forfeitures 489,466           425,617           398,513           612,468           544,638           
Grants -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Donations -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
System development charges -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Miscellaneous 541,457           559,318           536,404           342,020           598,700           

Total Revenues 6,014,327        5,986,958        5,156,476        5,462,740        6,033,648        

Expenditures
General government 657,424           -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public safety 2,033,437        -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public works 408,515           -                      -                      -                      -                      
Community development 1,321,974        -                      -                      -                      -                      
Personal services -                      2,888,897        2,991,461        3,155,178        3,224,862        
Materials and services -                      1,954,814        1,711,233        1,836,441        1,869,908        
Capital outlay 1,760,717        1,551,257        666,063           213,311           644,304           
Debt service 126,907           128,035           73,055            78,649            160,318           

Total expenditures 6,308,974        6,523,003        5,441,812        5,283,579        5,899,392        

Excess of revenue over (under) 
 expenditures (294,647)         (536,045)         (285,336)         179,161           134,256           

Last Ten Fiscal Years

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

96

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 570,702           821,687           714,544           678,569           770,640           
Transfers out (485,702)         (356,687)         (724,775)         (609,346)         (443,798)         
Interfund loan activity/loan proceeds -                      -                      -                      160,000           -                      

Total other financing sources (uses) 85,000            465,000           (10,231)           229,223           326,842           

Net changes in fund balances (209,647)$       (71,045)$         (295,567)$       408,384$         461,098$         

Source:  City of Molalla, Oregon financial records

96



Revenues 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Taxes and assessments 2,488,051$       3,530,865$       3,522,375$       3,740,995$       3,308,927$       
Intergovernmental 1,607,179        848,504           787,207           790,313           1,919,016        
Charges for services 294,717           -                       -                       -                       656,905           
Licenses and permits 379,723           251,514           188,062           180,759           53,053             
Investment earnings -                       14,141             39,687             49,499             54,350             
Fines and forfeitures 538,906           630,463           534,178           520,254           19,218             
Grants -                       279,205           251,363           8,744               23,877             
Donations -                       79,715             113,641           2,910               2,153               
System development charges -                       97,423             57,793             181,063           501,981           
Miscellaneous 341,318           448,960           411,335           467,477           114,429           

5,649,894        6,180,790        5,905,641        5,942,014        6,653,909        

Expenditures
General government -                       -                       -                       673,653           816,142           
Public safety -                       -                       -                       2,154,506        2,175,759        
Public works -                       -                       -                       735,836           536,001           
Community development -                       -                       -                       1,235,527        926,187           
Personal services 3,388,951        3,268,666        2,721,461        -                       -                       
Materials and services 1,895,810        1,974,614        1,693,294        -                       -                       
Capital outlay 345,875           561,750           331,138           -                       1,255,341        
Debt service 72,294             71,140             69,342             73,243             66,838             

5,702,930        5,876,170        4,815,235        4,872,765        5,776,268        

Excess of revenue over (under) 
 expenditures (53,036)            304,620           1,090,406        1,069,249        877,641           

Last Ten Fiscal Years

CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

97

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 950,983           407,892           166,089           140,000           87,500             
Transfers out (828,654)          (377,892)          (166,089)          (140,000)          (487,500)          
Interfund loan activity/loan proceeds -                       -                       -                       -                       3,055,656        

122,329           30,000             -                       -                       2,655,656        

Net changes in fund balances 69,293$           334,620$         1,090,406$       1,069,249$       3,533,297$       

Source:  City of Molalla, Oregon financial records

97



 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



City of Molalla 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-16 
A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE COUNCIL POSITION  

HELD BY JENNIFER SATTER TO BE VACANT 
 
WHEREAS, Section 19 B. 6. Of the Molalla City Charter provides that the City Council shall 
declare a vacancy on the Council in the event of an incumbent’s resignation from the office, and 
  
WHEREAS, Councilor Jennifer Satter elected in 2014 for a 4 year term has submitted her 
resignation as a member of the Council, effective immediately,  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Molalla resolves that: 
 

1. The Council position held by Jennifer Satter is declared vacant. 
2. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
 Adopted by the City Council, governing body of the City of Molalla, Clackamas County, 

Oregon this 18th day of December 2015. 

 
 

 
Attest:       City of Molalla 
 
 
_____________________________             By_____________________________ 
Sadie Cramer, City Recorder                   Debbie Rogge, Mayor 
 


	Agenda 122315
	City required communications letter to Those Charged with Governance 2015
	Minutes 101415
	MINUTES 10282015.doc
	minutes 111815
	MINUTES 12092015
	Library Mtg. Minutes - 10-15-2015
	AB Cover Sheet - Marijuana Ordinance 12-15
	MAP - proposed MJ districts
	Cover Sheet - Marijuana Ordinance 12-15
	Ord MJ
	City required communications letter to Those Charged with Governance 2015
	city_of_molalla_15
	Resolution 2015-16 Council Vacancy Jen Satter



